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India’s leading digital payment solutions, 

technology platform company 

Strong value proposition for merchants  

transacting online (enterprises and 

governments)

Provides digital payment solutions to 

Comprehensive technology platform 



ADDING VALUE.

MULTIPLYING GROWTH.

REVENUES PAYMENTS PROCESSEDPROFIT AFTER TAX EBITDA

₹ 11,591 million ₹ 1,263 million ₹ 1,762 million ₹ 494,220 million

38.1%* 129.3%*43.3%* 12.4%*

Instead of competing in the online marketplace price war and incur huge losses, we 
continued our sharp focus in growing our web-services business, which is an enabler for 
digital transactions. The web services business comprises digital payments, data centre 
infrastructure and e-commerce enterprise platforms to government and enterprises.

We have used detailed analysis, 
intuition and crisp execution to 

opportunities of web services 

market leadership as an enabler 
for digital transactions. Our 
web services solutions address 

industries and segments who use 
our digital payments to platforms 
and digital infrastructure solutions. 
We believe that our unique, 

immense potential for scaling up 
and provides strength and stability 
to our business activities. 

We continue to be guided by our 
principles of long term thinking 
and passion to make a positive 

to this point was hard and the path 
to success has been anything but 
straight. As our Company grows, 
everything needs to scale, including 
our investments in experiments 
that we undertake to gain market 
leadership. We believe that we 

have acquired the right scale for 
the Company to take risks that can 
actually move the needle. We will 
share with you the rationale and 
strategic thought process when 
we make bold decisions so you 
may evaluate if we are making 
the right long term investment.  
We will be very careful before 
undertaking such bold bets and 
work hard to make them a success, 
but we also realise that not all bets 

learn important lessons from our 
mistakes along the way.

Owing to our approach of providing 
innovative and bespoke solutions 
to our customers, we have built 
a defensible business across our 
business segments. With rapid 
additions of users and merchants, 
all our business segments are 
braced up to touch higher peaks. 
We have a great track record of 

value for all our stakeholders and 
are committed to progress on this 
path in a steadfast manner.

During the year, we witnessed 
exponential growth in number 
of users/merchants, value of 
transactions processed and 
revenues across our key businesses. 
We formed strategic alliances 

marketplace businesses to create 
long term shareholder value.

Having laid a solid foundation 
across our businesses, we are now 
looking to tap into and maximise 
the unlimited opportunities to scale 

be achieved by identifying, planning 
and executing key focus areas 
across all business segments and 

as possible. An approach of driving 
both organic and inorganic growth 
will expedite our progress and 
help us become a larger and leaner 
Company in future. Guided by our 
experienced management team 
and by staying true to our spirit 

adding value, multiplying growth 



 Infibeam Avenues Limited (IAL) is a leading digital payments and e-commerce 
technology company in India and provides a comprehensive suite of web services 
spanning digital payment solutions, data centre infrastructure and software 
platforms. We provide solutions to merchants, enterprises, corporations and 
governments in both domestic as well as international markets to enable online 
commerce. Our digital technology facilitates businesses and governments to 
execute e-commerce transactions in a safe and secure manner.

A NICHE DIGITAL PLAYER 

IN INDIA

IAL at a glance

technology business (established in 2010), is an 

USA. Mr. Vishwas Patel, founder of the payments 
business (established in 2001) is also the Chairman of 
Payments Council of India (PCI), an apex body in India 
representing companies in payments and settlement 
system. Our Company has grown from strength to 

City, Gandhinagar, we are a team of over 650 people. 

the UAE and Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Mr. Vishal Mehta 
Managing Director

Mr. Viswas Patel 
Executive Director

Our strengths

Merchants LanguagesPayment options
800,000+ 10 International 8 Domestic240+ 27
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under three broad categories of digital P Infrastructure and P

DSS 3.2.1 compliant payment gateway platform. With over 240 payment options 

all types of credit cards, debit cards and digital wallets, including UPI payments. 

processors. Our Company will run the captive workload through this data centre 
and will also open additional capacity as public cloud with the following services: 
Infrastructure as a Service (IaaS), Platform as a Service (PaaS) (blockchain 

also run our advertisement platform frameworks.

(SaaS) platforms that allow our corporate clients to transact online, manage the 

marketing and so on. We also host one of the largest online market for government 

BillAvenue and ResAvenue are some of our other prominent platform brands in this 
business.

Infrastructure

Corporate O
verview
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WELL INTEGRATED ACROSS 

THE VALUE CHAIN

Our business model

Brand

MSMEs, large enterprises, 
brands, governments, across 
various industries in India 
and the Middle East

� E-commerce platform for 
enterprise clients

� ResAvenue, end-to-end 
platform for hoteliers

� GeM (built on Enterprise 
platform)

Government (central 
and state), government 
departments, Public 
Sector Undertakings 
(PSUs)

4  |
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Value created

� Government can procure 
genuine products and services 
at competitive prices from 
KYC completed registered 
merchants

� E-bidding

� Reverse auctions

� Demand aggregation

� User ratings

� Analytics

� and more...

� Enterprise e-commerce store

� Full chain of online hospitality 
solutions 

� Access to large set of 
customers

� Marketing support

Adding Value, Multiplying Growth |  5
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Our brands

We have built a robust business 

poised to capture and maximise 
the opportunities arising from the 
exponential growth of digitalisation 

government’s digital initiatives and 

economy through use of digital 
modes for payment will further aid 
our prospects.

domains of digital payments, digital 
infrastructure services, domain 
infrastructure, advertisement 

technology for large enterprises 
and governments, and more. We 
have a track record of creating 
sustainable value for a large set 
of merchants, users, corporations 
and governments. In fact, many 
of our customers use our multiple 

business segments. We are looking 
to gain larger share of their wallet in 
future by exploring and optimising 

In our journey so far, we have 
created strong brands across all our 

are trusted by our customers, 
merchants and all key stakeholders. 
We are committed to making the 
requisite investments in further 
fortifying these brands and 
leveraging their full potential.

Consolidated revenues 

Consolidated Profit A�er Tax

 � Payment gateway

 � Bill payments

 �

 �

 � Data centre services

 � Hospitality solutions

 � GeM

 �

for large enterprises

 � Blockchain applications

 � .ooo domain registry

 � Advertisement platform 
frameworks

3x

14x

An integrated and 
scalable business 
model

Strong brand equity

For Enterprise

OUR VALUE PROPOSITION

Our investment case

Data Center

6  |
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a proven track record of balancing 

earnings. In fact, we are among the 

companies in India. Our strong 

the growth capital for future.

Our management team has been 
instrumental in our success story so 

thinking and strong execution 
capabilities have acted as a guiding 
light for us and will continue to 
take us in the right direction, going 
forward. In our rapidly evolving 
industry, their expertise helps us 
stay ahead of the curve.

We have predominantly adopted 

which helps us keep a tab on our 
expenses and drive our overall 

ticket expenditure is behind us 
and we are now leveraging on 
the strength of our integrated 

are also forming strategic and 

with prominent players across 

both in domestic and international 
markets to scale newer heights 

reward equation.

We are amongst 

the most scaled 

and profitable 

online payment 

gateway in India

FY 2018-19

FY 2017-18

Average industry experience 
of our management team 

20 years

Experienced 
management team

₹ 3,393 million

₹ 973 million

Adding Value, Multiplying Growth |  7
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CLOCKING-IN ALL-ROUND 

GROWTH

Operational highlights

Organic

Inorganic

We welcomed many merchants to
 We continued to add healthy number of merchants 

and enterprises to our universe. Our target is to touch one million merchants by the end of FY 

infrastructure. 

We 
and capabilities to clients for building blockchain applications on our cloud data centre.

managing their digital platform.

Organic

Organic

joined the GeM platform in the quarter. 

Power Delhi Distribution, Mahanagar Gas, National Insurance Company and Vodafone Mpesa. 
In August 2018, we launched the advertising platform on our ‘.OOO’ domain and garnered 

Our Company completed acquisition of payments solutions provider, Vavian International in the 

bank payment player in terms of number of payments processed in the UAE.

Q1

Q2

Q3

8  | 
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Inorganic

Organic

 We 

as money transfer, mobile recharges, bill payments, travel booking and Bharat Bill Pay System 
(BBPS) to the unbanked and underbanked people in India. 

Inorganic

We added many new merchants in the quarter including Indian School of Business (ISB), 
BookMyShow,, Jumeirah Golf Estates and Maharashtra Housing and Area Development 
Authority (MHADA).

 One such strategic 

our payments and platforms businesses in the Middle East and Africa region.

Arab League countries using UniPropitia’s experience and network in the Arab region.

Q4

Statutory Reports 
Financial Statem

ents
Corporate O

verview
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DELIVERING STRONG 

FINANCIALS

Key performance indicators

J in million

J in million

J in million J in million (%)

J in million J in million

(x)

*** Equity is net of Goodwill

Debt Debt/Equity***

(%)

PAT Margin

0.02

2.6 37 0.01

1,362 0.18

10.5 670 0.07

100% �

143% �

152% �

EBITDA

** Margin

41% �

160% �

2,882 668 46

1.6

3,370

87 88

1,028 274

8.1

4,413

563 435

830

18.8

1,152

5,414

881

1,880

22.4

1,535

Infibeam Avenues Limited
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J in million J in million

**** Capex excludes IPO money utilised

Capex****

J in million

2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

2017-18 2017-18 2017-18

2018-19 2018-19 2018-19

2,127 496 -209

6,630 119 239

7,827 1,898 593

26,259 1,143 973

27,376 167 3,393

***** Equity is net of goodwill

(%)

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

*****

-7.1

2.0

6.1

9.9

11.9

� 4 year CAGR

� 5 year CAGR

� 3 year CAGR

Statutory Reports 
Financial Statem

ents
Corporate O

verview
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SCRIPTING A MULTI�YEAR 

GROWTH STORY

Chairman’s message

Dear Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to share with you  
our performance for FY 2018-19. 
It was a year of consolidation wherein 
we reaped the benefits of investments 
made in earlier years, moved away 
from non-core businesses and took 
initial steps to further expand our 
international business. 

Going forward, growth of Indian 
economy is likely to witness some 

sectors
Consumption of internet services 
in India has surged in recent 
years amid falling costs of both 
smartphones as well as data. 

emphasis of the government on 

cash payments could have ripple 

rely heavily on internet usage for 

and hotel bookings, among others. 
A young, aspiring population with 
rising disposable incomes will drive 
consumption demand in India and 
aid all sectors related to internet 

remained favourable during the 

of the fastest growing larger 
economies of the world. Factors 
pivotal to our economy namely 
private investments, gross capital 
formation, private consumption, 
construction activity and exports 
showed improving momentum. 

purchasing power in the hands of 
the population and also propelled 
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to 
prune rates and adopt a neutral 
stance around its monetary 
policies. As the RBI treads the path 

sectors could see robust growth 

sector, larger companies are better 
placed to chalk out and execute 
inorganic growth strategies. 

technology infrastructure will be 

sustain the exponential growth 

backbone of the digital economy 
and hence hold immense promise 
for future. 

Creating value, consistently

year for IAL. We made long strides 
in our payments businesses 
by exploring both organic and 

business continues to grow from 
strength to strength with rising 
acceptance among users and 
growing number of merchants. 

12  |
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Payments processed by us more 
than doubled as compared to FY 

in the number of average daily 
merchant additions. Our bill 
payments business, housed 
under BillAvenue grew rapidly 
as we partnered with multiple 

business grew its bookings as well 

buoyant performance in the year 
under review. In GeM, annual 

I173 billion as many government 
buyers registered and started 
procuring from the GeM platform 
and added many products and 
services on the platform. 

During the year under review, we 
made investments in acquiring 

potential companies on one hand, 
and we divested our stake in the 

on the other hand. We are leaving 
no stone unturned in capturing all 
opportunities to drive both organic 
and inorganic growth. 

international markets during the 
year by acquiring and collaborating 
with couple of companies in the 
Middle East regions. International 
market currently forms 37% of 
our consolidated revenues. We 
are focusing on increasing our 
international presence, especially 

opportunity for our web services.

Strong operational performance 
was a precursor to our robust 

consolidated revenues grew 38% 
to I
our web services business grew 
77% owing to robust performance 
of our payments business. Our 

compared to previous year. 

stood at I1,263 million and grew 
43% over the preceding year. We 

technology companies globally and 
continue to create value for our 
shareholders.

The road ahead

strategies to take our Company to 
the next level. Our key strategic 
priorities include growing the share 

which allows us to scale our 

across all our business segments, 
build bespoke solutions to grow the 

as ResAvenue and GeM, expand 

international markets, and continue 

our processes and activities.

Given our leading position, we are 
well poised to participate in the 

and digital payments market in 

infrastructure and play a crucial 
part in driving the next wave of 
digitalisation in India. 

We are committed to embrace 
the best corporate governance 
practices in our operations and 
achieve higher transparency in our 

of Directors engages closely with 
the leadership team and acts as 
a guiding light to provide course 
correction, wherever needed. 

Before I conclude, I would like to 

to our talent pool for their 
unwavering commitment to the 
organisation. I would also like 
to thank all our stakeholders, 
including customers, merchants, 
partners, and the society at large 
for their support to us. 

We seek your continued trust, 

multiplying growth in future. 

Best Regards,

Ajit Mehta 

"We are committed to embrace the best corporate 
governance practices and achieve higher 
transparency in our operations"

WEB SERVICES REVENUE

₹ 9,565 million

77%*
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USHERING IN THE NEXT WAVE 

OF VALUE CREATION

MD’s message

Dear shareholders,

Fiscal year 2018-19 was another year 
of unparalleled, all-round growth and 
robust profitability for our Company. 
During the year, we continued to 
excel in all aspects of our web 
services, especially digital payments 
business, to deliver a virtually 
flawless performance. Our consistent 
performance has reinstated our faith 
in our long-term strategies, besides 
motivating us to progress on our path 
with renewed zeal and vigour. 

by entering into the infrastructure segment via our data centre 

we are looking to equip our payments and platforms businesses 
to make a smooth transition into the next phase of growth. 

capabilities and robust infrastructure capabilities to handle the 

secure manner for us and the industry. 

We believe that blockchain technology will be a game changer 
for the open and shared digital economy spanning payments, 

to develop, implement and promote blockchain application and 

Our other two businesses, namely payments and platforms too 
performed exceptionally during the year on both operational 

few merchants processed payments through us, while in the 

₹1,350 million

200

Payment processed everyday

New merchants using payment 
gateway everyday

Infibeam Avenues Limited
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UAE, many top retail corporate 
brands, use CCAvenue payment 
gateway solution. During the year, 
we added on an average over 200 
new merchants every day on our 
payments business, doubling the 

for digital payments in India and the 
acceptance and acceleration of this 
industry.

Our platforms business has further 
cemented its leading position in 
the industry by adding many new 
merchants. We have also seen a 
rapid growth in the GeM business. 
Our bill payments platform, which 
combines the best of both worlds 
namely online and physical bill 
payments, recorded healthy growth 
during the year. Currently, over 
I12.5 million worth of bills are paid 
every day through our BillAvenue 
platform and we aim to double 

Similarly, ResAvenue and GeM 
businesses carried forward the 
momentum during the year with 
ResAvenue business consistently 
doubling over the last few years 
and GeM tripling over the last year. 
We believe this momentum will 
continue in our platforms business.

is concerned, we grew our 

time expenses booked towards 
the merger with CCAvenue, as 

business. Although, excluding other 

"We are making the requisite investments 
in strengthening our people, processes and 
practices and are looking to capture all the 
emerging opportunities of both organic and 
inorganic growth"

On to the next level

growth across all our businesses 
in future and are taking all the 
requisite steps in this direction. 

strategy to grow our payments 
business. One, expand in 
international markets by catering to 
both existing and new merchants. 
We have made strategic alliances 
and investments in our payments 
subsidiary in the UAE and we will 
spread our wings into the Saudi 

Second, continue to focus on 

promise for future. 

Continued scaling of our bill 
payments and GeM segments will 
fuel future growth of the platforms 
business. It is our constant 
endeavour to add more merchants/
users within our universe and take 
this business to greater heights. 

act as a facilitator in the scale up 
of our payments and platforms 
operations, besides providing 

functions. 

We are making requisite 
investments in strengthening our 
people, processes and practices 
and are looking to capture all the 
emerging opportunities of both 
organic and inorganic growth. 

As we embark on our future 

evolving into a more responsible, 

oriented organisation. 

I would like to thank our Board of 
Directors, the entire team of IAL, 
investors and all other stakeholders 
for being the constant pillar of 
support in our journey so far. We 
are committed to create value for 
all of you in a responsible manner. 
Let us all work together to deliver 
higher value and multiply our 
growth manifold.

Best Wishes,

Vishal Mehta 
Managing Director

Adding Value, Multiplying Growth |  15
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THE MACRO OPPORTUNITIES…

...OUR RESPONSE TO THE SAME

Our external environment

Continued emphasis by the Government on reducing the 
number of cash transactions, along with rising awareness 

the payment habits of Indians. Online payments provide 
higher convenience to users and the regulators and 
government are playing a proactive role in building a 

infrastructure to facilitate digital payments to increase 
cashless transactions. While many people have digital 

growth is more than 25% to 30% per year, yet only 5% 
of trade in India is done online, compared with 15% in 
China in 2015 (Source: McKinsey report, Digital India, 

rise exponentially in the next two years presenting an 
enormous growth opportunity for us.

model. Our aim is to grow through the 

it is more direct in nature and lends 
high visibility and scalability to our 
business growth.

In order to make the most of the digital India story, we intend to 
make our products portfolio more granular in nature. By introducing 
innovative and bespoke products and solutions, we will be able to 

to grow rapidly, we are looking to launch more such verticalised 
 

services to the country’s hinterlands and straight into 
customers’ hands. Internet users are projected to increase 

has led to rise in the online shoppers paying digitally for 
their consumption. Digital consumption is permeating 
into various sectors from entertainment to pharma and 
general consumption of food and grocery. We are likely to 

of users, merchants and transactions rapidly. 

based revenues
 

of our solutions

Following are the prominent macro enablers for our businesses.

Our strategies have been framed after doing a thorough deep-dive into these opportunities 
and are aimed at capturing them efficiently, by staying ahead of the curve. 

in India

2014

2016 2022

2019 2021

FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

High Level Committee on Deepening of Digital 

2.4

60 million 475 million 

22.4 220

<100,000 ~350,000 >800,000

Our strategic priorities

16  |
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In a world which is rapidly embracing digitalisation and 
revamping its businesses accordingly, we want to expand 
our wings beyond India. We believe there is immense 
scope to scale up our business in emerging markets like 
Arab League countries, North Africa and Eastern Europe, 
among others; where digital transactions are still lower 
and cash predominantly rules purchases. 

imbibed in our practices and we are committed to improve 

making us a better company, such approach also means 

growth capital for future.

Owing to rising consumption of data usage on mobile 
phones, incremental number of users are switching to 
various online platforms and apps for performing a wide 
variety of activities including shopping, booking hotels, 
paying bills, planning vacations and so on. Number of 
digital transactions and digital modes of payment have 
been on an uptrend. India topped globally with 4.8 billion 

India unit of the world's largest online video streaming 

showing increasing trends of usage of online services 

reach out to a vast pool of consumers in India and even 

services.

2017 2020

collected by Kantar IMRB

Only 2% of Indian MSMEs actively use 
online channels for business while 
30% are engaged and connected but 
not actively doing business online

grown by more than 15 times over the 
past three years

Lower number of online merchants 
in both India and the Middle East 
and North Africa (MENA)

300 million 700 million 
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POWERING INDIA’S 

CASHLESS ECONOMY

Business review: Payments

CCAvenue SNIP

Some of the key payment solutions, , are as follows

It automates, streamlines 

collections and payments 
via multiple payment 
modes. It accelerates cash 

and saves cost.

stream Payments (SNIP) 
allows to sell products 
and collect payments 

networks like Facebook, 

Pinterest, etc. instantly.

automatically create and 
send itemised, recurring 
and bulk invoices in 
multiple currencies.

create an automated 
and customisable 
subscription plan and 
collection of recurring 
payments through 
multiple payment 
modes.

Our payment business, through our brand CCAvenue, is one of India’s oldest and premier 
online payment gateways, established in the year 2001. We are a B2B player and our 
payment solutions allow businesses to accept payments through various online modes. 
CCAvenue is one of India’s largest direct debit engine with over 240 payment options 
to process payment transactions in real time. All our solutions offered are SaaS-based, 
multi-channel, multi-lingual and multi-currency, allowing us to launch our payment 
solution in any geography in the world. We have payment operations in India and the UAE 
and are soon launching in Saudi Arabia. We are compliant with PCI DSS 3.2.1, the world’s 
latest safety standard.

 �

 � Neutral payment gateway having one of 
the highest payment options

 � Associated with ~58 banks to process net 
banking

 � Associated with most debit and all credit 
cards

 � Maximum EMI and digital wallet options

 � Allows payments through UPI platform

 �

 � White label payment gateway for banks; 
e.g Kotak Bank AllPay

Infibeam Avenues Limited

18  |  



 � India’s digital payments industry is likely to grow 
31% annually from 2017 to touch $1 trillion by 
2023  Credit Suisse

 �

to contribute 37% by 2025 compared to 13% in 
2015  

 Google BCG study, Digital Payments 2020

 �

appointed by RBI is targeting 220 transactions 
per month by March 2021 

 �

brands and banks

 �

 � Expect to process payments worth I

year
 � Grow merchant base and enhance reach across 

India 
 � Expand and increase market share in the UAE and 

Saudi Arabia
 �

 � Explore credit lending online

We are among the top online payment gateway service providers in India, in terms 

payment companies. We rank second in the UAE in terms of payment processing.

d 

 � In India, cashless transactions per person 

2018, compared to 34 in Indonesia and 782 in 
Singapore in 2017

   Report of High Level Committee on Deepening of 

 � Digital retail to increase its share of trade 
from 5% currently to ~15% by 2025  

 Google BCG study, Digital Payments 2020
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POWERING INDIA’S CASHLESS 
ECONOMY

Annual transactions

Payments processed daily

125 million+

₹1,350 million 

 
K 

CCAvenue
Key Clients in India

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 *

65
,0

00

12
2,

00
0

21
5,

50
0

* Includes payments processed worth AED 
1.2 billion in the UAE

payment processing services 

in India process online payments 
using CCAvenue payment gateway

70%

90+ of the top 100 
e-merchants 
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Instant Global Paytech

We made investments in high-growth opportunities in select 
markets and businesses.

It operates through the brand ‘Go Payments’ to provide services such as money transfer, mobile recharges, bill 
payments and travel booking, among others. We bought 48% stake in the company for a consideration of  
₹ 

in India.

in the remittances segment globally.

Key statistics

Key statistics

Key statistics

It is an online payment solutions provider based in Dubai and serving the UAE. We acquired Vavian International 

� Page no. 22-23 
Given that value per transaction is much higher in the Middle East as compared to India, this business will also aid 
our margins in future.

Annual transactions

Growth in cross border 

Agents onboarded in four 
months serving lakhs of 
customers

Payments processed in  

Growth in monthly 
transaction value four 
months after launch

In the UAE

Growth in daily GMV in  
 

Estimated growth in 
payments processed in  

run rate

Expected annual growth in 

1 million

50x

2500

AED 1.2 billion

44x

12x

Rank 2nd

>50%

50% 

>75%
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CCAvenue UAE

Em-POWERING DIGITAL PAYMENTS 
IN THE UAE

Sobha Middle East

Brandsforless

Fitness First

Hilton Hotels

Risxos Bab Al Bahr

Radisson Blu

Habtoor Grand Resort  
Autograph

La Perle By Dragone

Rehlat

Cox & Kings

Vfs Global

Udrive

Qatar Insurance

Middlesex University

Manipal University

We are among the leading non-bank payment solutions provider 
in the UAE. We have over 500 clients, including many reputed 
companies and brands. Some of them include
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UPPING THE DIGITAL GAME

Business review: Infrastructure

Data centre

Distinct features Activities to be used for

During the year, we forayed into the segment of infrastructure or data 

centre-as-a-service and have built a state-of-the-art data centre in Gift City, 

Gandhinagar. This centre will enable us to run applications at super-fast speed 

in a highly secured environment. It has received Tier-III design certification 

from Uptime Institute as it is equipped with fully redundant and dual-powered 

servers, storage, network links and other IT components. It is designed to have 

an uptime of 99.98% (no more than 95 minutes of downtime per year).

By setting up this data centre, 
we have multiplied our capability 

adaptability in search processes, 

user interfaces, and deliver 

and more relevant search results 

also empower us to better control 

our proprietary technology and 
customer information, better 
manage customer and market 
analytics, ensure superior 

disaster recovery support 
infrastructure. It will serve as a 
data centre for us and we will also 
open it for storage and compute 
services to third parties.

We are looking to migrate the 
entire data of our platforms as 
well as payments businesses 
from other cloud service 
providers to this data centre 
soon.

Our data centre at a glance

 � First IBM LinuxONE in India to 
run public cloud services

 � First production ready 
blockchain platform in India 
running on HyperLedger

 � Partnered with Primechain 

border blockchain invoicing 
platform exclusively for our 
data centre

 � Act as public cloud to meet 
demand for IaaS, SaaS, PaaS 
and DBaaS among enterprise 
customers in India 

 � Develop cross border 
blockchain invoicing platform

 � Meet increased demand for 
cloud service

 � Cater to the increased need 
for data security and data 
localisation due to regulatory 
requirements

 �

insurance (BFSI)

 � Pharmaceuticals

 �

 � Manufacturing

 � Education

 � Government 

 �

 � Importers

 � Exporters

 � And more …

Infibeam Avenues Limited
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business in India

Country

USA 117.8

China 23.7

India 5.4

351.8

 

garner higher wallet share from them. Many marquee companies have embraced the .ooo domain and 
we are witnessing healthy additions in this business. 

countries around the world and represent a vast opportunity 
for leading domain businesses.

has been accepted by leading global domain registrars 
such as CentralNIC (UK), Bigrock (India), Superregistry 

EuroDNS (Luxembourg), Goodluck Domains (USA), 

store for the domain.

revenue model.

 � Provides merchants with a unique brand name 
for their business

 � Acts as an advertisement platform to enable 

 � A single online solution comprising .ooo domain, 

payment solutions and various ancillary web 
services support

 �

domain

~324,000 ~100,000

Source
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CONNECTING INDIA 

Business review: Platforms

bill payment facility to customers across India through a network of agents via multiple payment modes, including cash 

payments from cash to electronic channel. We are licensed by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to operate as a Bharat Bill 

BillAvenue allows us to foray into bill payments where we had negligible market share previously. We have been building 

bill payment solution. On one hand, we collaborate with billers to fetch bills and digitise them for electronic presentment 

payments at a local level. Currently, BillAvenue is fetching bill payments through its vast agent institution partners 

unlike most other peers.

 �

agent institutions

 � Single and simple integration

 � Instant payment receipt

 � Wide network 

 � Guaranteed settlement cycles

 � Customer support

 �

Revenue will accure 
from biller side

Revenue will accure 
from agent side

 �

as per an RBI study

 � A billion consumers across India and majority of them 
still make bill payments in cash

 � BBPS is looking at expanding the number of channels 
and number of biller categories

 � BBPS will soon add nearly 2 million agents across 
India to further expand bill payments network

 � NPCI plans to enrol agent institutions – money 
transfer agents, business correspondents, common 

B
ill

er
 

A
ge

nt
 in

st
it

ut
io

n

ELECTRICITY

SCHOOL FEES COLLEGE FEES SUBSCRIPTION

INSURANCE
MUTUAL  
FUNDS

CREDIT CARD 
PAYMENT

GOVERNMENT   
PAYMENT

GAS SUPPLY WATER/
MUNCIPALITY

TELEPHONE DTH

26  |

Infibeam Avenues Limited



 �

 �

 �

 �

 � Double the value of bills processed every year 

Key billers on-boarded

Daily bill processing

Live agents

Agent institutions

Indian cities and towns 
covered

Billers
₹ 12.5 million

500,000+

144

2,600

23

Corporate O
verview
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CONNECTING INDIA

complete Central Reservation System (CRS) for hotel reservation and distributes hotel inventory, integrated with our 

 �

media booking, discounts & promotions, payment solutions and invoice payments

 �

 �

many more

 �

 �

branded hotels, considering India’s average occupancy rate of 70% (Source: CARE Ratings)

 �

Meta SearchSocial Media

Hotel Website

Worldspan
by Travelport

Infibeam Avenues Limited
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 �

revenues

 � Double the number of hotel 
properties using our solution 

Hotels

Integrated 1,000+
Room nights booked 
every day

1,500+
Annual room nights & 
booking amount 

>110% �

� 3 year CAGR

Corporate O
verview
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 �

platform

 � Can cater to diverse set of large 
corporations and government 
enterprises

 � Provides enterprises with a modular, 
customised and personalised online 
store with payment solutions and other 
support

 � Access to multiple online sales channels 

 �

implement large number of transactions

 � Provides advanced hosting and 
technology infrastructure, search engine 

other marketing tools

 � Large corporations and government 
enterprises 

 �

 � Healthy additions of merchants to 
continue

 � Built using our enterprise platform, GeM 
is the national public procurement portal 
of the Government of India

 � Completely paperless, cashless and 

minimal human interface

 �

catalogue management, powerful search 

analytics, among others 

 �

auction facility

 � Can be accessed from web and mobile

 � Increases transparency and reduces time 
and costs

 � Central and state governments, 
government agencies and PSUs globally

 � Linked to the gross merchandise value or 
procurement value on GeM � Page no. 31 

 � Procurements growth pegged at 

CONNECTING INDIA
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During the year, we entered into two strategic 
alliances to make greater inroads in the UAE.

Formed an agreement with UAE-based 
ALROWAD Technologies wherein both 
companies will share knowledge and 
expertise to develop a multi-currency and 
multi-country e-commerce marketplace. 
Together, we will build a payment platform 

implemented large-scale projects in the 
UAE to provide digital solutions for UAE Civil 
Defence, including permits and monitoring.

We sold a 51% stake in our UAE subsidiary to 

group for a consideration of $25 million. The 
latter has invested in multiple technology 
companies across the Middle East and the 
Arab League and will enable us to expand into 
the 22 member Arab League countries. 

(₹ billion)

(E): Estimated

4

173

500

1,000

2,000

Corporate O
verview
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FOCUSING ON THE CORE

Divestments

We undertook significant consolidation during the year and decided to focus on our 
core businesses of PIP. Our intent is to grow each of these three businesses and 
optimise allocation of resources such as capital and management bandwidth in 
future. For reference, our core businesses of web services enable digital transactions 
and include digital payments, data centre infrastructure and e-commerce 
technology platforms for government and enterprise clients.

In sync with this strategy, our Company gave up control and / or divested its stake 

as well as platform solutions to small and medium enterprises.  

has acquired 51% ownership in our subsidiary for a consideration 

several Arab League countries.

Under this deal, we divested 100% stake in IIL to Ingenius 
₹ 600 million. 

integrated supplier of food & agriculture, chemicals, pharma, 
polymers & additives and other industrial raw materials globally.

We divested NSI to Suvidhaa Infoserve (Suvidhaa). Under  
the deal, Suvidhaa bought 5% stake with control in NSI for  
₹

₹ 5,000 million 

connectivity and delivery throughout India. We aspire to create 

and online segments and is more connected to the entire supply 
chain (including retail). 

Infibeam Avenues Limited
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RECOGNISED FOR 

OUR EXCELLENCE

Awards and Accolades

Facilitator
Best Digital Payments company

Combination
Best eCommerce Payment 
Innovation

Best Digital Payment 
Facilitator 

Fastest Growing Online 
Service Provider in UAE

Best Online Payments Facilitator

Consumer Durable & 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION 

AND ANALYSIS

34  |  Annual Report 2018-19

Infibeam Avenues Limited

A. ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
GLOBAL

Global economic growth slowed to 3.6% in 2018 (Source: 

US-China trade tensions, macroeconomic issues in 
Argentina and Turkey and volatility in crude prices 
weighed heavily on the second half of the year. The US 
was an outlier among advanced economies, with its 
GDP expanding by 2.9% during the year versus 2.2% in 
2017, driven by a strengthening US dollar ($), neutral 

Eurozone slowed to 6.9% and 1.8%, respectively, largely 
due to sluggish domestic demand.

2017

2018

2019F

2020F

3.3

3.8

3.6

3.6

Global Growth (GDP) Trend
(%)

F = Forecasted
Source: International Monetary Fund, World Economic 
Outlook, April 2019

Outlook
Although downside risks remain, global economic 
growth could witness an uptick in the second half of 2019 
as major economies maintain an accommodative policy 
stance on the back of potential downward adjustments 

developing economies, thereby improving investor and 
consumer sentiment, especially in China and India. 

INDIA
India, the world’s sixth largest economy, was one of the 
fastest growing major economy in FY 2018-19. An increase 
in private investments, robust gross capital formation 
and improved exports, along with strong momentum 
in private consumption and steady construction activity 
bolstered the country’s economy.

single digits for most part of the year. Consequently, the 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) reverted to a ‘neutral’ stance 

October and December 2018). The RBI cut the repo rate 
by 25 basis points in its last policy review of FY 2018-19 
to strengthen the economy and improve liquidity in the 

above the 3.3% target) due to the Government of India’s 
prudent measures, despite being in an election year. 

The Indian rupee (INR) remained tepid for most part of 
the year and hit a low of 74.48 against the US dollar due 

from domestic markets.

India’s GDP Growth
(%)

FY 2016-17 

FY 2017-18

FY 2018-19

FY 2019-20F

6.8

7.1

6.7

7.2

F = Forecast
Source: CSO, RBI

Key Macro Growth Enablers 

Favourable demographics (young, aspiring 

players

Outlook
India’s economy is expected to grow at 7.2% in FY 
2019-20, as the impact of wide-ranging reforms such 
as Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Housing for All by 
2022, pursued in the past two to three years, becomes 
fully visible. This, in turn, should drive consumption 
and investments in the country. Another reason for this 
stable growth is India’s low exposure to a slowdown in 
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global manufacturing trade vis-à-vis other major Asian 
economies and emerging markets. 

B. INDUSTRY INSIGHT
Growth in internet services in India and its adoption, 
acceptance and acceleration globally in the last 

internet comprising, Digital Payment Solutions, Cloud 
Infrastructure and E-Commerce Technology Platform. 
We believe, going forward, more and more services 
will be made available through the internet which will 
increase the demand for our Web Services.

Internet services have grown rapidly in India over the 
past few years and this momentum is likely to continue in 
future as well. With over half a billion internet subscribers, 
India is well poised to become the second largest internet 
services market in the world by 2034 (Source: IBEF 
report). A young and aspirational population, growing 
per capita income, rising penetration of smartphones 
and internet are the key enablers for growth of internet 
services. Favourable government policies and regulatory 
push towards growing awareness and adoption of digital 
platforms will play a prominent role in driving growth 
of internet services in the country. Number of cashless 
transactions per person in India has grown rapidly from 
2.4 in 2014 to 22.4 in 2019 and is likely to grow ten-folds 
to 220 in the year 2021 (Source: High Level Committee 
on Deepening of Digital Payments, May 2019). More and 
more consumers are preferring to use digital platforms 

and payments domains, in turn, driving demand for 
internet services. 

The internet services sector comprises all businesses 
that use internet as the primary medium for generating 
revenues such as e-commerce, e-travel and ticketing, 

Size of the internet services sector in India is estimated 
at ~$34 billion and is projected to grow at a CAGR of 
17.7% between 2017 and 2022 to reach $76.4 billion. 
Among the internet users globally, India consumes 
highest amount of internet data. Currently, only 40% 
of India’s population uses the internet, indicating a 
huge potential to further ramp up internet penetration. 
This will drive the consumption of our web services. 

Below we will share insights about the industry we 
operate in, which we believe is slated for high growth 
for many years. We believe, we are best positioned to 
take the advantage of the growth that is expected in 
the regions where we have operations leading to strong 

Digital Payments
India is dominated by cash-based transactions. 
However, Indian consumers are gradually accepting 
digital payments platforms and apps. Rising internet 
penetration, growing number of smartphones, drastic fall 
in data usage charges, increasing online shoppers paying 
digitally, demonetisation, innovation in digital payments 
in India around safe and instant transfer through UPI and 
IMPS, vast array of digital payment options for customers 
to choose from, MDR waiver on Debit Card transactions 
up to a certain amount, government initiatives to make 
India a cashless economy, are some enablers to the 
growth of digital payments in India.

1. Increasing internet 
penetration

2. Rising disposable 
income

3. Growing use of 
smartphones

4. Higher proportion of 
young population

5. Rising adoption of 
digital payments

6. 
new technologies

7. Rapid urbanisation
8. Growing availability 

of localised online 
content

Ke
y 

G
ro

w
th

 
D

ri
ve

rs
 o

f 
In

te
rn

et
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 In

di
a

2014

5.4

26.2 560m 18 8,320mb 6.1%

0.1%86mb2.2

239m

2014 2018 2014 2018 2014 2018 2014 20182018

Number of  
cashless 
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per person

Monthly data 
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per unique 
connection

Number of  
smartphones  
per 100 people

Monthly data 
price (per 1gb  
as % of  
monthly GDP)

Total Number 
if internet 
users

Digital usage in India : All set for exponential growth

Source: McKinsey Report, March 2019
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As per Payment System Indicators (PSI) data published 
by RBI, payment transactions through mobile banking 
has increased from 0.17 billion in FY 2015 to over nearly 
6.1 billion transactions in FY 2019, and the value of the 
transaction during the same period has increased by 
nearly 28x to ` 28.75 trillion (approximately over $400 
billion). Moreover, the growth in volume and value of 
mobile banking transactions in FY 2019 over FY 2018 was 
206% and 86% respectively, amounting to growth of 4.1 
billion transactions worth ` 13.3 trillion (approximately 
$191 billion). Growth in value of mobile banking 
transactions is also nearly 3.7x higher that the growth in 
Debit and Credit Card point of sale (POS) transactions in 
the last one year. This is one of the main reasons why we 
have chosen to be an online digital payments company 

Volume of Mobile Banking in India in FY 2018-19

6.1 billion
35x over FY 2014-15

Source: RBI, NPCI

Value of Mobile Banking in India in FY 2018-19

28,745 billion
28x over FY 2014-15

Source: RBI, NPCI

Digital Payments* in India: 5-year Trends

 Volume (mn)    Value (` bn.)    Value/transaction (`)

FY19

10,672

30,877

16,855

3,096

5,4442,940

13,9153,958
4,501
1,137486

2,516
1,222

4,733

2,893

FY18FY17FY16FY15

* m-Wallet + PPI Cards + Mobile Banking
Source: RBI, NPCI

Based on a BCG Google report released in July 2016, 
Digital Payments 2020: The making of a $500 billion 
ecosystem in India, the growth in digital channels has 
been the highest and continues to grow at 50% YoY and 
post-demonetization it has been even more. As per the 
report, mobile and internet based transactions increased 
from 3% of all the digital transactions in FY 2013 to 
9% in FY 2015. 

We believe, the mobile and internet based transactions, 

the trends observed in the PSI data sourced from the RBI. 
We also believe that, excluding all P2P (person to person) 
transactions, we would be processing a high single digit 
percentage of all online digital transactions, in terms of 
value of digital payments, in India. 

2%  Mobile
Digital 
Channesl

Branch 
Based

ATM

Growth 
(FY14 
over 
FY13)

Growth 
(FY15 
over 
FY14)

 ECS3

 POS
 Internet
  NEFT 
 (in Branch)
 Cheque
 Cash
 ATM

2%1%
8%

20%

51%50%51%

FY13 FY14 FY15

26%

12%

25%

10%
6%

4%
1%3%

+12%

1% 3%
3%

Number of Transaction (Bn)
Indian Banking Industry

4%
1%

9%

6%

50%

5%

10%

52%

-7%

75%

Sources: FIBAC Productivity Survey 2015; RBI; IBA; BCG analysis. 
1.  ATM/CDM includes withdrawals transactions at ATM and 

deposit transactions at CDMs. ATM and Mobile transactions 

2.  Traditional channels include Cash and Cheque. Cash 
transactions refer to counter cash transactions within branch. 

channels but once set up. 

4.  E-commerce transactions to include electronic transactions 
using debit and credit cards

Also, as per the report, by 2025, digital payments 
percentage of transactions is expected to grow taking on 
the bulk of the growth, not just in terms of existing but 
also new growth, from 13% to projected 37% by 2025.

Digital Growth Journey from 13% in 2015 to 37% in 2025

92%

2005 2010 2015 2020 2025

5%
1% 2%

89%

5%
3%

3%

78%

13%
2%

7%

60%

26%

1%

12%

41%

37%

1%

21%

 Card    Digital    Other paper    Cash

Sources: BCG Analysis, Euromonitor Passport, 2015.
1.  Digital includes electronics payments direct/ACH, mobile 

based payments etc.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION 
AND ANALYSIS
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In the industry, digital payments comprise, P2P payments 
and P2M (person-to-merchants or person-to-business). 
As per the report the industry size is expected to reach 
$500 billion by 2020 and majority of the digital payment 
ecosystem will be of P2M worth $224 billion (see chart 
above). We operate in the P2M space and we consolidate 
as an aggregator various online payment options 
and all the companies that provide P2M payments. 

well as to users. 

Despite the fast growth of digital payments in India, 
about 70% of total transactions in value terms and 90% 
of transactions in volume terms are still made via cash 
mode. This indicates that there is still immense scope 
to grow digital payments in future. Given the size of the 
opportunity of digital payments in India, projected by 
various reputed institutions, from $500 billion in 2020 
to $1 trillion by 2023, we believe, with our presence in 
digital payments industry in India for nearly two decades 
and connectivity with most of the web merchants in 

We also have digital payments business in the UAE where 
we rank second in terms of payments processed. UAE, like 
India, has traditionally been a cash market. We are also 

as a percentage of GDP is above 35%. The Middle East 
region is opening up to digital transactions and there is a 

We believe there is a potential for us to double the 
payments processed every year from approximately 
` 500 billion we processed in FY19 to ̀  1 trillion in FY 2020 
to ̀  

We are very well positioned to be able to take on more 
as we keep on building up scale through our expansion 
in India and in international markets & through our 
investments in high growth opportunities involving cross 

for unbanked and underbanked.

Global trade remittance market is estimated to be around 
$1.5-3.0 trillion as per various market research reports. 
Global P2P remittance market was $689 billion in 2018 
as per ‘The World Bank 2018, Migration and Remittance 
brief #30’. We expect, our Investee Company, Avenues 
Payments India Pvt Ltd, to process around $5 billion in 
FY 2020 from $2 billion in FY 2019. 

Our investee company, Instant Global Paytech Pvt Ltd 
(IGPL), known by the brand-name ‘Go Payments’ through 
technology deployment, enables access of digital 
payment platform for unbanked and underbanked 
population of over 700 million across India including 

recharges, bill payments, travel booking, insurance, and 

In less than 6 months of operations, ‘Go’s’ transaction 
volume has already increased 12x signifying huge 

Bill Payments Industry
Indian government in its endeavour to increase digital 
payments realized that utility payments was the key to 
be able to generate digital transactions. So they created 
a standardized platform where they are pooling all 
utilities and service providers to come on to a single 
platform, the Bharat Bill Payment (BBPS) platform, so 
that consumers across the country can pay for all utilities 
and services including taxes from a single window. 

Bill payments through Bharat BillPay is an initiative by 
RBI headed by NPCI to bring all billers, namely utility, 
aqua, telecom, DTH, taxes, credit cards, insurance, goods 
and colleges across the country under one roof for ease 
of convenience for customers to pay their bill in a single 
window without going to multiple places to pay multiple 

While the industry is talking about online payments, 

important part of this initiative is that it is not limited to 
online channels but also allows to accept cash at millions 
of convenient physical touch points across India, which is 
the addressable market for us.
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USD billion

• Remittances 
 - Domestic - migrant labor remittances 
 - International 
• Seamless P2P transfers 
 - Friends, family, etc. 
• Digital micro payments
 - Payments for services

• Salary payments for daily contract workers 
• Reimbursements 
• Refund payments 
• Dividends 

• DBT (Subsidy transfers) 
•  Welfare scheme money transfers 

e.g. NREGA 
• Government employee salary 

• Online merchant payments
 - E-comm, utility bills, etc. 
• Proximity payments 
 - In-store payments 
 - Cash on delivery 
• Travel and transport 

• Road toll 
• Tax 
• Payments for applications 
•  Payments to semi government 

organizations such as educational 
institutions 

• Digital supply chain payments 
 (Small business to business) 
 - Retailer to distributor 
 - Dealer payments etc. 
• Vendor payments 

• Taxes 
• Excise duty payments 
• Toll payments 

• Subsidies 
• Tax repayments 

•  Central government to state government 
transfers 

•  Budget allocation payments to government 
agencies

Govt. (G)

Merchant/
Bus (M/B)

Person 
(P/C)

Merchant/
Business (M/B)

Government 
(G)

Payment Destination

Source: BCG Analysis 
 Represents $ billion

1 include only SME transaction and not large corporate.

Currently G2B and G2G kept out scope due to limited mobile uptake in future
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We have been awarded a license by RBI based on 
certain criteria to function as an operating unit under 
the BBPS connecting both billers and the customers. 
As an operating unit under the BBPS there are only 
about nine to ten private players who have a license, we 
are one of them. 

In India, as per RBI study, more than 100 million bills got 
generated daily in 2013, and it is expected to increase to 
200 million daily by 2020. As per a report by KPMG, there 
are over 3.6 million PNG connections, over 6 million 
active DTH connections, over 1 billion mobile connection 
including pre-paid and post-paid. On an average the 
TRAI says that there are nearly a billion pre-paid cards in 
the country doing average of two transactions of ` 125 
(approx. $1.75) every month, which translates to daily 
value ` 2 billion (approx. $28 million) worth of recharge 
transactions every month that will potentially come 
on BBPS soon. Then there are broadband customers, 
power bills, utility bills which are currently under BBPS 
and will soon include insurance, municipal taxes, other 
taxes, school and college admission and examination 
fees, credit card payments, and many other categories. 
During the year, NPCI announced its plans to expand the 
number of channels for bill payments, add new biller 
categories and grow the number of agents to reach 
the hinterlands in India and increase penetration of 
digital bill payment mechanisms. This will open multiple 
growth avenues for private players focussed on digital 
bill payments. So the gist is that a consumer through one 
single outlet on any street will be able to pay all kinds of 

paying through an agent network across India.

This is where we are focussing to allow a consumer to 
pay bills across India through our vast agent network. 
We have 110 agent institutions out of 170 listed on 
NPCI’s website that are live with us. More than 30 agents 
have given their consent letters to work with us. We are 

is complete. These agent institutions are connected 
with over half a million agents in 2600 towns and cities 
across India interacting with collectively with millions of 
customers on a daily basis. This is a far larger addressable 
market for us than what is targeted collectively by most 
of the other BBPS players. These BBPS players are 
largely targeting online users. We have gone after the 

Currently, over ` 12.5 million worth of bills get paid 
through us daily through our BBPS platform, BillAvenue, 
which we aim to double every year. We earn both from 
billers as well as agents who we have on-boarded on a per 
transaction basis. We are adding new services, including 
recharge, which is already live, domestic money transfer 

Healthy Prospects for Digital Bill Payments in India

2013 2020E CAGR growth (%)
Bill payments by 
value (` billion)

1,593 3,920 14%

Bill payments by 
volumes (million)

1,560 3,380 12%

Source: KPMG
E: Estimated

C. REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
Operational Performance Review
Payments Business
• The number of payments processed by us grew 129% 

y-o-y in FY 2018-19, owing to higher transactions 
from existing merchants and strong addition of new 
clients, including few large merchants

• Average daily merchant additions stood at 200 
during the year, an increase of 50% on a y-o-y basis

Bill Payments Business (BillAvenue)
• Average amount of bills processed daily stood at 

~` 12.5 million

• We had over 5,00,000 active agents and 23 billers 
across 2,600 locations in India

• 75% agent institutions listed on the NPCI website are 
live on this platform

• We are adding 34 more agent institutions to take the 
total count to 144

• 
agent institutions, which form a larger addressable 
market than their online counterparts

ResAvenue Business
• Generated bookings worth ` 5,967 million for our 

hotel clients, a y-o-y growth of 50%

• Sold over 700,000 room nights through our platform; 
tripled in two years

GeM Business
• Annual procurement grew three times over the 

preceding year to ` 173 billion

• Over a million products and nearly 12,000 
services made available

• Nearly 250,000 registered sellers & service providers 
on the platform

• 23 states and 6 Union Territories have signed MoUs 
to procure goods & services from GeM

• Number of users grew 186% in calendar year 2018

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION 
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• Increased the volumes by 772% and value by 599% 
in calendar year 2018

• Delivered savings of ~25% on an average 
across categories

Other Highlights
• Launched our digital payments business in the 

Middle East by acquiring Vavian International 
and re-branding it as CCAvenue UAE

• Collaborated with IBM, Primechain Technologies to 
develop varied platforms around blockchain, cloud 
computing and others for our upcoming data centre 
in GIFT City, Gujarat, India

• Formed a strategic alliance with ALROWAD 
Technologies to expand payments and platforms 
business in the Middle East and Africa

• Acquired 48% stake in Instant Global Paytech to 

market of over 700 million Indians

• Robust growth in Avenues Payments, an investee 

platform to users and white-labelled for banks with 
blockchain technology

• Sold 51% stake in UAE subsidiary to UniPropitia 
group to grow in various Arab league countries

• Divested stake in non-core businesses, namely, 

Financial Performance Review
Critical Accounting Judgments

in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) under the historical cost convention on an accrual 

measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies 

issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI).  The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 
of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

of estimates, judgments, and assumptions that are 

statements. Although we believe that our estimates, 
assumptions, and judgments are reasonable, they are 
based upon information currently available. Actual results 

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax 
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable 

to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that 
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the 

planning strategies.

Estimate and assumption
The key assumptions concerning the future and other 
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

assumptions about future developments, however, may 
change due to market changes or circumstances arising 
that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second 

amendments to Ind ASs which the Group has not applied 

accounting policies.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash provided by (used in) 
(consolidated):

Year ended March 31

2019 2018

Operating activities 3,081.11 973.20 

Investing activities (2,219.55) (159.41)

Financing activities (543.22)          (967.64)

from operations and our cash and cash equivalents were 
` 1,317.17 million and ` 1,583.06 million as of March 31, 
2019 and 2018 respectively.

Cash provided by operating activities was ` 3,081.11 
million in year ended March 31, 2019 as against amount 
of ` 973.20 million in year ended March 31, 2018.

by cash payments we make for products and services, 
employee compensation (less amounts capitalised 

investing activities), payment processing and related 
transaction costs, operating leases, etc. Cash received 
from our customers and other activities generally 
corresponds to our net sales.

compared to the comparable prior year period, was 
primarily due to the increase in net income, excluding 
non-cash charges to net income such as depreciation, 
amortisation, and stock based compensation, and 
changes in working capital. 

Cash utilised in investing activities corresponds with 
cash utilised in capital expenditures, primarily due to 
investment in GIFT City building, Computer Software 
and Equipments, Components for Data Centre buildout, 
and other tangible assets. Cash utilised in investing 
activities was ` (2,219.55) million, and ` (159.41) million 

additional investments in support of continued business 
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growth due to investments in technology infrastructure, 
and additional capacity to support our operations. 
Stock-based compensation capitalised for internal-use 
software and website development costs does not 

` (543.22) million 
and ` (967.64) million in FY 2019 and 2018 respectively. 

result from repayment made towards borrowing, 
purchase of Treasury Shares by Trust and payment of 
Interest on borrowing. 

to meet our anticipated operating cash needs for at 
least the next 12 months. However, any projections 

substantial uncertainty.

We believe, from time to time, we shall consider 
the acquisition of, or investment in, complementary 
businesses, products, services, capital infrastructure, 

or issue additional equity or debt securities. There can 

instruments will be available in amounts or on terms 
acceptable to us, if at all.

Results of Operations (consolidated)
Revenue from operations
Revenue from operations include service and product 
sales. Service sales represents Digital Payment and 
Checkout Web Services, E-Commerce Related Web 
Services and Product sales represent revenue from the 
sale of products.

Service sales comprises revenue from providing complete, 
simple and secure online payment gateway and checkout 
web services, with a real-time transaction validation 
process and platforms. This enables e-commerce 
websites to sell products and services online, and accept 
payments in real time. And a comprehensive suite of 
E-Commerce related web services comprising of domain 
registry, technical analysis and testing of software 
web services, digital advertising, and infrastructure 
related services.

Product sales primarily include sale of various categories 
of products through online multi-brand retail trading 
activity by web portal using B2B and B2C verticals.

Net sales information is as follows (in millions):

Revenue from operations:

Year ended March 31

2019 2018

Sale of services 9,529.74 5,387.61

Sale of products 2,026.08 2,979.56

Other operating income 34.87 26.01

Consolidated Revenue 11,590.69 8,393.18

We are pleased to deliver substantial growth in revenue 
resulting to ` 11,591 million in FY 2019 (` 8,393 million in 
FY 2018), registering growth of 38%. What is particularly 
pleasing, is that, contribution of service revenue to 
total revenue has almost doubled. We are successful 
in rising our business in service segment by reporting 
revenue of ` 9,530 million and catering to larger number 
of merchants. Service revenue has grown by 76% in 
comparison to FY2018 contributing 82% in FY 2019 
compared to 64% in FY2018.

increased sales, including addition of merchants. 
Increased sales were driven by its core web services 
comprising platforms and payments businesses and scale 
through transaction-based revenue model. We have over 
800,000 merchants across our web services compared 
to less than 100,000 we had in FY 2017. We processed 
payments worth nearly ` 495 billion (including AED 1.2 
billion processed through our Middle East business), 
four times higher compared to just ` 120 billion in FY 
2017. We rank second in India in Payments business in 

Government e Marketplace (GeM) platform, increased 
three times in FY2019 to over ` 173 billion compared to 
procurements in FY 2017, where we earn on the value of 
procurement of each transaction. 

Operating Expenses (consolidated)
Information about operating expenses is as 
follows (in millions):

Operating expenses:

Year ended March 31

2019 2018

Payment gateway processing charges        3,928.69      1,785.43 

Cost of sales        2,025.76      2,878.81 

          735.96        558.88 

Finance costs             64.50          57.26 
Depreciation and 
Amortisation expense

          822.08        664.34 

Other expenses        3,138.38      1,602.94 

Total expenses   10,715.37   7,547.66 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION 
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Payment gateway processing charges:
It primarily consists of those costs incurred in operating 
online payment gateway with a real-time transaction 
validation process. Processing charges as a percentage 
of net sales may vary due to several factors, such as our 
level of productivity and accuracy, changes in volume 
and size. We have reported processing charges of ̀  3,929 
million in FY 2019 as against ` 1,785 million in FY 2018.

Cost of Sales
Cost of sales primarily consists of the purchase price 
of products. We divested this business last year so in 

contribution etc. along with cost of compensation of 
stock options issued to various employees. Our primary 
cost comprises of Technology costs to carry out research 
and development activities. Our prime requirement 
of employees is in various technological segments like 
application, production, design, maintenance, operation, 
and platform development for new and existing products 
and services and other technology infrastructure.

development so we may continue to enhance the 

through rapid technology developments while operating 
at an ever increasing scale. We expect spending in 
technology cost to increase over time as we continue to 
add employees and technology infrastructure.

We have reported employee cost of ` 736 million in FY 
2019 as against ` 559 million in FY 2018 resulting into 
marginal decrease of 0.30 % of consolidated revenue. 
The increase in cost is in view of new recruitment, 

During FY 2019, ` 77 million (` 139 million in FY 2018) 
capitalised in view of internal-use software enhancement 
/ upgradation and website development costs.

Finance Costs
Finance cost primarily consist of Interest on long term 
and short term borrowing as also on account of delay 
in payments of statutory dues. The expenses have 
remained same as % of total revenue primarily due to 
higher borrowing cost and its related processing charges.

Depreciation and Amortisation
There is a marginal decrease of 0.8% in Depreciation 
and Amortisation as a % of total revenue as compared 
to previous year primarily due to addition of intangible 
assets. Addition of assets consists of computer software, 
buildings, computer equipment’s, vehicle and other 
tangible assets purchases occurred during the year. 
Depending upon the nature of assets, useful life and 

amortised over a period.

Other expenses
Advertising expenses
We direct our customers to our several website 
properties primarily through a number of targeted 
online marketing channels, such as our sponsored 
search, email marketing campaigns, direct sales, and 
other initiatives. Our sales promotion expenses are 
largely variable, based on growth in sales and changes 
in rates. To the extent there is increased or decreased 

mix of these channels shifts, we would expect to see a 
corresponding change in our sales promotion expense.

There is an increase of 10% in advertising expenses as a % 
of total revenue as compared to previous year primarily 
due to spends in physical media properties including 
newspaper, radio as well as online advertisement and 
other promotional activities.

General and Administrative
The increase in general and administrative costs 

rates and taxes, power and fuel expenses and 
professional service fees.

Exceptional Items
Exceptional item (net of expense) was ` 472 million 
during FY 2019. The primary component of exceptional 

` 483 
million and Loss on sale of investment in associates  
` (10.75) million. These are exceptional since this are not 
regular business activity and one of odd transactions.

` 1,535 million for FY 2019 compared 
to ` 1,152 million in FY 2018 with a strong growth of 33%.

` 1,263 million for FY 2019 compared 
to ` 881 million in FY 2018 with a solid growth of 43%.

focus on its core web services comprising platforms 
and payments businesses and scale through 
transaction-based revenue model.

Key Financial Ratios (Consolidated)

Ratios FY 2018 FY 2019

Return on Net Worth * 9.9% 11.9%

Return on Invested Capital * 9.0% 8.4%

Debtors Turnover days 36.1 21.3

Inventory turnover days # 12.9 -

Interest Coverage Ratio $ 15.8x 14.6x

Current Ratio 2.0x 1.3x

Debt Equity Ratio * 0.07x 0.04x

10.8% 8.1%

10.5% 10.9%

* Net of goodwill
# Zero inventory in FY 2019
$ EBIT / Interest expense
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Guidance

expectations as at March 31, 2019, and are subject to 

economic conditions, world events, the rate of growth of 
the Internet, online commerce, and cloud services.

In the past 3 years, we have been doubling our digital 
payment processing business YoY.  Last year, we 
processed around ` 495 billion crore in digital payments 
processing (vs. ` 215.5 billion in FY18 and ` 122 billion 
in FY17). In upcoming three years, we hope to continue 
growing this business at high double digit to three digit 
growth rate. The Company records average revenue 
of 100 to 125 bps on processing volume while EBITDA 
margins on average are around 15 bps. If the business 
volume continues to grow at the same CAGR for coming 
three years, this business can generate annual revenues 
of ` 40 billion to ` 50 billion per year with EBITDA of ` 5 
billion to ` 6 billion in upcoming 3 years. With additional 
processing volumes from existing merchants, growing 
payments across new categories like utility payments as 
well as international expansion into multiple countries, 
we shall work hard to deliver on these numbers.  

On the platform business, it is reasonable to assume that 
the Company targets to earn EBITDA margins of around 
10 bps on transaction volume. GeM (Government e 
Marketplace) is the largest implementation on the 
platform.  For reference, GeM clocked over ` 173 billion 
for the year.  This year, based on public information, 
GeM is expected to target ` 500 billion to INR 1000 
billion. Assuming doubling of transaction volume YoY, 
the Company can target annual EBITDA margins of  
` 1 billion to ` 2 billion in upcoming three years.  

Our data center infrastructure business will be able to 
host both payments and platform business resulting in 
lowering of our expense and allowing both the business 

clients who want hosting, compute and storage.  It is 
reasonable to assume that this business can reach 
annual EBITDA of ` 300-500 million in upcoming 3 years.  

D. RISK FACTORS
Our business is subject to various risks. We are 
highlighting some of the key risks. You should carefully 
consider these risks and all other information in the 
Annual Report. Any of these risks could adversely 

condition and prospects.

1. We face intense competition in our business
  Our web services industry, and especially the 

digital payments industry is intensely competitive 
and we expect competition in the industry to 
continue to increase. Our present and future 
competitors may range from large and established 
companies to emerging startups, Indian as well 
as large multinational companies, operating in 
India and in International markets where we have 
our operations. Since the barriers to entry for the 
companies are relatively low, we may also face 
increased competition from new entrants in our 
industry. We may respond by increasing advertising 
and promotions, which may increase our costs and 

  Our competitors may have one or more of the 
following advantages compared to us – greater 

larger sales and marketing networks, greater 
knowledge of the target markets, more extensive 
research and development and technical capabilities, 

operating histories and/or strong branding and 
reputation. These advantages may assist them in 
attracting our merchants and customers. 

  The management of some of these competitors 
may have more experience in implementing their 
business plan and strategy. Our present and future 

resources may be able to innovate and provide 

than we can. If our competitors leverage on these 
qualities to provide comparable or superior services 
and products, and we are unable to respond 
successfully to such competitive pressures, our 

  There can be no assurance that we will have 

investments in pricing and other promotional 
programs or technological developments. We may 
be required to reduce our operating margins in 

market share. In the event that we are unable to 
provide superior services than our competitors, 
including superior technology, value added and 
user friendly services, we may not be able to attract 
customers to us, which could have material adverse 
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2.  The payment processing industry is intensely 
competitive in India

  The payment processing industry is very 
competitive. We are facing competition from new 

to increase their market share. They are backed 

heavy cash. Accordingly, these competitors may be 

prospective clients that we are not able to provide. 
Competition could result in a loss of existing 

Furthermore, if competition causes us to reduce the 
fees we charge in order to attract or retain clients, 
there is no assurance we can successfully control 

One or more of these factors could have a material 

and results of operations.

experience decelerated growth rates
  Our revenue growth may not be sustainable, 

and our percentage growth rates may decrease. 

on the continued growth of demand for the web 

through our agent network. Our business is 

conditions in India and in the regions we operate. 
It is impacted by the macro factors prevailing 
globally as well. A softening of demand, whether 
caused by changes in customer preferences or a 
weakening of the India or global economies, may 
result in decreased revenue and growth. 

other reasons, including some of the following:

 � Unfavorable changes in regulation;

 �

favorable terms;

 � the success of our service line and 
geographic expansions;

 � variations in the mix of services we sell;

 �

 � our ability to retain and expand our 
business network;

 � our ability to satisfy our customers’ demands 
and meet their expectations;

 � changes in usage or adoption rates of the 
Internet, e-commerce, electronic devices, and 
web services, in the regions we operate and 
where we plan to expand;

 �

and upgrades of our systems and infrastructure;

 � the outcomes of legal proceedings and 

monetary damages or injunctive relief and 
could have a material adverse impact on our 
operating results;

 � the extent to which we invest in technology and 
other expense categories;

 � our ability to collect amounts owed to us when 
they become due;

 � the extent to which use of our services is 

other spam emails, denial of service attacks, 
data theft, computer intrusions, outages, 
and similar events; and terrorist attacks and 
armed hostilities.

4.  Our expansion into new technology, 
geographical regions, other web services is 

competitive risks.

and rapid growth in our business operations from 
organic growth and acquisitions, which has placed, 

infrastructure. Our integrated Web Services 
business model involves wide range of modular, 
customizable solutions developed on an advanced 
technology platform. We continue to rapidly grow 
our business operations, targeting rapid merchant 
and customer acquisition in India as well as 
internationally, particularly in the Middle East, and 
as we plan to grow in many more international 
locations. As our operations grow in scale and 

services or expansion into new markets, we must 
continuously improve, upgrade, adapt and expand 

our merchants and customers enhanced services, 
features and functionality ahead of rapidly evolving 
consumer demands, while maintaining the reliability 
and integrity of our systems and infrastructure in a 

we will also need to continue to improve our 

and our reporting systems and procedures. 
In particular, continued growth increases the 
challenges involved in, amongst others, continuous 
training and development of skilled and competent 
personnel and employees and developing and 
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improving internal administrative infrastructure. 
These systems, enhancements and improvements 

management resources. Our capital expenditure in 

5.  We may not be able to expand our share of the 
existing payment processing markets or expand 
into new markets which would impede our 

the growth of the markets in which we currently 
operate and our ability to increase our penetration 

as the emergence of new markets for our services 
and our ability to penetrate these new markets. 

  Our expansion into new markets is dependent 
upon our ability to adapt our existing technology 

applications to meet the particular service needs of 
each new market. In order to do so, we will need to 
anticipate and react to market changes and devote 

  Furthermore, in response to market developments, 
we may continue to expand into new geographical 
markets and foreign countries in which we do not 
currently have any operating experience. We cannot 
assure you that we will be able to successfully 

experience and the multitude of risks associated 
with global operations or lack of appropriate 
regulatory approval. 

6.  Government regulation is evolving and 
unfavorable changes could harm our business

  We are subject to general business regulations and 

governing the Internet, e-commerce, electronic 
devices, and other services. We are also subject to 
regulations and laws in all the international regions we 
operate in. Existing and future laws and regulations 
may impede our growth. Unfavorable regulations, 
laws, and decisions interpreting or applying those 
laws and regulations could diminish the demand 
for, or availability of, our web services and increase 
our cost of doing business.

7.  We may be subject to risks related to 
government contracts.

  Our contracts with the Indian government are 
subject to regulations and other requirements as 
laid out in the government contract. We may be 

subject to audits and investigations relating to our 
government contracts, and any violations could 
result in various civil and criminal penalties and 
administrative sanctions, including termination of 
contract, refunding or suspending of payments, 

suspension or debarment from future government 
business. In addition, such contracts may provide 
for termination by the government at any 
time, without cause.

acquisitions.
  We have in recent periods acquired and invested 

in companies, and we may acquire or invest or 
enter into joint ventures with additional companies. 
These transactions create risk of loosing 
management focus on existing business, retaining 
key employees, potential impairment of tangible 
and intangible assets and goodwill, additional 

companies we acquire the controls, procedures, 
policies appropriately for a public or a private 
company, potential unknown liabilities in 

reporting, management, information security, and 
the lack of control if such integration is delayed or 
not implemented.

  As a result of future acquisitions or mergers, we 
might need to issue additional equity securities, 
spend our cash, or incur debt, contingent 
liabilities, or amortization expenses related to 
intangible assets, any of which could reduce our 

valuations supporting our acquisitions and strategic 
investments could change rapidly.

9.  We may not be able to protect our Intellectual 
Property or may be accused of infringing 
intellectual property of third party

  All our trademarks, domain names, copyrights 
and other intellectual property rights are material 
assets and are Integral and critical to our business 
operations. We depend on a combination of 
copyright, trademark laws, non-competition and 

contractors, merchants and third-party service 
providers to protect our logo, brand name, domain 
names, merchant and customer database and 
technology infrastructure including customized 
APIs that are integral to our advanced technology 
platform. Some of our trademark and patent 
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applications are currently pending and there 
can be no assurance that these applications will 
be successful and these trademarks would be 

with our employees require them to keep 

secrets, works of authorship, software developed 
and other technology infrastructure upgrades 
made by them during their employment with us. 
However, there can be no assurance that our 
data or proprietary technology will not be copied 
or otherwise misappropriated or abused by third 
parties. There may be irreparable damage to our 
business in the event that our intellectual property 
are infringed by competitors, in which case an 
award of damages may not be an adequate remedy. 

  Third parties may claim that we infringe on their 
intellectual property rights as we acquire new 
technology companies. We may be subject to claims 
and legal proceedings regarding infringement of 
intellectual property rights. Such claims even if they 

and management bandwidth, including satisfying of 
indemnity if required.

transactions, and poor customer experiences 
would harm our business, our brand image and 
result in losses.

  In the event that merchants using our payments 

consumers or a merchant’s goods or services do 
not match the merchant’s description, we may 
incur substantial losses as a result of claims from 
consumers. We seek to recover such losses from 
the merchant, but may not be able to recover in 
full if the merchant is unwilling or unable to pay. 
In addition, in the event of the bankruptcy or other 
business interruption of a merchant that sells goods 
or services in advance of the date of their delivery or 
use (e.g., airline, concert tickets and subscriptions), 
we could be liable to the buyers of such goods or 
services on payment cards used by customers to 
fund their payment. 

  We could also incur substantial losses from claims 
that the consumer did not authorize the purchase, 
from customer fraud, from erroneous transactions, 
and as a result of customers who have closed 

bank accounts to satisfy payments. We have taken 
measures to detect and reduce the risk of fraud, but 
these measures need to be continually improved 

new and continually evolving forms of fraud. 
If these measures do not succeed, our business 
could be harmed. 

card networks or bank fees, rules, or practices 
could harm our business.

  We rely on banks or other payment processors 
to process transactions and pay fees for the 

services. From time to time, payment card 
networks have increased, and may increase in 
the future, the interchange fees that they charge 
for each transaction that accesses their networks. 
Payment card networks have or may impose special 
fees for transactions that are executed through a 
many of our payment options which could impact 

card processors may have the right to pass any 
increases in interchange fees on to us as well as 
increase their own fees for processing. Any changes 
in interchange fees could increase our operating 
costs and reduce our operating income.

12.  We could face the risk of security breach and 
loss of data.

we process, store, and transmit large amounts of 
data, failure to prevent any breach could expose us 
to potential liability and harm our business. We use 
third party technology and systems for variety of 
reasons including encryption, authentication, 

functions. Although we have developed systems and 
processes to prevent data loss and other security 
breaches, such measures cannot provide absolute 
full proof security.

13.  Reliance on information technology systems, 
networks and infrastructure, and Internet 
penetration.

  Our business is technology driven, and we rely on 
information technology and networks and related 
infrastructure. As such, our business operations 

reliability of our information technology systems 
and networks and related infrastructure, both 
internal and external. We cannot guarantee 
an uninterrupted operation and reliability of 
these systems. 

  Internet penetration especially broadband services 
in India is limited and, though it has been increasing 
over the past few years, there can be no assurance 
that Internet penetration in India will increase in the 
future as slowdowns or disruptions in upgrading 

the rate of increase in the use of the Internet. 
Further, any slowdown or negative deviation in 
the anticipated increase in Internet penetration in 

merchants and customers. 

14.  The proper functioning of our payments 
solutions and platform is essential.

  The satisfactory performance, reliability 
and availability of our websites, our 
transaction-processing systems and our network 
infrastructure are critical to our success and our 
ability to attract and retain customers and maintain 
adequate customer service levels. Our revenues 
depend on the volume of transactions we process 
and other service level agreements that we have 
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in place. Any system interruptions caused by 
computer viruses, hacking or other attempts to 
harm our systems that result in the unavailability 
or slowdown of our website or reduced order 

  Our servers may also be vulnerable to computer 
viruses, physical or electronic break-ins and similar 
disruptions, which could lead to interruptions, 
delays, loss of data or the inability to complete a 
transaction. We may also experience interruptions 
caused by reasons beyond our control. There can 
be no assurance that such unexpected interruptions 
will not happen, and any such future occurrences 
could damage our reputation and result in a 
material decrease in our revenues. 

15.  A decline in the use of any payment option as a 
payment mechanism or adverse developments 
with respect to the payment processing 
industry in general could have a materially 

condition and results of operations.
  If consumers do not continue to use the payment 

options as a payment mechanism for their 
transactions or if there is a change in the mix of 
payments between cash, alternative currencies and 
technologies, which is adverse to us, it could have a 

condition and results of operations. Moreover, if 
there is an adverse development in the payments 
industry in general, such as new legislation or 

16.  Our risk management framework to mitigate 

types of risks.
  Our risk management framework seeks to mitigate 

risk and loss to us. We have established processes and 
procedures intended to identify, measure, monitor, 
manage and report our risks. However, as with any 
risk management framework, there are inherent 
limitations to our risk management strategies such 
that there could be risks that we cannot anticipate 
or identify. If our risk management framework 

unexpected losses that could have a material 

or results of operations.

F. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR 
ADEQUACY 
We have an adequate system of internal controls in place 
with documented policies and procedures covering 

have been designed to provide a reasonable assurance 
to maintaining proper accounting controls for ensuring 

and protecting assets from unauthorised use or losses, 
compliances with regulations. We continue to align all 
our processes and controls with global best practices.

of systems are:

 � The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the 

their compliance with operating systems, accounting 

Avenues Limited (IAL). Based on the report of 
Internal Auditor, process owners undertake 
corrective action in their respective areas, and 

observations and corrective actions thereon are 
presented before the Board.

 � Documentation of major business processes 

computer controls and entity-level controls, as 
part of compliance programme and as required by 
the listing requirements are conducted. We also 
maintain a comprehensive information security 
policy and undertake continuous upgrades to 
our IT systems.

 � Detailed business plans for each segment, 
investment strategies, year-on-year reviews, 

monitoring are part of the established practices for 
all operating and service functions.

 � A well-established, independent, multi-disciplinary 
internal audit team operates in line with governance 
best practices. It reviews and reports to management 
and the Audit Committee about compliance with 

of operations as well as the key process risks. 
The scope and authority of the internal audit division 
is derived from the internal audit charter, duly 
approved by the Audit Committee; and anti-fraud 
programmes, including whistle blower mechanisms 
are operative across IAL.

The Board takes responsibility for the overall process 
of risk management throughout the organisation. 
Through an Enterprise Risk Management programme, 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION 
AND ANALYSIS
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our business units and corporate functions address 
risks via an institutionalised approach aligned to 
IAL’s objectives. This is facilitated by internal audit. 
The business risk is managed through cross-functional 
involvement and communication across businesses. 
The results of the risk assessment are presented to the 
senior management. The risk management committee 
reviews business risk areas covering operational, 

During FY 2018-19, we conducted assessment of the 

reporting and have determined that our internal control 

G. HUMAN RESOURCES 
Employees are the primary drivers of our Company’s 
strategies and success. We are committed to provide 
our people a conducive, safe and nurturing work 
environment. With this objective, we have put in 

adoption of fair business practices by our employees. 
We have adopted a fair and objective performance 
management system, which ties performance of goals 
of the employees with that of the organisation. We have 
proper appraisal mechanisms in place to identify and 

compensation packages, which are linked with employee 
performance. Further, our Company undertakes 
regular and comprehensive training programmes 
to equip employees with latest skills and hone their 
entrepreneurial spirit. We have a focussed approach 
towards addressing all capability gaps and preparing 
our employees to adapt to the fast-changing external 
environment swiftly. Overall, we enjoy high brand equity 
as an employer and are capable of adding and retaining 
highly talented people. IAL had over 650 permanent 
employees as on March 31, 2019.
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 9th ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING of the members of INFIBEAM AVENUES 
LIMITED 

 will be held on Tuesday, July 30, 2019 at 
10.30 a.m. at 23rd Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 
56, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar – 382 355 
to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.  To receive, consider and adopt

of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
March 31, 2019, together with the reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and;

of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
March 31, 2019, together with the report of 
Auditors thereon.

2.  To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ajit Champaklal 
Mehta (DIN: 01234707), who retires by rotation and, 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3.  Reappointment of Mr. Keyoor Madhusudan 

Bakshi (DIN: 00133588) as an Independent 
Director

dissent to the following resolution to be passed as a 
Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of sections 149, 152, Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made thereunder, including 

thereof, for the time being in force, read with 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
Mr. Keyoor Madhusudan Bakshi (DIN: 00133588), 
having consented to accept the appointment, if 
made, be and is hereby appointed as Non-Executive 
Independent Director on the Board of the Company, 
for the second term of 5 (Five) consecutive years 

(both days inclusive).”

4.   Reappointment of Mr. Roopkishan Sohanlal 
Dave (DIN: 02800417) as an Independent Director

dissent to the following resolution to be passed as a 
Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
sections 149, 152, Schedule IV and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules made thereunder, including any statutory 

being in force read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, Mr. Roopkishan Sohanlal Dave 
(DIN: 02800417), having consented to accept the 
appointment, if made, be and is hereby appointed 
as Non-Executive Independent Director on the 
Board of the Company, for the second term of 5 

2019 to August 24, 2024 (both days inclusive).”

5.   Reappointment of Ms. Vijaylaxmi Tulsidas Sheth 
(DIN: 07129801) as an Independent Director

 
dissent to the following resolution to be passed as a 
Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
sections 149, 152, Schedule IV and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules made thereunder, including any statutory 

being in force read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, Ms. Vijaylaxmi Tulsidas Sheth 
(DIN: 07129801), having consented to accept the 
appointment, if made, be and is hereby appointed 
as Non-Executive Independent Director on the 
Board of the Company, for the second term of 5 

2020 to March 19, 2025 (both days inclusive).

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Regulation 
17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 
2018 (“Amendment Regulations, 2018”) and the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and relevant Rules made there under, including any 

for the time being in force, Ms. Vijaylaxmi Tulsidas 
Sheth (DIN: 07129801) Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company, on attaining the age of 75 
(Seventy Five) years in December, 2023, during the 
above term of re-appointment, the continuation of 
such appointment as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company on the same terms and 
conditions of such re-appointment even after 
attaining the age of 75 years, will be considered as 
requisite approval from shareholders as required in 
the Amendment Regulations, 2018.”
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6.   To consider removal of M/s. S R B C & Co., LLP 
as one of the Joint Statutory Auditors of the 
Company

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
section 140 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including 
any amendments thereto or re-enactment thereof) 
(the “Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and applicable provisions of relevant SEBI 

or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in 
force) and other necessary permissions, approvals, 
consents, as may be required, consents and 
permissions which may be agreed upon by the 
Board of Directors and pursuant to the order no. 
RD (NWR)/Sec 140/64/2019/1427 dated June 7, 2019, 

of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded for removal of M/s S R B C & Co. LLP (Firm 
Registration Number: 324982E/E300003), before 
expiry of the term, from the position of Joint 
Statutory Auditors of the Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vishal Mehta, 
Managing Director, Mr. Malav Mehta, Director and 
Mr. Shyamal Trivedi, Vice President & Company 
Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby 

pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and applicable rules thereunder, to represent 
before any Government / Regulatory authorities on 
behalf of the Company, reply to the queries raised, 
and to do all such acts, deeds, things, matters and 
take all such steps as may be deemed necessary, 
proper or expedient in the interest of the Company 

limited to deciding the time line, manner, extent and 
executing all necessary declarations, documents, 
forms, letters, undertakings, and such other papers 
as may be necessary, desirable and expedient to be 

statutory / regulatory and other approvals as may be 

to complete the aforesaid transaction and also to 
take necessary steps in the matter as the Board may 
in its absolute discretion deems necessary, desirable 
or expedient and the Board shall also be empowered 

arise in this regard, as it may in its absolute discretion 

from time to time, to any Committee of the Board or 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vishal Mehta, 
Managing Director and/ or Mr. Malav Mehta, 
Director and/or Mr. Shyamal Trivedi, Vice President 
& Company Secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby severally authorised to engage M/s. SPANJ & 
Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, to verify, 
certify, digitally sign and submit necessary E- forms 

of Regional Director, on behalf of the Company and to 
do all necessary acts as required in this connection.”

7.   Approval of the Employee Stock Option Plan 
2019-20 of the Company and Grant of Employee 
Stock Options to the employees of the Company 
thereunder

dissent to the following resolution to be passed as a 
Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 62(1)(b) and its related and applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’’), 
the Rules made thereunder, the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”), the Securities and Exchange 

Regulations, 2014 (“SEBI SBEB Regulations”), 

thereof for the time being in force), and in accordance 
with the Memorandum and Articles of Association 
of the Company, the circulars/ guidelines issued 
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and 
any rules, guidelines and regulations issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India or any other regulatory or 
governmental authority and any other applicable 
laws for the time being in force and subject to 
permissions and approvals as may be required 

may be prescribed or imposed while granting such 
approvals, permissions and sanctions, which may be 
accepted by the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term 
shall be deemed to include any duly constituted 
committee of the Board, including the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, which the Board has 
constituted to exercise certain powers, including the 
powers conferred by this resolution), the approval 
of the Members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to the formulation and implementation 

(hereinafter referred to as the “ESOP 2019-20” or 
the “Scheme”) authorising the Board of Directors 
of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Board” which term shall include the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and any other 
Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the 
Board to exercise its powers, including the powers 
conferred by this resolution) to create, and grant 

more tranches, not exceeding 3,30,00,000 (Three 
Crore Thirty Lakhs) Employee Stock Options to or for 

employment of the Company (present and future), 
whether working within India or outside India and 
including Director thereof, whether whole-time or 
otherwise (other than Promoter or belonging to the 
Promoter Group, an Independent Director and a 
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Director who either himself or through his relative 
or through any body corporate, directly or indirectly, 
holds more than ten per cent of the issued and 
subscribed equity shares of the Company), as may 
be decided under ESOP 2019-20, exercisable into 
not more than 3,30,00,000 (Three Crore Thirty Lakhs) 
Equity Shares of face value of Re. 1/- (Rupee One only) 
each fully paid-up (or such adjusted numbers for any 
bonus, or consolidation or other re-organisation 
of the capital structure of the Company as may be 
applicable, from time to time) at such price, in such 
manner, during such period, in one or more tranches, 

determined by the Board in its absolute discretion 
and in accordance with the provisions of the law or 
regulations issued by the relevant Authority and the 
provisions of ESOP 2019-20.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares 
so issued and allotted under ESOP 2019-20 as 
mentioned hereinbefore shall rank pari passu with 
the existing equity shares of the Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any 
corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus 
issues, merger and sale of division/undertaking 
or other re-organisation, and others, if any, the 
ceiling as aforesaid of 3,30,00,000 (Three Crore 
Thirty Lakhs) equity shares shall be deemed to be 
increased/decreased, as may be determined by the 
Board, to facilitate making a fair and reasonable 
adjustment to the entitlements of participants 
under ESOP 2019-20.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case the Equity 
Shares of the Company are consolidated, then the 
number of Equity Shares to be allotted and the 
price payable by the option grantees under ESOP 
2019-20 shall automatically be changed in the 
same proportion as the present face value of Re. 
1/- per Equity Share bears to the revised face value 
of the Equity Shares of the Company after such 

obligations of the said grantees.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorised to take requisite steps for listing 
of the Equity Shares allotted under ESOP 2019-20 
on the Stock Exchanges where the Equity Shares of 
the Company are listed as per the provisions of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations, the SEBI SBEB Regulations, 
and other guidelines, rules and regulations as 
may be applicable.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall 
comply with the disclosure and accounting policies 
prescribed from time to time under the SEBI SBEB 
Regulations and any other applicable law, rules and 
regulations and shall use the fair value method or 
such other method as prescribed from time to time, 
to value its Options granted.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorised to formulate, evolve, implement, 
administer, interpret, decide upon and bring into 

as contained in the Explanatory Statement to this 

change(s), variation(s), alteration(s) or revision(s) in 
the terms and conditions of the ESOP 2019-20 from 
time to time in conformity with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, 
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company, the SEBI SBEB Regulations and any other 
applicable laws.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vishal Mehta, 
Managing Director and/or Mr. Malav Mehta, Director 
and/or Mr. Shyamal Trivedi, Vice President & Company 
Secretary be and are hereby severally authorised to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, 
in its absolute discretion, deem necessary including 
but not limited to appointment of Merchant Bankers, 
Brokers, Registrars, other Advisors, Consultants and 
all such professionals or intermediaries or agencies 
as may be involved or concerned and to execute all 
such documents, instruments and writings or any 
other agreements or documents, etc., with such 
agencies and also to seek necessary approvals from 
SEBI/ Stock Exchanges, Depositories and/or any 
other relevant statutory authority, if any, as may 

the aforesaid resolution and to settle all questions, 

any stage including at the time of listing of securities, 
without requiring the Board to secure any further 
consent or approval of the Members of the Company 
to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to 
have given their approval thereto expressly by the 
authority of this Resolution.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorised to delegate all or any powers 
conferred herein, to any committee of directors or 
the Managing Director or Company Secretary of 
the Company, with power to further delegate such 

to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as also 
to execute such documents, writings, etc. as may be 
necessary in this regard.”

8.   Approval of the Employee Stock Option Plan 
2019-20 and grant of Employee Stock Options to 
the employees of present and future subsidiaries 
of the Company under the Scheme

dissent to the following resolution to be passed as a 
Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
62(1)(b) and its related and applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’’), the Rules made 
thereunder, the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 

re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and 
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in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, the circulars/ guidelines 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
and any rules, guidelines and regulations issued by 
the Reserve Bank of India or any other regulatory or 
governmental authority and any other applicable laws 
for the time being in force and subject to permissions 
and approvals as may be required and such other 

imposed while granting such approvals, permissions 
and sanctions, which may be accepted by the Board of 
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include any 
duly constituted committee of the Board, including 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which 
the Board has constituted to exercise certain powers, 
including the powers conferred by this resolution), the 
approval of the Members of the Company be and is 

(hereinafter referred to as the “ESOP 2019-20” or the 
“Scheme”) (referred to in the Resolution under Item 
No. 7 of this Notice), salient features of which are 
detailed in the explanatory statement to this Notice, 
to such persons who are in permanent employment 
of the subsidiary companies (present and future) 
of the Company, whether working within India or 
outside India, including Directors whether Whole-time 
Directors or not (other than Promoter or belonging 
to the Promoter Group, an Independent Director and 
a Director who either himself or through his relative 
or through any body corporate, directly or indirectly, 
holds more than ten per cent of the outstanding 
Equity Shares of the Company) and to such other 
persons as may from time to time be allowed to be 

applicable laws and regulations in force, as may be 
decided by the Board, in the manner mentioned in the 
Resolution under item No. 7 of this Notice, on such 

by the Board in accordance with the SEBI SBEB 
Regulations or other provisions of the law as may be 
prevailing at that time.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vishal Mehta, 
Managing Director and/or Mr. Malav Mehta, Director 
and/or Mr. Shyamal Trivedi, Vice President & Company 
Secretary be and are hereby severally authorised to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, 
in its absolute discretion, deem necessary including 
but not limited to appointment of Merchant Bankers, 
Brokers, Registrars, other Advisors, Consultants and 
all such professionals or intermediaries or agencies 
as may be involved or concerned and to execute all 
such documents, instruments and writings or any 

other agreements or documents, etc., with such 
agencies and also to seek necessary approvals from 
SEBI/ Stock Exchanges, Depositories and/or any 
other relevant statutory authority, if any, as may 

the aforesaid resolution and to settle all questions, 

any stage including at the time of listing of securities, 
without requiring the Board to secure any further 
consent or approval of the Members of the Company 
to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to 
have given their approval thereto expressly by the 
authority of this Resolution.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorised to delegate all or any powers 
conferred herein, to any committee of directors or 
the Managing Director or Company Secretary of 
the Company, with power to further delegate such 

to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as also 
to execute such documents, writings, etc. as may be 
necessary in this regard.”

9.  Approval pursuant to Section 185 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

dissent to the following resolution to be passed as a 
Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 185 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 and all other rules, regulations, 

re-enactments thereof, from time to time) and the 
relevant provisions of the Memorandum and Articles 
of Association of the Company, and in furtherance to 
the existing loans given, the consent of the Members 
be and is hereby accorded for grant of loans or issue 
of Corporate Guarantee or providing Security for an 
amount upto ` 10 Crore (Rupees Ten Crore only) 
to DRC Systems India Private Limited and upto ` 5 

Entertainment Private Limited,  subsidiaries of the 
Company,  on such terms and conditions as may 
be mutually agreed upon and for their principal 
business activities.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
of the Company be and is hereby authorised to 
decide the terms and conditions and do all such 
acts, deeds, things and matters as may be required 

 By the Order of the Board,
28th Floor, GIFT Two Building, 
Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, 
GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar
Taluka & District - Gandhinagar – 382 355
 Shyamal Trivedi
Date: June 29, 2019 Vice President & Company Secretary
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NOTES:
1. The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to 

Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in 

annexed herewith.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT 
THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT PROXY 
OR PROXIES TO ATTEND AND, TO VOTE INSTEAD 
OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PERSON CAN ACT AS 
PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 
50 (FIFTY) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT 
MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 
OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. 
A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 10% OF THE 
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING 
VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON 
AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A 
PROXY FOR ANY OTHER MEMBER(S).

Company, duly completed and signed, not less 
than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
meeting. A Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxy form 
submitted on behalf of the Companies, Registered 
Societies, etc. must be supported by an appropriate 
resolution / authority, as applicable.

3. As required in terms of Secretarial Standard - 
2 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the information 

areas) pertaining to Directors recommended for 
appointment / re-appointment in the AGM have 
been provided in the “Annexure” to the Notice. 
The Directors have furnished the requisite consent / 
declarations for their appointment / re-appointment 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules thereunder.

4. During the period beginning 24 hours before the 

entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time 
during the business hours of the Company provided 
that not less than three days of prior notice in 
writing is given to the Company.

5. Members, Proxies and Authoirsed Representative 
are requested to hand over the enclosed Attendance 
Slip, duly signed in accordance with their specimen 
signature(s) registered with the Company for 
admission to the meeting hall. Members who 

to bring their Client ID and DP ID numbers for 

6. Corporate/Institutional members intending to send 

AGM pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, are requested to send to the Company, 

together with the respective specimen signature(s) 

the said resolution to attend and vote on their 
behalf at the AGM.

7. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books 
of the Company will remain closed on Tuesday, 
July 23, 2019 to Tuesday, July 30, 2019 (both days 
inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General 
Meeting (AGM). 

8. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 
as amended, securities of listed companies can be 

from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received 
for transmission or transposition of securities. In view 
of this and to eliminate all risks associated with 
physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 
members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to consider converting their holdings 

Registrars and Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company 
i.e. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., 5th Floor, 506 to 508 
Amarnath Business Centre - I (ABC - I), Beside Gala 

Road, Navarangpura, Ahmedabad – 380 009, Gujarat, 
India for assistance in this regard. Members may 
also refer to Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) on 
Company’s website www.ia.ooo.

9. A Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to notify/send their email id and bank 
account details to the Registrar & Transfer Agent 
(RTA) of the Company i.e. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

10. Members are requested to intimate changes, if 
any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email 
address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent 
Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, 
power of attorney, bank details such as, name of 
the bank and branch details, bank account number, 
MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the 
shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA in 
case the shares are held in physical form.

11. Members holding shares in physical form, in 
identical order of names, in more than one folio 
are requested to send to the RTA, the details of 

for consolidating their holdings in one folio. 

such Members after making requisite changes.

12. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 
2013, members holding shares in physical form 

and for cancellation / variation in nomination in 
the prescribed Form SH-14 with the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company i.e. Link Intime 
India Pvt. Ltd. In respect of shares held in electronic 
/ demat form, the nomination form may be 

The Nomination Form will be available on the 
Company’s website www.ia.ooo.

13. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in 
securities market. Members holding shares in 
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electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit 
the PAN to their Depository Participant with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts 
and members holding shares in physical form to 
the Company / RTA.

14. The members seeking any information and queries, 
if any, relating to accounts, are requested to 
intimate to the Company at least 10 days before 
the date of the meeting to enable the management 
to keep the required information available 
at the meeting. Members may address their 
queries/communications at ir@ia.ooo

15. Members wishing to claim dividend that remain 
unclaimed are requested to correspond with 
Registrar & Transfer Agent as mentioned above or to 

requested to note that, dividends if not encashed 
for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date 
of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the 
Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”). The shares 
in respect of such unclaimed dividends are also 
liable to be transferred to the demat account of the 
IEPF Authority. In view of this, Members/Claimants 
are requested to claim their dividends from the 
Company, within the stipulated timeline.

16. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, 
only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 
names will be entitled to vote.

17. To support the “Green Initiative”, Members who 
have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, 
are requested to register their e-mail address 
with the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents of the 
Company for receiving all communication including 
Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the 
Company electronically.

18. In support of the ‘Green Initiative’ announced by 
the Government of India, electronic copies of the 
Annual Report for 2018-19 and this Notice inter 
alia indicating the process and manner of Remote 
e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy 
Form are being sent by email to all the Members 
whose email IDs are registered with the Company 
/ Depository Participant(s) for communication 
purposes, unless any Member has requested only for 
a hard copy of the same. For Members who have not 
registered their email address, physical copies will be 
sent to them in the permitted mode. The Notice of 
AGM will also be available on the Company’s website, 
www.ia.ooo and that of Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (“CDSL”), www.cdslindia.com.

19. As a measure of economy, copies of Annual Report 
will not be distributed at the venue of the AGM. 
Members are, therefore, requested to bring their 
own copies of the Annual Report of the meeting.

certifying that the Employee Stock Option Schemes 
and Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme of the 

Company is being implemented in accordance 

Regulations, 2014 and in accordance with the 
resolutions passed in the General Body Meetings 
will be placed at the AGM.

21. All documents referred to in the Notice, Explanatory 
Statement will be available for inspection by 

during business hours between 11.00 A.M. to 2.00 
P.M. on all working days of the Company (Except 
Saturday, Sundays and Public holiday) up to the 
date of the Annual General Meeting.

22. A route map showing directions to reach the venue 
of the AGM is given at the end of the Annual Report.

23. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS
(a) In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, 
relevant provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and any other applicable provisions as amended, 

through electronic means and the business set out 
in the Notice above may be transacted through such 
electronic voting. The facility of casting the votes 
by the Members using an electronic voting system 
from a place other than venue of the AGM (‘remote 
e-voting’) is provided by Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited.

(b) The facility for voting through ballot paper shall 
be made available at the AGM, and the Members 
attending the meeting who have not cast their vote 
by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their 
right at the meeting through ballot. E-voting facility 
will not be made available at the AGM venue.

(c) The Members who have cast their vote by remote 
e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM 
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

(d) The remote e-voting period commences at 9.00 
a.m. on Saturday, July 27 2019 and ends at 5:00 
p.m. on Monday, July 29, 2019. During this period 
members of the Company, holding shares either in 

by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by CDSL for e-voting thereafter. 
Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, 
the Member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently or cast the vote again.

(e) The voting rights of shareholders shall be in 
proportion to their shares in the paid up equity 

The instructions for shareholders voting 
electronically are as under:
(i) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting 

website www.evotingindia.com.
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(ii) Click on Shareholders.

(iii) Now Enter your User ID 

 [b] For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

 [c] Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

(v) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant 
are requested to use the sequence number which is printed on Postal Ballot / 

Dividend Bank Details

OR Date of Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded 
in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter 

instruction (iv).

vii) After entering these details appropriately, click 
on “SUBMIT” tab.

viii) Members holding shares in physical form will 
then directly reach the Company selection screen. 
However, members holding shares in demat form 
will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein 
they are required to mandatorily enter their login 

that this password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for voting for resolutions of any other 
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share 
your password with any other person and take 

ix) For Members holding shares in physical form, 
the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice.

x) Click on the EVSN for the relevant INFIBEAM 
AVENUES LIMITED on which you choose to vote.

xi) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO 
as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you 
dissent to the Resolution.

xii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to 
view the entire Resolution details.

xiii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to 

on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 
and accordingly modify your vote.

xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, 
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

xv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking 
on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

xvi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login 
password, then Enter the User ID and the image 

enter the details as prompted by the system.

xvii) Shareholders can also use Mobile app - “m - 
Voting” for e voting. m - Voting app is available 
on Apple, Android and Windows based Mobile. 
Shareholders may log in to m - Voting using 
their e voting credentials to vote for the 
company resolution(s).

xviii) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and  
Custodians

 • Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com 
and register themselves as Corporates.

 • A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing 
the stamp and sign of the entity should be 
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

 • After receiving the login user, would be 
able to link the account(s) for which they 
wish to vote on.

 • The list of accounts linked in the login should 
be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
and on approval of the accounts they would be 
able to cast their vote. 
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 • A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and 
Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should 
be uploaded in PDF format in the system for 

xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding 
e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at 
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write 
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

General Instructions:
• M/s. SPANJ & Associates, Company Secretaries has 

voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner.

• At the AGM, at the end of discussion on the 
resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow 

‘Ballot Paper’ for all those Members who are present 
at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing 
the remote e-voting facility. E-voting facility will not 
be made available at the AGM venue.

Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 
www.ia.ooo and on the website of CDSL i.e. 
www.evotingindia.com and results shall also be 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No.3
Mr. Keyoor Madhusudan Bakshi (DIN: 00133588) was 
appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director of 
the Company by the members at the 4th AGM of the 
Company held on September 30, 2014 for a period of 

2014 to August 24, 2019.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules made thereunder (“the Act”), an Independent 

years on the Board of a Company but shall be eligible for 

passing of a special resolution by shareholders.

Based on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and in terms of the provisions 
of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any 
other applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, Mr. Keyoor Madhusudan Bakshi, being eligible 
for re-appointment as an Independent Director and 

re-appointed as an Independent Director for second 

August 24, 2024 (both days inclusive).

The Company has received declaration from him stating 
that he meets the criteria of Independence as prescribed 
under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. He has also given his consent to continue to act 
as Director of the Company, if so appointed by the 

as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. He is not 

of any SEBI order or any other such authority. As per 
the provisions of Section 149(13) read with explanation 

Independent Directors will not be liable to determination 
by retirement of directors by rotation at the AGM.

The details required as per the provisions of the 
Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings, issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India have been provided in the 
“Annexure” to the Notice.

in the Act and Rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing 
Regulations and is independent of the management. 
The Board considers that his continued association would 

to continue to avail services of Mr. Keyoor Madhusudan 
Bakshi as an Independent Director.

Copy of the draft letter for re-appointment of 
Mr. Keyoor Madhusudan Bakshi as an Independent 
Director of the Company setting out the terms and 
conditions is available for inspection by the members 

hours between 11.00 A.M. to 2.00 P.M. on all working 
days of the Company (Except Saturday, Sunday and 
Public holiday) till the date of this AGM.

Mr. Keyoor Madhusudan Bakshi’s valuable experience, 
knowledge and counsel. The Board recommends this 
resolution for your approval.

Except Mr. Keyoor Bakshi, the appointee, none of the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or 
their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, 

Item No. 4
Mr. Roopkishan Sohanlal Dave (DIN: 02800417) was 
appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director of 
the Company by the members at the 4th AGM of the 
Company held on September 30, 2014 for a period of 

2014 to August 24, 2019.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules made thereunder (“the Act”), an Independent 

years on the Board of a Company but shall be eligible for 

passing of a special resolution by shareholders.

Based on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and in terms of the provisions 
of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any 
other applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
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2015, Mr. Roopkishan Sohanlal Dave, being eligible 
for re-appointment as an Independent Director and 

re-appointed as an Independent Director for the second 

August 24, 2024 (both days inclusive).

The Company has received declaration from him stating 
that he meets the criteria of Independence as prescribed 
under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. He has also given his consent to continue to act 
as Director of the Company, if so appointed by the 

as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. He is not 

of any SEBI order or any other such authority. As per 
the provisions of Section 149(13) read with explanation 

Independent Directors will not be liable to determination 
by retirement of directors by rotation at the AGM.

The details required as per the provisions of the 
Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings, issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India have been provided in the 
“Annexure” to the Notice.

in the Act and Rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing 
Regulations and is independent of the management. 
The Board considers that his continued association would 

to continue to avail services of Mr. Roopkishan Sohanlal 
Dave as an Independent Director.

Copy of the draft letter for re-appointment of 
Mr. Roopkishan Sohanlal Dave as an Independent 
Director of the Company setting out the terms and 
conditions is available for inspection by the members 

hours between 11.00 A.M. to 2.00 P.M. on all working 
days of the Company (Except Saturday, Sunday and 
Public holiday) till the date of this AGM.

Mr. Roopkishan Sohanlal Dave’s valuable experience, 
knowledge and counsel. The Board recommends this 
resolution for your approval.

Except Mr. Roopkishan Sohanlal Dave, the appointee, 
none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company or their relatives are in any way, 

proposed resolution.

Item No. 5
Ms. Vijaylaxmi Tulsidas Sheth (DIN: 07129801) was 
appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director of 
the Company by the members at the General Meeting of 

consecutive years commencing from March 20, 2015 to 
March 19, 2020.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the rules made thereunder (“the Act”), an Independent 

years on the Board of a Company but shall be eligible for 

passing of a special resolution by shareholders.

As per Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) 
Regulations, 2018, (“Amendment Regulations, 2018”), 
inter alia, provides that no listed company shall appoint 
a person or continue the directorship of any person as 
a non-executive director who has attained the age of 75 

Based on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and in terms of the provisions of 
Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other 
applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
Ms. Vijaylaxmi Sheth, being eligible for re-appointment 

re-appointment, is proposed to be re-appointed as an 

years from March 20, 2020 to March 19, 2025 (both days 

years on December 12, 2023 during the above term of 
re-appointment, the continuation of such appointment 
for 5 years even after attaining the age of 75 years, will be 
considered as requisite approval from shareholders as 
required in the Amendment Regulations, 2018.

The Company has received declaration from her stating 
that she meets the criteria of Independence as prescribed 
under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. She has also given her consent to continue to act as 
Director of the Company, if so appointed by the members. 

in terms of Section 164 of the Act. She is not debarred 

order or any other such authority. As per the provisions of 
Section 149(13) read with explanation to Section 152(6) of 

not be liable to determination by retirement of directors 
by rotation at the AGM.

The details required as per the provisions of the 
Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings, issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India have been provided in the 
“Annexure” to the Notice.

in the Act and Rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing 
Regulations and is independent of the management. 
The Board considers that her continued association would 

to continue to avail services of Ms. Vijaylaxmi Tulsidas 
Sheth as an Independent Director.

A Copy of the draft letter of re-appointment of 
Ms. Vijaylaxmi Tulsidas Sheth as an Independent 
Director of the Company setting out the terms and 
conditions is available for inspection by the members 
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hours between 11.00 A.M. to 2.00 P.M. on all working 
days of the Company (Except Saturday, Sunday and 
Public holiday) till the date of this AGM.

by her re-appointment, as her contribution is likely to 
be immense for valuable experience, knowledge and 
counsel. The Board recommends this resolution for 
your approval as Special Resolution. Her appointment as 
Independent director would also be towards compliance 
of provisions of Section 149(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for having one woman independent 
director on the Board.

Except Ms. Vijaylaxmi Tulsidas Sheth, the appointee, 
none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company or their relatives are in any way, 

proposed resolution.

Item No. 6
Pursuant to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 (the “PIT Regulations”), your Company 
has formulated a Code of Fair Disclosure and Conduct 
(“Code”) and a Policy and Procedure for Inquiry in case of 
data breach of UPSI (“Policy”). The Code and the Policy is 
available on the website of the Company.

results of your Company, at any time prior to the disclosure 
to the stock exchanges under applicable laws, would be 
considered to be unpublished price sensitive information 
(“UPSI”). Further, as per the provisions of the PIT Regulations 
and other applicable laws, the Company is required 

prior to disclosing the same on the stock exchanges. 
Accordingly, since the statutory auditors have access to 
UPSI, the statutory auditors would qualify as “insiders” 
as per the PIT Regulations and are required to maintain 

Your Company had received an anonymous complaint 
vide dated February 26, 2019 (received on February 28, 
2019) (“Complaint
results of the Company have been shared with various 
third parties prior to such results being disclosed to the 
stock exchanges by one of the Joint Statutory Auditors of 
the Company, S R B C & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
(Firm Reg. No. – 324982E/ E300003) (“Auditor”) on 
several occasions.

With the above background, the Board would like to 
draw your attention to the following:

1. Immediately upon receipt of the Complaint, your 
Company promptly initiated an internal preliminary 

such internal investigation, the Company initiated 
discussions with the Auditor, and a number of 
meetings and discussions were held between 
the management of the Company and the senior 
audit team members of the Auditor. Additionally, 
pursuant to a number of written communications, 
the Company had sought further details pertaining 
to the sharing of UPSI in contravention of the 
provisions of the PIT Regulations from the Auditor.  

2. In response to the aforesaid written 
communications, the Auditor, vide email dated 
April 15, 2019 had informed the Company that it 
has undertaken an internal investigation, and had 

results of the Company had been shared with one 
of its clients, who would not qualify as an “insider” 
under the PIT Regulations. In the said email, the 

email accounts of 28 audit team members on the 
assignment from November 2016 to February 2019 
had been examined. Subsequently, the Auditor 

report that certain emails containing UPSI, such as 

Company (or a subsidiary of the Company) have 
been sent to the personal email accounts of certain 

3. Further, vide email dated April 15, 2019, the 
Auditor had accepted that during the month of 
February 2017, one member of the audit team had 
forwarded certain emails containing UPSI pertaining 

forwarding the said email, the concerned audit 
team member had inadvertently marked a third 
party, who happened to be the director of another 
client of the Auditor. In this regard, the Auditor 
has subsequently admitted that the said email 
containing UPSI, which had been inadvertently been 
shared with the third party, had been immediately 
deleted by the Auditor from the email account of 
such third party. However, the Auditor had not 
brought any such incident to the attention of the 
Company, or any regulatory authority, despite 
having knowledge of the same. 

4. The occurrence of such incident, including the 
subsequent deletion of the said email without 
informing the Company (thereby tampering with 
evidence) clearly demonstrates a lack of internal 
control in the system of the Auditor. The Auditor is 

engagement letter executed with the Company, in 
addition to being in violation of the provisions of the 
PIT Regulations.

investigation conducted internally by the Auditor with 
the Company vide letter dated April 27, 2019 (“Final 
Report
not in violation any applicable law, and there has not 
been any wilful or fraudulent act on the part of the 
Auditor, and has denied any wrong doing on its part.

6. The Board of the Company had discussed the 
Final Report submitted by the Auditor in the Board 
Meeting held on April 27, 2019, in the presence of 
the Auditor. Based on the discussions, the Company 
had communicated the concerns in respect of the 
Final Report to the Auditor vide email dated May 3, 
2019, wherein the Company raised a number of 
concerns on adequacy and reliability of the system 
and procedure adopted by the Auditor in conducting 
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their in-house investigation. In light of the aforesaid, 
the Board has insisted that the matter should be 
investigated by a reliable, credible third party. 

7. The Auditor has not been able to establish to 
the satisfaction of the Board that the UPSI of the 
Company which was shared to the personal Gmail 
account of the employee of the Auditor as well as a 
third party has not been forwarded, misused and 
abused, which includes (but is not restricted to) 
by way of onward sharing, by downloading across 
other devices or taking the snapshot of data, despite 
being given reasonable opportunity to be heard.

8. In addition to the above, the Board of the Company 

to protect the interests of the shareholders of the 
Company. However, the Auditor has refused to 
indemnify the Company in this regard.

In light of the above, your Board would like to bring to 
your notice that the Auditor has shared UPSI in breach of 
the provisions of the PIT Regulations. Since the Company 
was in the process of getting its annual and quarterly 
results audited, it required to share information with 
M/s. S R B C & Co., LLP, as one of the joint statutory 

and the Auditors through the preliminary investigations, 

compliance breaches by the Auditors, the Board was of 

could not be shared with the Auditors to maintain the 

Please note that the Board members have taken up this 
matter with the utmost seriousness and urgency that it 
warrants and the Board of Directors in its meeting held 
on May 5, 2019 has decided to recommend the removal 
of M/s. S R B C & Co., LLP as Joint Statutory Auditors of the 
Company (subject to approval of the Central Government 
and/or the other relevant regulatory authorities and the 
shareholders of the Company in terms of section 140(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules framed 

and violation of the provisions of the PIT Regulations, 
by sharing UPSI pertaining to the Company on multiple 
occasions, thereby leading to a breach of trust and loss 
of faith in the internal processes and systems.

The Shareholders considered and approved the 
said matter subject to the approval of the Central 
Government at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of 
the Shareholders of the Company held on May 30, 2019.

India, vide its order no. RD (NWR)/Sec 140/64/2019/1427 
dated June 7, 2019 has approved the application under 
Section 140 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 made by the 
Company for removal of M/s. S R B C & Co., LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, (Firm Reg. No. – 324982E/ E300003) as 
one of the Joint Statutory Auditors. As per the order, 
the Regional Director has instructed the Company 
to re-obtain the approval of Shareholders within the 
prescribed time limit as mentioned in the Companies Act, 
2013 and other applicable rules. In view of the same, the 

Board of Directors of the Company again recommends 
the Resolution for the approval of the Members of the 
Company by way of Special Resolution.

The relevant documents mentioned in the Notice are 
available for inspection by a Member at the registered 

Saturdays and Sundays) between 11.00 a.m. and 2.00 
p.m. upto the date of AGM.

None of the Directors, KMP of the Company including 

concerned in the resolution.

Item No. 7 & 8

tool to attract and retain the best talent and also serve 
to attract, incentivise and motivate professionals and 
reward exceptional performance.

Towards this end, the Company has proposed to approve 

2019-20’ (hereinafter referred to as the “ESOP 2019-20” 
or the “Scheme”) with a view to attract and retain key 
talents working with the Company and the Subsidiary 
Company (ies) of the Company by way of rewarding their 
performance and motivating them to contribute to the 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) 
at its meeting held on June 29, 2019  inter-alia formulated 
the detailed terms and conditions of the said Schemes 
which was duly approved by the Board of Directors of 
the Company (“the Board”) at its Meeting held on June 29, 
2019,  subject to the approval of the Members of the 
Company, the provisions of the Securities and Exchange 

Regulations, 2014 (“SEBI SBEB Regulations”), as amended 

thereunder and other applicable laws, including the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). Therefore, approval of the 
Members is being sought for the implementation of 
the Scheme and grant of Stock Options to the eligible 
employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

Pursuant to provisions of SEBI SBEB Regulations, approval 
of the Members is being sought for launch of ESOP 
2019-20 and for issue of ESOPs to the eligible employees 
of the Company and its Subsidiaries accordingly as decided 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee / Board 
from time to time in due compliance of the SEBI SBEB 
Regulations. The said Schemes shall be in addition to the 
existing Employee Stock Options Schemes of the Company.

The number of equity shares to be issued and allotted 
under ESOP 2019-20 will be limited to 3,30,00,000 (Three 
Crore Thirty Lakhs) Equity Shares of face value of Re. 
1/- (Rupee One only) each fully paid-up.

The salient features of the Scheme and various 
disclosures in terms of the Act, the SEBI SBEB Regulations 
and the SEBI circular dated June 16, 2015 issued in 
relation thereto, are as follows:

1. Brief Description of the Scheme
 The Company proposes to introduce ESOP 2019-20 

and eligible Directors of the Company and its 
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subsidiaries and such other eligible persons as 
may be determined as per SEBI SBEB Regulations 
for their performance and to motivate them to 

Company. The Company also intends to use 

Options granted under the Scheme shall vest 
on satisfaction of vesting conditions which can 
thereafter be exercised resulting in allotment and 
issue of equity shares of the Company.

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(Committee) of the Company shall act as 
Compensation Committee for implementation 
and administration of ESOP 2019-20. All questions 
of interpretation of the ESOP 2019-20 shall 
be determined by the Committee and such 

persons having an interest in ESOP 2019-20.

2. Total number of Options to be granted
 The total number of options to be granted under 

ESOP 2019-20 shall not exceed 3,30,00,000 (Three 
Crore Thirty Lakh) options. Each option when 
exercised would be converted into one Equity Share 
of Re.1/- (Rupee One only) each fully paid-up.

 The SEBI SBEB Regulations require that in case of 
any corporate action(s) such as rights issue, bonus 
issue, merger and sale of division and others, a fair 
and reasonable adjustment needs to be made to 
the options granted. In this regard, the Committee 
shall adjust the number and price of the options 
granted in such manner that the total value of the 
options granted under ESOP 2019-20 remain the 
same after any such corporate action. Accordingly,

 if any additional options are issued by the Company 
to the option grantees for making such fair and 
reasonable adjustment, the ceiling of 3,30,00,000 
(Three Crore Thirty Lakh) shall be deemed to 
be increased to the extent of such additional 
options issued.

to participate in ESOP 2019-20
 Persons who are permanent employees, working in 

or out of India, of the Company and its subsidiary 
companies (present and future), as determined by 
the Board and/or the NRC, shall be eligible for grant 
of Options under the Scheme.

 The following category of persons shall not be 
eligible for grant of Options in the Scheme:

 [a] a promoter or a person belonging to the 

SBEB Regulations;

 [b] an independent director;

 [c] a director who either by self or through his 
relatives or through any body corporate, 
directly or indirectly, holds more than 10% of 
the outstanding equity shares of the Company.

4. Requirements of vesting and period of vesting
 All the options granted on any date shall vest not 

earlier than one year from the date of grant of 

options or period more than one year as may be 
determined by the Committee.

 The vesting dates in respect of the options granted 
under the Scheme shall be determined by the 
Committee and may vary from an employee to 
employee or any class thereof and/or in respect 
of the number or percentage of options granted 
to an employee. Options shall vest based on 
continuation of employment and achievement of 
any performance condition(s), if any, for vesting as 
prescribed by the Committee.

5.  Maximum period within which the options shall 
be vested

 All the options granted on any date shall vest not 
later than a maximum period as may be determined 
by the Committee subject to continued employment 
and achievement of performance conditions, if any, 
as prescribed by the Committee.

6. Exercise price or pricing formula
 The Exercise Price shall be equal to face value of 

shares i.e. Re. 1 per option or such other price as 
the committee decides, from time to time.

7. Exercise period and the process of exercise
 The exercise period would commence from the 

date of vesting and will expire on completion of four 
years from the date of vesting or any other period 
as may be decided by the Committee from the date 
of respective vesting of options.

 The vested Options shall be exercisable by the 
employees either in full or in tranches as may be 
permitted by the Scheme by a written application to 
the Company expressing his/her desire to exercise 
such Options in such manner and on such format as 
may be prescribed by the Committee from time to 
time. The Options shall lapse if not exercised within 

8.  Appraisal process for determining the eligibility 
of employees under ESOP 2019-20

 The appraisal process for determining the 
eligibility shall be decided from time to time by 
the Committee. The broad criteria for appraisal 
and selection may include parameters like tenure 
of association with the Company, performance 
during the previous years, contribution towards 
strategic growth, contribution to team building and 
succession, cross-functional relationship, corporate 
governance, etc.

9.  Maximum number of Options to be issued per 
employee and in aggregate

 The maximum number of Stock Options to be 
granted to any employee shall be decided by 
the Board or Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. However, the number of Stock 
Options that may be granted to a single employee 
under the Scheme shall not exceed 0.99% of the 
paid-up equity share capital at the time of grant 
of Stock Options (which shall be adjusted in lieu of 
adjustments/ re-organisation of capital structure 
of the Company from time to time). The aggregate 
of all such Stock Options shall not result into more 
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than 3,30,00,000 (Three Crore Thirty Lakhs) Equity 
Shares which shall be adjusted in lieu of corporate 
actions, adjustments/ re-organisation of capital 
structure of the Company from time to time.

 During any one year, if grant of options to any 
employee would be equal to or exceeding 1% of 
the paid-up equity share capital at the time of 
grant of Stock Options, separate approval of the 
Shareholders shall be obtained as per provisions of 
SEBI SBEB Regulations, prior to such grant.

per employee under the scheme

options issued to an eligible employee shall depend 
upon the Market Price of the shares as on the date 
of sale of shares arising out of Exercise of options.

11. Implementation and Administration
 The Scheme shall be implemented and administered 

directly by the Company.

12.  Whether the Scheme involves new issue of 
Equity Shares by the Company or secondary 
acquisition or both

 The Scheme contemplates fresh/new issue of 
shares by the Company.

13.  The amount of loan to be provided for 
implementation of the scheme by the Company 
to the trust, its tenure, utilization, repayment 
terms, etc.

 This is not applicable under the present Scheme.

14. Maximum percentage of secondary acquisition
 This is not relevant under the present Scheme.

15. Accounting Policies and Disclosures
 The Company shall comply with the disclosures 

and the accounting policies as prescribed 
from time to time.

16. Method of option valuation
 The Company shall adopt the fair value method of 

valuation of options. Notwithstanding the above, 
the Company may adopt any other method as 
may be required under prevailing applicable laws 
and regulations.

17. The following statement, if applicable:
  In case the company opts for expensing of 

employee compensation cost so computed and 
the employee compensation cost that shall 
have been recognized if it had used the fair 
value, shall be disclosed in the Directors’ report 

on earnings per share (‘EPS’) of the company 

shall also be disclosed in the Directors' report.
 The said Statement is not applicable to the 

Company since the Company is opting for the 
Fair Value Method.

As per the SEBI SBEB Regulations, a separate special 

the Employee Stock Option Plan are to be extended to 
the employees of present or future subsidiary of the 
Company and such employees be allowed to enjoy 

subject to terms and conditions as mentioned herein. 
Accordingly, separate Special Resolutions are being 
duly proposed for members’ approval in item no. 8 for 
extending the ESOP 2019-20 to employees of the present 
or future subsidiary companies of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommend 
these Resolutions for the approval of the 
Members of the Company

None of the Directors, KMP of the Company including 
their relatives are interested or concerned in the 
resolution, except to the extent of their entitlements, if 
any, under the Scheme.

Item No. 9
The Company is currently in the phase of growth by 
itself and through its subsidiaries, for which there 
is an ongoing requirement for funds, loans by the 
subsidiaries. Also, various loans obtained by subsidiaries 
require the holding company to provide security or give 
guarantee for these said loans. Accordingly, in order to 
meet these funding requirements and ensure necessary 
compliances of the provisions of The Act, the Board of 
Directors, hereby proposes to grant loans or provide 

` 10 Crore 
(Rupees Ten Crore only) to DRC Systems India Private 
Limited and upto ` 5 Crore (Rupees Five Crore only) to 

business growth and principal business activities.

In view of the recent amendments to Section 185 of the Act, 
vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, no Company 
shall grant any loan to any person or body corporate or give 
any guarantee or provide any security to any loan taken 
by any person or body corporate the Board of Directors 
whereof are accustomed to act in accordance with the 
directions or instructions of the Board, or of any director or 
directors, of the lending company without the prior approval 
of the Shareholders by means of a Special Resolution.

The Board of Directors of the Company 
recommend this Resolution for the approval of the 
Members of the Company

None of the Directors, KMP of the Company including 
their relatives are interested or concerned in the 
resolution, except to the extent of their entitlements, if 
any, under the Scheme.

 By the Order of the Board,
28th Floor, GIFT Two Building, 
Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, 
GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar
Taluka & District - Gandhinagar – 382 355
 Shyamal Trivedi
Date: June 29, 2019 Vice President & Company Secretary
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT:

Particulars

DIN 01234707 00133588 02800417 07129801
Date of Birth November 17, 1948 May 31, 1957 August 23, 1955 December 12, 1948
Date of 
appointment 
on the Board 

June 30, 2010 August 25, 2014 August 25, 2014 March 20, 2015

Bachelor’s 
Degree in Commerce

Bachelor’s Degree in 
Commerce, Bachelor of Law 
(LLB) and Fellow member 
of the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

B.E. (Electronics and 
Communication), 
M.B.A., M.Sc. (Health 
Science) and Ph.D. 
(Disaster Management)

B.A. (Sanskrit & 
Psychology) and M.A. 
(Economics & History)

Experience &
Expertise in 

functional 
areas

Mr. Mr. Ajit Mehta has 
been associated with the 
Company since its inception 
as a Promoter Director. 
He advises the Company 
in taking various strategic 
decisions from time to time.

Mr. Ajit Mehta has nearly 
40 years of experience of 
various industry segments 
out of which he has 20 
years of experience in the 
textiles, chemicals, building 
material and construction 
sector and more than 16 
years of experience in the 
automobile industry. His 
vast experience helps the 
Company to grow further.

Mr. Keyoor Bakshi is 

Secretary having over 40 
years of experience in the 
areas of corporate laws, 

He had rendered 
professional services to 
various companies as 
a Practicing Company 
Secretary since 1991. His 
areas of expertise include 
Corporate Governance, 
Corporate and Securities 
Compliance Management, 
Due Diligence, Mergers, 
Acquisitions and Takeovers, 

Securities and appearances 
before the Company Law 
Board, Securities Appellate 
Tribunal and SEBI.

He is trained as a Trainer 
on Corporate Governance 
by the Global Corporate 
Governance Forum, a body 
of the International Finance 
Corporation of the World 
Bank. He also served as 
President of the Institute 
of Company Secretaries 
of India during the year 
2008 and also as the 
President of International 
Federation of Company 

merged with the Corporate 
Secretaries International 
Association) during 
the year 2009-10.

At present, Mr. Bakshi 
is a Designated Partner 
of Ardent Ventures LLP 
which is engaged in 
identifying, promoting 
and investing in various 
business opportunities.

Mr. Roopkishan Dave 
has over 42 years 
of experience. His 
domain expertise 
incudes Spectrum 
Management, 
Information and 
Communication 
Technology (ICT), 
Automation and 
Control system, 
Climate Adaptation, 
and Disaster 
Risk Management.

As a civil servant, 
Mr. Dave worked 
with Central and 
State Governments 
in various capacities. 
He also providing 
consultancy services 
to National Disaster 
Management Authority 
(GoI), Gujarat State 
Disaster Management 
Authority (Govt. of 
Gujarat), Gujarat Info 
Petro Limited (Govt. of 
Gujarat Undertaking) 
and various other 
agencies working on 
projects funded by 
ADB, UNDP, World 
Bank, USAID etc.

Mr. Dave represents 
on the Advisory 
committee of various 
institutions working on 
disaster risk mitigation, 
skill development and 
capacity building. He 
was also a member in 
the “Expert Committee” 
constituted by National 
Academies of Sciences 
(www.nas.edu), USA, 
on Future Alert and 
Warning System.

Ms. Vijaylaxmi Sheth 
has over 37 years of 
experience working 
for the Government 
of India in various 
capacities such as 
undersecretary in 
Ministry of Finance, 
Joint Secretary 
(equivalent) in 
Department of Space, 
Chief Postmaster 
General, Maharashtra, 
Uttar Pradesh and 
Gujarat. She has been 

Table Book brought 
out by Women and 
Child Development 
Department, 
Government of Gujarat.
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Particulars

Remuneration last 
drawn (including 
sitting fees, if any)

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report (Annexure C) as part of Director’s Report

Number of Meeting 
of the Board 
attended during the 
Financial Year 
(2018-19)

9 (Nine) 9 (Nine) 8 (Eight) 6 (Six)

Names of other 
Companies in 
which the Director 
holds Directorship 
as on 31.03.2019

Private Limited

(Gujarat) Private Limited

Private Limited

Private Limited

Services Limited

1.  Kiri Industries Limited
2.   Gokul Agro 

Resources Limited
3. Saanvi Advisors Limited
4.  TTL Enterprises Limited
5.   Innovative Tyres 

& Tubes Limited
6.  Cemseal Infraaid 

Private Limited
7. Ardent Avenues Limited

Entertainment 
Private Limited

Nil

Names of 
Committees 
of other listed 
Companies in which 
the Director holds 
Chairmanship/ 
Membership 
as on 31.03.2019

Nil Audit Committee
• Kiri Industries Limited*
•  Gokul Agro 

Resources Limited*
• Saanvi Advisors Limited
• TTL Enterprises Limited
•  Innovative Tyres 

& Tubes Limited*

Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee
• TTL Enterprises Limited

Nomination 
and Remuneration
Committee
• Kiri Industries Limited
•  Gokul Agro 

Resources Limited

Nil Nil

Shareholding in
the Company 
as on 31.03.2019

3,01,14,780 Equity 
Shares of ` 1/- each

Nil 1,000 Equity 
Shares of ` 1/- each

Nil

Relationships 
between Directors, 
Key Managerial 
Personnel and 
Managers of the 
Company

Name
of the 
Director

Related 
to

Nature 
of 
Relationship

N.A. N.A. N.A.

Ajit 
Mehta

Malav 
Mehta

Son

Vishal 
Mehta

Son

*Chairman of the Committee
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Directors’ Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 9th Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Financial 
Statements for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

(` In Million)

Particulars
Standalone Consolidated

2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
Revenue from Operations 5,446.56 3,058.60 11,590.69 8,393.20
Other Income 92.42 269.50 111.27 313.30
Total Income 5,538.97 3,328.10 11,701.96 8,706.50
Total Expenditure other than Finance Cost, Depreciation and Tax 4,551.10 2,460.40 9,828.79 6,826.00

Tax and Exceptional item
987.87 867.70 1,873.17 1,880.50

46.81 36.80 64.50 57.30
464.16 432.60 822.08 664.30
476.91 398.30 986.59 1,158.90
140.00 - 471.81 -
616.91 398.30 1458.40 1,158.90
227.68 263.50 271.47 270.60
389.23 134.80 1,186.93 888.30

- - 76.31 (6.90)
389.23 134.80 1,263.24 881.40

(4.28) 0.50 1.42 1.70
(4.28) 0.50 1.42 1.70

384.95 135.30 1264.66 883.10
(75.81) (145.64) 442.28 (364.79)

- - - (11.66)
- - 6.37 1.10

309.09 1713.31 507.75
Transfer to General Reserve - - -
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - - -
Excess Losses pertaining to minority - - -
Dividend on Equity Shares (66.11) (54.11) (66.11) (54.11)
Tax on Dividend (13.86) (11.36) (13.86) (11.36)

229.17 1633.34 442.28

Note: 

2. OVERVIEW OF COMPANY’S FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE –

operations on standalone basis increased to ` 5,446.60 
Million as against ` 3058.60 Million in the previous year 
– a growth of 78%. Expense as a percentage to revenue 
from operations increased to 84 % (` 4551.10 Million) as 
against 80% (` 2460.40 Million) in the previous year.

` 389.2 Million against ̀  134.80 
Million in the previous year – a growth of 189 %.

Net revenue from operations on consolidated basis 
increased to ` 11,590.7 Million as against ` 8393.20 

for the period is ` 1263.1 Million against ` 881.4 Million 
in the previous year – a growth of 43 %.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of your 
Company for the Financial Year 2018-19 are prepared in 
compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder, 
applicable Accounting Standards and the provisions of 

Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as the “Listing 
Regulations”). The Consolidated Financial Statements 
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statements of your Company, its subsidiaries (including 
step down subsidiaries) and associate companies, as 
approved by their respective Board of Directors.

The Consolidated Financial Statements together with the 
Auditors’ Report form part of this Annual Report.

4. DIVIDEND
In order to conserve the resources for future growth of the 
Company, the Board of Directors has not recommended 
dividend for the year ended March 31, 2019.

The details of the unclaimed dividends are available on 
the Company’s website at www.ia.ooo.

According to Regulation 43A of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing 
Regulations), the top 500 listed entities based on market 

distribution policy which shall be disclosed in their annual 
reports and on their websites. Accordingly, the Dividend 
Policy of the Company is provided as Annexure-A.

The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company can also 
be accessed on the Company’s website i.e. www.ia.ooo.

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Your Company does not propose to transfer any amount 
to general reserve.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
There have been no material changes and commitments 

7. SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
During the year under review, the following changes 
have taken place in subsidiary / associates:

Changes in Subsidiaries:

wholly owned subsidiary of your Company with 

wholly owned subsidiary of your Company, 
acquired Vavian International Limited, a Company 
formed and registered in Dubai on July 01, 2018. 
Vavian International Limited became the Step 
down wholly owned subsidiary of your Company. 
Your Company acquired Vavian International 

erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary on March 21, 
2019. Hence, Vavian International Limited became 
the direct wholly owned subsidiary of your 
Company. Avenues word FZ-LLC is wholly owned 
subsidiary of Vavian International Limited hence, it 
is a step down wholly owned subsidiary Company 
of your Company.

owned subsidiary of your Company, incorporated 
its wholly owned subsidiary named Richrelevants 
Limited in British Virgin Islands on October 31, 
2018. Hence, Richrelevants Limited became the step 
down wholly owned subsidiary of your Company. 

– LLC as wholly owned subsidiary, as mentioned 
above, the Richrelevants Limited also ceased to 
be the step down wholly owned subsidiary of your 

material wholly owned subsidiary of your Company 

Solutions Private Limited is wholly owned subsidiary 

to be a subsidiary of your Company.

• Your Company acquired 51% stake in DRC Systems 
India Private Limited, a step down subsidiary, from 

wholly owned subsidiary. DRC Systems India 
Private Limited is now the direct subsidiary of your 

January 23, 2019.

Associate Companies:
• Instant Global Paytech Private Limited, a Company 

incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013, 
became associate Company w.e.f Janyary 03, 2019.

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, 
became associate company w.e.f March 1, 2019.

in Dubai, became associate company w.e.f 
March 22, 2019.

Pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Ind - AS 110 issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, Consolidated Financial Statements 

statements of its subsidiaries and associates.

A separate statement containing the salient features of 

in the prescribed form AOC – 1 is annexed to the 
Directors’ Report as Annexure - B and forms part of this 

together with Auditors’ Report forms an integral part of 
the Annual Report.

The Policy for determining material subsidiaries is 
available on the Company website i.e. www.ia.ooo.

In terms of provisions of Section 136 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, separate audited accounts of the subsidiary 
Companies shall be available on website of the Company 
at www.ia.ooo. The Company will make available 
physical copies of these documents upon request by 
any shareholder of the Company/ subsidiary interested 
in obtaining the same. These documents shall also be 
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available for inspection by any Member of the Company 

hours between 11.00 A.M. to 2.00 P.M. on all working days 
of the Company (Except Saturday, Sundays and Public 
holiday) up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

8. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
During the year under review, your Company has not 

Section 73 and any other provision of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with rules made there under.

9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL
Pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, one-third of 
such of the Directors as are liable to retire by rotation, 

for re-appointment at every Annual General Meeting 
(AGM). Consequently, Mr. Ajit Champaklal Mehta 
(DIN: 01234707), Director will retire by rotation at the 

re-appointment in accordance with provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Keyoor Madhusudan Bakshi (DIN: 00133588) 
and Mr. Roopkishan Sohalal Dave (DIN: 02800417), 
the Independent Directors of the Company were 

and Ms. Vijaylaxmi Tulsidas Sheth (DIN: 07129801), 
Independent Director of the Company was appointed 

Such term of appointment of the Independent 
Directors shall come to an end on August 24, 2019 and 
March 19, 2020 respectively. In view of the same, the 
Board of Directors on basis the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee proposed 
to re-appoint Mr. Keyoor Madhusudan Bakshi and 
Mr. Roopkishan Sohalal Dave and Ms. Vijaylaxmi Tulsidas 
Sheth as the Independent Directors of the Company 

General Meeting for the approval of the Members by 
way of special resolution.

Brief details of Directors proposed to be 
appointed/re-appointed as required under Regulation 
36 of the SEBI LODR are provided in the Notice of the 
Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors of the Company have resigned from 

The Company has received necessary declaration from 

the criteria of independence as laid down in Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing 

re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force).

Mr. Vishal Mehta, Managing Director, Mr. Hiren Padhya, 

President & Company Secretary are the Key Managerial 
Personnel of your Company in accordance with the 

provisions of Sections 2(51), 203 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

re-enactment(s) for the time being in force). During the 
year, there was no change (appointment or cessation) in 

10. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134 of the 

(i) that in preparation of the annual accounts, 
the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures;

(ii) that the Directors had selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the 

on March 31, 2019;

care for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) That the Directors had prepared the annual 
accounts on a going concern basis.

controls to be followed by the Company and that 

(vi) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and 

11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS
During the Financial Year 2018-19, 12 (twelve) Board 
meetings were held. For details of the meetings of the 
board, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, 
which forms part of this report.

12. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 
POLICY
The Company has formulated and adopted the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy in accordance 
with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Rules issued thereunder and the Listing Regulations.

This Policy is available on the website of the Company 
i.e. www.ia.ooo.
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13. BOARD EVALUATION
Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board, in 
consultation with its Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, has formulated a framework containing, 
inter-alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of 
the entire Board of the Company, its Committees and 
individual Directors, including Independent Directors.

The annual performance evaluation of the Board, 
its Committees and each Director has been carried 

the framework. The details of evaluation process of 
the Board, its Committees and individual Directors, 
including Independent Directors have been provided 
under the Corporate Governance Report which forms 
part of this Report.

14. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the 
year under review, as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“Listing Regulations”), is presented in a separate 
section, forming part of the Annual Report.

15. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
In compliance with Regulation 34 of the Listing 
Regulations, a separate report on Corporate Governance 

Secretaries on its compliance forms part of this Report 
as Annexure - C.

16. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
A Business Responsibility Report as per Regulation 34 of 
the Listing Regulations, detailing the various initiatives 
taken by the Company on the environmental, social and 
governance forms part of this Report as Annexure - D.

17. CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, the Company after 
obtaining necessary approvals, has allotted:

• 11,98,60,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each on May 30, 
2018, to the Shareholders of Avenues (India) Private 
Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation 
as approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench vide its order dated 
May 7, 2018. After the issue, the Equity Share Capital 
of the Company stood at ` 662.64 million.

• 7,48,850 Equity Shares of ` 1/- each on July 6, 2018, 
to its eligible employees of the Company & its 
subsidiaries under both the Schemes - Employees 
Stock Option Plan 2013-14 and Employees Stock 
Option Plan 2014-15. After the issue, the Equity Share 
Capital of the Company stood at ` 663.39 million.

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2019 
was ` 66,33,92,240 divided into 66,33,92,240 equity 
shares of Re.1/- each.

18. CREDIT RATING:
On April 16, 2018, ICRA Limited (“ICRA”), the Credit Rating 
Agency has assigned long term rating of [ICRAl A+ (Stable) 
(pronounced as ICRAA plus) with a stable outlook for the 
purpose of bank facilities of the Company.

The Credit ratings were revised to [ICRA] A on 

in certain business segments.

19. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Details of various committees constituted by the Board 
of Directors as per the provision of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013 are given in 
the Corporate Governance Report which forms part 
of this report.

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
The Company has constituted a Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee and has framed a CSR 
Policy. The brief details of CSR Committee are provided 
in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part 
of this report.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed to this 
Report as Annexure – E.

The CSR policy is available on your Company’s 
website www.ia.ooo.

21. AUDITORS
I. STATUTORY AUDITORS:
 M/s. S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm 

Reg. No. – 324982E/ E300003), were appointed at 
the Annual General Meeting held on September 15, 
2016, as statutory auditors of the Company to hold 

Meeting to be held in the Financial Year 2020-21.

 Your Company had received an anonymous 

results of the Company have been shared with 
various third parties prior to such results being 
disclosed to the stock exchanges by one of the Joint 
Statutory Auditors of the Company, S R B C & Co., 
LLP, Chartered Accountants (“Auditor”), on several 
occasions. Based on the complaint, investigations 
were made and the due discussions were held with 
the Auditors on leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information (“UPSI”). It was found that certain 
members of the audit team of the Auditor have 
shared Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 

occasions. The UPSI had been sent to the personal 
email accounts of certain team members from their 

been instances where members of the Auditors’ 
team, have forwarded certain emails containing 

Company to third party. The Auditor had not been 
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able to establish to the satisfaction of the Board 
that the UPSI of the Company which was shared 
has not been forwarded, misused and abused, 
despite being given reasonable opportunity to be 
heard. Your Company lost faith in the systems and 
processes of the Auditor and was of the view that 

secured with the Auditor.

 The Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 05, 
2019, had decided to recommend the members of 
the Company, the removal of M/s. S R B C & Co., LLP 
as Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company, subject 
to approval of the Central Government.

 An Extra ordinary General Meeting was held on 
May 30, 2019, for approval of members of the 
Company for removal of M/s. S R B C & Co., LLP, 
Chartered Accountants. The members of the 
Company considered and approved the said matter 
subject to the approval of the Central Government.

Government of India, vide its order no. 
RD (NWR)/Sec 140/64/2019/1427 dated June 7, 
2019 has approved the application under Section 
140 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 made by the 
Company for removal of M/s. S R B C & Co., LLP, 
Chartered Accountants, as one of the Joint Statutory 
Auditors. As per the order, the Regional Director has 
instructed the Company to re-obtain the approval 
of Shareholders within the prescribed time limit as 
mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013 and other 
applicable rules. In view of the same, the Board of 
Directors of your Company again recommends the 
resolution for the approval of the members of the 
Company in the ensuing Annual General Meeting by 
way of Special Resolution.

 M/s. Shah & Taparia, Chartered Accountant (Firm 
Registration No. – 109463W) were appointed as the 
Joint Statutory Auditor in the 8th Annual General 
Meeting held on September 29, 2018, for a period 

the 13th Annual General Meeting.

 Your Company has received written consent(s) 

Sections 139, 141 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule issued 

or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force), from 
M/s. Shah & Taparia.

 · Statutory Auditors’ Report
  During the period under review, no incident of 

frauds was reported by the Statutory Auditors 
pursuant to Section 143 (12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with 

II. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
 In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Board of Directors of your Company at 
its meeting held on May 30, 2018 has appointed 

M/s. SPANJ & Associates, Company Secretaries, as 
the Secretarial Auditor to conduct an audit of the 
secretarial records, for the Financial Year 2018-19.

 · Secretarial Audit Report
  Your Company has obtained Secretarial 

Audit Report as required under Section 
204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 from 
M/s. SPANJ & Associates, Company Secretaries. 
The said Report is attached with this Report 
as Annexure – F.

Secretarial Audit Report, hence no explanation 

22. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the rules made there under, the 
extract of Annual Return of the Company in form MGT-9 
is enclosed as Annexure - G to this report.

23. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
Details of loans, guarantees and investments under 
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and 
its Powers) Rules, 2014, as on March 31, 2019, are set 
out in Note [26] to the Standalone Financial Statements 
forming part of this report.

24. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
With reference to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, all contracts and arrangements with related 
parties under Section 188(1) of the Act, entered by the 

course of business and on an arm’s length basis.

During the year, the Company had not entered into any 
contract or arrangement with related parties which could 
be considered ‘material’ (i.e. transactions exceeding 
ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover as 

individually or taken together with previous transactions 

Company on materiality of Related Party Transactions. 
Accordingly, there are no transactions that are required 
to be reported in form AOC-2. However, you may refer 
to Related Party transactions in Note No. 26 of the 
Standalone Financial Statements.

25. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other 
details as required under Section 197 (12) of the Act 
read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
attached as Annexure -H which forms part of this report.

The statement containing particulars of employees as 
required under Section 197 (12) of the Act read with 
Rule 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
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Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is 
provided in a separate annexure forming part of this 
report. Further, the Report and the accounts are being 
sent to the members excluding the aforesaid annexure. 
In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure 

Company till the date of the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting during business hours on working days of the 
Company. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a 
copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary.

26. VIGIL MECHANISM
The Company has established a robust Vigil Mechanism 
and adopted a Whistle Blower Policy in accordance with 
provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, to provide 
a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to 
report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual 
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of 
Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate 

of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to 

no personnel of the Company have been denied access 
to the Audit Committee. The policy of vigil mechanism is 
available on the Company’s website at www.ia.ooo.

27. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
Internal Financial Controls are an integrated part of 

controls have been documented, digitised and 
embedded in the business processes. Assurance on the 

through management reviews, control self-assessment, 
continuous monitoring by functional experts as well 

the internal auditors during the course of their audits. 
We believe that these systems provide reasonable 

28. RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has a Risk Management Policy, which 
from time to time, is reviewed by the Audit Committee 
of Directors as well as by the Board of Directors. 
The Policy is reviewed by assessing the threats and 
opportunities that will impact the objectives set for the 
Company as a whole. The Policy is designed to provide 

impact, treatment and control measures. As part of 
the Risk Management policy, the relevant parameters 
for protection of environment, safety of operations 
and health of people at work are monitored regularly 
with reference to statutory regulations and guidelines 

29. DETAILS OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION 
PLANS
During the year, 22,35,896 options were granted 
to eligible employees of the Company in terms of 
Employees Stock Option Plan.

The Schemes are in line with the SEBI (Share Based 

of the Company that the Schemes are implemented in 

would be available at the Annual General Meeting for 
inspection by members. The applicable disclosures 
as stipulated under SBEB Regulations with regard to 
Employees Stock Option Plan of the Company are 
available on the website of the Company at www.ia.ooo.

30. Employee SAR SCHEME
During the year, 27,96,311 Stock Appreciation Rights 
(“SARs”) were granted to eligible employees of the 

Rights Scheme 2017

The Scheme is in line with the SEBI (Share Based Employee 

of the Company that the Scheme is implemented in 

would be available at the Annual General Meeting for 
inspection by members. The applicable disclosures 
as stipulated under SBEB Regulations with regard to 
Employees Stock Option Plan of the Company are 
available on the website of the Company at www.ia.ooo.

31. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The disclosures to be made under Section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 (3) of the Companies 
(Accounts)Rules, 2014 by the Company are as under

i) Conservation of Energy
 Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy:

to reduce its energy consumption through business 
operations of the Company which are not energy 
intensive. Some of the measures undertaken 
are listed below:

 2. Regular monitoring of temperature inside 

Conditioning system.

 3. Rationalisation of usage of electricity

 4. Planned preventive maintenance
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ii) Technology Absorption
 The Company by itself operates into the 

dynamic information technology space. 
The Company has adequate members in Technology 
development functions and keep updating the 
changes in technology.

iii) Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo
 Further during the year under review, details 

of foreign exchange earnings and outgo are 
as given below:

(` in Million)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Earning in Foreign Currencies 444.59    592.41 
Expenditure in 
Foreign Currencies

17.82    38.06 

32. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL 
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) 
ACT, 2013
The Company has in place a Policy on Prevention of 
Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints 
Committee has been set up to redress complaints 
received regarding sexual harassment. All employees 
are covered under the policy. No complaint has been 
received by the Company under this Policy during 
the year 2018-19.

The Company is committed to providing a safe and 
conducive work environment to all of its employees 
and associates.

33. CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of 
Conduct applicable to the Board of Directors and 
Senior Management. All the Board Members and Senior 

with the code of conduct. The Code of Conduct of 
Board of Directors is also available on your Company’s 
website www.ia.ooo.

34. SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED 
BY THE REGULATORS

the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting 
the going concern status of your Company and its 
operations in future.

35. OTHER DISCLOSURES
• The Company has complied with Secretarial 

Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of 
Directors and General Meetings;

• The Audit Committee comprises namely 
Mr. Keyoor Bakshi (Chairman), Mr. Vishal Mehta 
and Mr. Roopkishan Dave. Mr. Piyuskumar Sinha, 
Independent Director was appointed as the member 
of the Committee w.e.f. April 01, 2019. During the 
year under review, all the recommendations made 
by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board;

• The Managing Director of the Company has not 
received any remuneration or commission from 
any of Companies’ subsidiary;

• The Company has not issued equity shares with 

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Board places on record its appreciation for the 
continued co-operation and support extended to the 
Company by customers, vendors, regulators, banks, 

depositories, auditors, legal advisors, consultants, 
business associates and all the employees with whose 
help, cooperation and hard work the Company is able to 
achieve the results.

placed by the consumers of the Company and all 
its shareholders.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Place: Gandhinagar  Ajit Mehta
Date: June 29, 2019  Chairman

[DIN: 01234707]
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

1.  INTRODUCTION:
 As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 
Top 500 Listed Companies in India in terms of 

formulate a policy for Dividend Distribution and 
disclose the same on the website of the Company 
and the Annual Report.

 The Dividend Distribution Policy is intended to 
balance the dual objectives of appropriately 
rewarding shareholders through dividends and 

capital adequacy ratio to support future growth.

2.  DEFINITIONS:
2.1  “Board” shall mean Board of Directors 

of the Company.

2.2 “Companies Act” shall mean the Companies 

India, as amended.

2.3  “Dividend” includes any interim dividend.

Incorporation Limited).

2.5 “Policy” means Dividend Distribution Policy.

2.6  Regulations” shall mean the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India, as 
amended, from time to time.

3.  POLICY:
A.   PARAMETERS AND FACTORS FOR DECLARATION 

OF DIVIDEND
 The dividend pay-out decision of the Board 

and internal and external factors – 

 Financial parameters and Internal Factors:

 iv. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

 v. Working capital requirements

 vi. Capital expenditure requirement

 vii. Business expansion and growth

liabilities, if any

 ix. Additional investment in subsidiaries and 
associates of the company

 x. Up gradation of technology and 
physical infrastructure

 xi. Creation of contingency fund

 xii. Acquisition of brands and business

 xiii. Cost of Borrowing

 xiv. Any other factor not explicitly covered above 

on the Company.

 External Factors:
 i. Economic environment

 ii. Capital markets

 iii. Global conditions

 iv. Statutory provisions and guidelines

 v. Dividend payout ratio of competitors

B.   CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH THE 
SHAREHOLDERS MAY NOT EXPECT DIVIDEND

 The shareholders of the Company may not expect 
Dividend under the following circumstances:

 i. Proposed expansion plans requiring higher 
capital allocation;

 ii. Decision to undertake any acquisitions, 
amalgamation, merger, joint ventures, new 

 iii. Requirement of higher working capital for the 
purpose of business of the Company;

 iv. Proposal for buy-back of securities;

 vi. Any of the above referred internal or external 
factors restraining the Company from 
considering dividend.

C.  UTILIZATION OF THE RETAINED EARNING
 The Board may retain its earnings in order to 

make better use of the available funds and 
increase the value of the stakeholders in the long 

earnings of the Company shall be based on the 
following factors:

 • Market expansion plan
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 • Long term strategic plans

 • to take advantage of any business opportunities

 • Replacement of capital assets

 • Where the cost of debt is expensive

 • Meeting funding requirements of the 
Subsidiaries in accordance with their long 
term Business Plans

from time to time.

4.   POLICY FOR DIFFERENT CLASSES OF 
SHARES:

 The holders of the Equity Shares of the Company, 
as on Record Date, are entitled to receive dividends. 
Since the Company has issued only one class 
of Equity shares with equal voting rights, all the 

Members of the Company are entitled to receive 
the same amount of dividend per share. In the 
event the Company issues in future, any shares 
with preferential rights over equity shares, the 
same shall be adhered to in accordance with the 
terms of such issue.

5.  DISCLOSURE:
 This policy will be displayed on the website of the 

Company www.ia.ooo and also disclosed in the 
Annual Report of the Company as required by the 
Regulations in force from time to time. 

6.  AMENDMENTS TO THE POLICY: 
 The Board at its discretion may vary this policy, from 

time to time, including the aforesaid parameters 
and such changes will be updated on the website 
of the Company and further disclosed in the Annual 
Reports of the Company.
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The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate 
Governance for the year ended March 31, 2019, in 
terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (The “Listing Regulations”).

COMPANY’s PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages 
adherence to the highest levels of transparency, 
accountability and fairness, in all areas of its operations 
and in all interactions with all its stakeholders. 
The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance 

accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and fairness 
to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, 
customers, vendors, investors and the society at large.

The Company’s governance framework is based on the 
following principles:

with each member bringing in expertise in their 
respective domains;

• Availability of information to the members of the 
Board and Board Committees to enable them to 

• Timely disclosure of material operational and 

• Systems and processes in place for 
internal control; and

• Proper business conduct by the Board, Senior 
Management and Employees.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
its employees including the Directors and the Key 
Managerial Personnel (“KMP”). In addition, the Company 
has adopted a Code of Conduct for Independent Directors 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

which suitably incorporates the duties of Independent 
Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”). The Company’s corporate governance philosophy 
has been further strengthened through the Code of 
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and the 
Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of 
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
a) Composition and category of Directors
 We believe that our Board needs to have an 

appropriate mix of executive, non-executive and 
Independent Directors, to maintain its independence, 
and separate its functions of governance and 
management. The Listing Regulations mandate that 
for a Company with non-executive chairman, who 
is a promoter, at least half of the Board should be 
independent directors. As on March 31, 2019, our 
Board comprised eight members, consisting of one 
non-executive and non-independent Chairman, two 
Executive Directors, one non-executive Director 
and four Independent Directors. The Board 

and composition.

b) Directors’ Directorships/Committee memberships
 In accordance with Regulation 26 of the Listing 

Regulations, none of the Directors are members 
in more than 10 committees excluding private 
limited companies, foreign companies and 
companies under Section 8 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 or act as Chairperson of more than 
5 committees across all listed entities in which 
he/she is a Director. The Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are only 
considered in computation of limits. Further all 
Directors have informed about their Directorships, 
Committee Memberships/Chairmanships, including 
any changes in their positions. Relevant details 
of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2019 
are given below:

29-09-2018

Mr. Ajit Mehta
DIN: 01234707

Promoter/ 
Non-Executive 
Chairman

12 9 1 0 0 No -

Mr. Vishal Mehta
DIN: 03093563

Promoter/ 
Managing 
Director

12 12 6 0 0 Yes -
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29-09-2018

Mr. Malav Mehta
DIN: 01234736

Promoter/ 
Non-Executive 
Director

12 11 5 0 0 No 1.  Gujarat Natural 
Resources Limited

  Non-Executive -  
Non Independent 

 Director
Mr. Vishwas Patel
DIN: 00934823

Executive 
Director

12 3 1 0 0 Yes -

Mr. Keyoor Bakshi
DIN: 00133588

Independent 
Director

12 9 6 3 3 Yes 1.  Kiri 
Industries Limited

  Non-Executive, 
 Independent 
 Director
2.  Gokul Agro 

Resources Limited
   Non-Executive, 
 Independent 
 Director
3.  Saanvi 

Advisors Limited
  Non-Executive, 
 Independent 
 Director
4.  TTL 

Enterprises Limited
  Non-Executive, 
 Independent 
 Director
5.  Innovative Tyres 

& Tubes Limited
  Non-Executive, 
 Independent 
 Director

Mr. Roopkishan 
Dave
DIN: 02800417

Independent 
Director

12 8 1 0 0 No -

Ms. Vijaylaxmi 
Sheth
DIN: 07129801

Independent 
Director

12 6 0 0 0 No -

Mr. Piyushkumar 
Sinha
DIN: 00484132

Independent 
Director

12 6 4 0 0 Yes 1. Ujaas Energy 
 Limited
  Non-Executive,
 Independent 
 Director
2. Gujarat Gas 
 Limited
  Non-Executive, 
 Independent 
 Director

* The Directorship held by the Directors, as mentioned above excludes alternate directorships, directorships in 
foreign companies, Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Private Limited Companies, which 
were not the subsidiaries of Public Limited Companies.

Director’s Inter-se Relationship:

Mr. Ajit Mehta Father of Mr. Malav Mehta
Mr. Vishal Mehta

Mr. Malav Mehta Son of Mr. Ajit Mehta
Brother of Mr. Vishal Mehta

Mr. Vishal Mehta Son of Mr. Ajit Mehta
Brother of Mr. Malav Mehta

None of the other directors are related to any other director on the Board.
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c) Number of Board Meetings:
 The Company adheres to the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued 
thereunder, Secretarial Standards and Listing 
Regulations with respect to convening and holding 
the meetings of the Board of Directors and its 
Committees. The Board meets at regular intervals to 
discuss and decide on business strategies/policies 

Company and its subsidiaries. In case of business 
exigencies, the Board’s approval is taken through 

circular resolutions. The circular resolutions are 
noted at the subsequent Board Meeting

 During the Financial Year 2018-19, 12 (Twelve) 
meetings of the Board of Directors were held and 
the maximum time gap between two meetings did 
not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The notice 
and detailed agenda along with the relevant notes 
and other material information are sent in advance 
to each Director and in exceptional cases tabled at 
the Meeting with the approval of the Board.

 The dates of the Board meetings are as under:

April 25, 2018 May 07, 2018 May 30, 2018
August 14, 2018 September 01, 2018 September 04, 2018
November 14, 2018 December 03, 2018 December 17, 2018
January 19, 2019 February 14, 2019 March 30, 2019

 The Company provides the information as set 
out in Regulation 17 read with Part A of Schedule 
II of the Listing Regulations to the Board and the 
Board Committees to the extent it is applicable 
and relevant. Such information is submitted either 
as part of the agenda papers in advance of the 
respective Meetings or by way of presentations and 
discussions during the Meetings.

 The Company Secretary attends the Board 
Meetings and advises the Board on Compliances 
with applicable laws and governance.

d)  Disclosures Regarding Appointment/Re-
Appointment of Directors:

 Mr. Ajit Mehta, Director, is retiring at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, has 

 The term of Mr. Keyoor Bakshi, Independent 
Director, Mr. Roopkishan Dave, Independent 
Director expires on August 24, 2019 and term 
of Ms. Vijaylaxmi Sheth expires on March 19, 
2020. The Board of Directors of the Company has 
proposed their re-appointment for second term of 

 In line with the requirements of Listing 
Regulations, the re-appointment/appointments 
were made keeping in mind proximity to 75 

 Brief resume and other relevant details of the 
Director proposed to be re-appointed are given in 
the Notice of the AGM.

e)  The shareholding of the Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2019

No.

1. Mr. Ajit Mehta Non-Executive Chairman/ Promoter 3,01,14,780 4.54
2. Mr. Vishal Mehta Managing Director / Promoter 5,99,59,400 9.04
3. Mr. Malav Mehta Non-Executive Director / Promoter 1,70,24,200 2.57
4. Mr. Vishwas Patel* Executive Director 7,65,95,662 11.55
5. Mr. Keyoor Bakshi Non-Executive Director/ Independent Nil Nil
6. Mr. Roopkishan Dave Non-Executive Director/ Independent 1,000 0.00
7. Ms. Vijaylaxmi Sheth Non-Executive Director/ Independent Nil Nil
8. Mr. Piyushkumar Sinha Non-Executive Director/ Independent Nil Nil

  * Pursuant to the order dated May 7, 2018 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad 
Bench and in accordance with the Scheme of Amalgamation of Avenues (India) Private Limited with the Company, 
7,65,95,662 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each were allotted to Vishwas Patel on May 30, 2018.

 The Company has not issued any convertible instruments to any Directors of the Company during the 
Financial Year 2018-19.

 In terms of applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder and Part D 
of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
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its Committees along with performance evaluation 
of each Director to be carried out on an annual basis. 
Accordingly, the annual performance evaluation of 
the Board, its Committees and each Director was 
carried out for the Financial Year 2018-19.

 Structured questionnaires were prepared to evaluate 
the performance of the Board as a whole, individual 
performance of each Director and self – assessment 
carried out by the Directors. These assessment 
sheets with respect to the evaluation of the 
performance of the Directors were based on various 
aspects which, inter alia, included assessment of 
the level of participation, understanding of the role 
and responsibilities, understanding of the business 

contributions made during the Board meetings, 
understanding of the strategic issues and challenges 
for your Company etc. In assessing the overall 
performance of the Board, the parameters included 
the assessment of time devoted by the Board on 
the Company’s long term goals and strategies, 

meetings of the Board, time spent and quality of 
discussions on key subjects like risk assessment 

the performance of the Committees of the Board 
included aspects like understanding of the terms of 
reference by the Committee members, adequacy of 

of the discussions at the Committee meetings, 
information provided to the Committee to discharge 
its duties, performance of the Committee vis-à-vis its 
responsibilities, etc.

 The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee plays a vital role in undertaking the 
evaluation of performance of the entire Board of the 
Company, its Committees and individual Directors 
including Independent Directors. The Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee discussed on the 
evaluation mechanism, outcome and the feedback 
received from the Directors. The Independent 
Directors at their meeting also discussed the 
performance of the Executive / Non-Executive 
Directors including the Chairman of the Board.

 The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 
March 30, 2019, has noted the overall feedback on 
the performance of the Directors and the Board as 
a whole and its Committees. The overall outcome of 

and its Committees was positive and members 
expressed their satisfaction.

g) Independent Directors:
 The Company has on its Board, eminent 

Independent Directors who have brought in 
independent judgement to Board’s deliberations 
including issues of strategy, risk management and 
overall governance. They have played a pivotal role 
in safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders.

 The Independent Directors have submitted 
declaration(s) that they meet the criteria of 
Independence laid down under the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The Board 
of Directors, based on the declaration(s) received 

and are independent of the management of 
the Company. The maximum tenure of the 
Independent Directors is in compliance with the 
Companies Act, 2013.

 As per Regulation 17A of the Listing Regulations, 
Independent Directors of the Company do not 
serve as Independent Director in more than seven 
listed companies. Further, the Managing Director 
of the Company does not serve as an Independent 
Director in any listed entity.

 Policy of Code of Conduct and Term & Conditions of 
Appointment of Independent Director is placed on 
your Company’s website www.ia.ooo

h) Independent Directors’ Meeting:
 During the year under review, the Independent 

Directors met on February 04, 2019, without the 
attendance of Non-Independent Directors and 
members of the management, inter alia, to discuss 
on the following:

 •  To review the performance of the 
Non-Independent Directors and the 
Board as a whole;

 •  Review the performance of the Chairperson 
of your Company, taking into account views of 
Executive / Non- Executive Directors; and

 •  Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of 

management and the Board that was necessary 

perform their duties.

i) Familiarisation Programme:

for the Independent Directors to enable them to 

and its operations to gain a clear understanding of 
their roles, rights and responsibilities for enabling 
their contribution to the Company. They are 
provided a platform to interact with multiple levels 
of management and are provided with all the 
documents required and/or sought by them to have 
a good understanding of Company’s operations, 
businesses and the industry as a whole. They are 
updated on all business related issues and new 
initiatives. They are also informed of the important 
policies of your Company including the Code of 
Conduct for Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel and the Code of Conduct for Prevention 
of Insider Trading.
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 Further, on an ongoing basis, Independent Directors 
are regularly updated in the Board Meetings on 
various matters inter-alia covering the Company’s 
and its subsidiaries/associates businesses and 
operations, industry and regulatory updates, 

rights, responsibilities of the Independent Directors 
under various statutes and other relevant matters.

 Further, when a new Director is inducted on the 
Board, an information pack is handed over to the 
new director which contains Strategy and such 
other operational information

are uploaded on the website of your 
Company, www.ia.ooo

of the Company which are currently available with the Board:

International Business experience: world
General management/Governance: Strategic thinking, decision making and protect interest of all stakeholders
Financial skills:

mergers and acquisition, etc.
Strategy and Planning: Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in guiding and 

leading management teams to make decisions in uncertain environments.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board has constituted various Committees with 
an optimum representation of its members and has 

with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. 
These Committees hold meetings at such frequency as is 

deliver upon the responsibilities and tasks assigned to 
them. Your Company currently has 5 (Five) Committees 

Relationship Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
and Risk Management Committee.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors 
of the Company have, inter alia, revised the terms of 
reference of Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and Risk Management Committee of the Board of 
Directors of the Company in view of amendments to 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018 and amendments to 
the Companies Act, 2013.

1.  AUDIT COMMITTEE:
 The primary objective of Audit Committee is, to 

to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with 
the highest levels of transparency, integrity and 

process by the Management, internal auditors 
and independent auditors. The Audit Committee 
is responsible for selection, evaluation, and where 
appropriate, replacing the independent auditors in 
accordance with the law.

 The composition of the Audit Committee is in 
alignment with provisions of Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing 
Regulations. The members of the Audit Committee 

 The composition of the Audit Committee of the 
Board of Directors of the Company along with 
the details of the meetings held and attended 
during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019 is 
detailed below:

No.

1. Mr. Keyoor Bakshi Independent Director Chairman 11 9
2. Mr. Vishal Mehta Managing Director Member 11 11
3. Mr. Roopkishan Dave Independent Director Member 11 7

 Mr. Piyushkumar Sinha, Independent Director of the Company was appointed as the member of the Committee 

 Mr. Shyamal Trivedi, Vice President & Company Secretary, acts as a Secretary of the Committee.
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other related functional executives of the Company to attend the meeting when required.

May 30, 2018 July 03, 2018 July 16, 2018
August 14, 2018 September 01, 2018 November 14, 2018
December 03, 2018 December 17, 2018 January 19, 2019
February 14, 2019 March 30, 2019

 The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present 
at the last AGM held on September 29, 2018.

 The Audit Committee is empowered, pursuant 
to its terms of reference and its role, inter alia, 
includes the following:

 A)  Scope and functions:

 2. Recommending to the Board the appointment, 
remuneration and terms of appointment of 
the statutory auditor of the Company;

 3. Reviewing and monitoring the statutory 
auditor’s independence and performance, and 

 4. Approving payments to statutory auditors 
for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors;

 5. Reviewing, with the management, the annual 

thereon before submission to the Board for 
approval, with particular reference to:

  a. Matters required to be included in the 
Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 
included in the Board’s report in terms of 
clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 
of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended;

  b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and 
practices and reasons for the same;

  c. Major accounting entries involving 
estimates based on the exercise of 
judgment by management;

  e. Compliance with listing and other 
legal requirements relating to 

  f. Disclosure of any related party 
transactions; and

 6. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, 

before submission to the Board for approval;

statements of subsidiaries and in particular the 
investments made by each of them;

 8. Reviewing, with the management, the 
statement of uses/ application of funds raised 
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, 
preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds 
utilised for purposes other than those stated 

the report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a 
public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps 
in this matter. This also includes monitoring 
the use/application of the funds raised through 
the proposed Issue by the Company;

of transactions of the Company with 
related parties;

 10. Scrutinising of inter-corporate loans 
and investments;

 11. Valuing of undertakings or assets of the 
Company, wherever it is necessary;

risk management systems;

 13. Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors 
and employees to report their genuine 
concerns or grievances;

 14. Reviewing, with the management, the 
performance of statutory and internal auditors, 
and adequacy of the internal control systems;

 15. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function 
if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

heading the department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

 16. Discussing with internal auditors on any 

investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the Board;

 18. Discussing with statutory auditors before the 
audit commences, about the nature and scope 
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to 
ascertain any area of concern;
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 19. Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults 
in the payment to the depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment 
of declared dividends) and creditors;

 20. Reviewing the functioning of the whistle 
blower mechanism;

 21. Review and approve, policy formulated for 
determination of material subsidiaries;

 22. Review and approve, policy on related party 
transactions and also dealing with related 
party transactions;

 23. Approving the appointment of the chief 

and background, etc. of the candidate; and

 24. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned 
in the terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee and any other terms of reference 
as may be decided by the Board and/or 

2013 or Listing Regulations or by any other 
regulatory authority.

advances from/investment by the Company in 
the subsidiary exceeding ` 100 crore or 10% 

is lower including existing loans / advances / 
investments existing as on the date of coming 
into force of this provision.

 B)  Power of Audit Committee:
  The powers of the Audit Committee shall 

include the following:

  1. To investigate any activity within its 
terms of reference;

  2.  To seek information from any employee;

  3. To obtain outside legal or other 
professional advice; and

  4.  To secure attendance of outsiders with 
relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

 C)  Reviewing Powers:
  The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review 

the following information:

  1.  Management’s discussion and 

results of operations;

the Audit Committee), submitted by 
the management;

  3. Management letters / letters of internal 
control weaknesses issued by the 
statutory auditors;

  4.  Internal audit reports relating to internal 
control weaknesses;

  5. The appointment, removal and terms 
of remuneration of the internal auditor 
shall be subject to review by the 
audit committee; and

  6.  Statement of deviations:

   a)  Quarterly statement of deviation(s) 
including report of monitoring 
agency, if applicable, submitted to 
stock exchange(s) in terms of the 
Listing Regulations; and

   b)  Annual statement of funds 

document/prospectus/notice in 
terms of the Listing Regulations.

2.  STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
 The composition of the Stakeholder Relationship 

Committee is in compliance with the provisions 
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations.

 The constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee of the Board of Directors of your 
Company along with the details of the meetings held 
and attended by the members of the Committee 
during the Financial Year 2018-19 is detailed below:

No.

1. Mr. Ajit Mehta Non-Executive Chairman Chairman 4 4
2. Mr. Roopkishan Dave Independent Director Member 4 3
3. Mr. Malav Mehta Non-Executive Director Member 4 4

May 30, 2018 August 06, 2018 November 05, 2018
February 13, 2019

 The Committee looks into the matters of Shareholders/ Investors grievances along with other matters listed below:

 1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to 
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of 
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 3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services 
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

 4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by 
the shareholders of the Company.

requirements of Securities Laws.

 Investor Grievance Redressal:
 Details pertaining to the number of complaints received and responded and the status thereof during the 

Financial Year 2018-19 are given below:

issue of Duplicate Shares
0 0

Non-receipt of dividend warrants 0 0
Non-receipt of annual report 0 0

0 0
Others 0 0

 The Secretarial Department of the Company and the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India 
Private Limited attend to all grievances of the shareholders received directly or through SEBI, Stock Exchanges, 

Committee Meetings are circulated to the Board and noted by the Board of Directors.

3.  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
 The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is governed by its Charter and its composition 

is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the 
Listing Regulations.

 The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 
along with the details of the meetings held and attended by the members of the Committee during the Financial 
Year 2018-19 is detailed below:

No.

1. Mr. Roopkishan Dave Independent Director Chairman 5 3
2. Mr. Keyoor Bakshi Independent Director Member 5 5
3. Mr. Malav Mehta Non-Executive Director Member 5 4

July 06, 2018 August 14, 2018 October 25, 2018
February 14, 2019 March 30, 2019

 Mr. Piyushkumar Sinha, Independent Director of 
the Company was appointed as the member of the 

 The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee was not present at the last AGM of your 
Company held on September 29, 2018.

 The roles and responsibilities of the Committee 

Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, 
if any, besides other role and powers entrusted 
upon it by the Board of Directors from time to time. 
The roles and responsibilities of the Committee 
include the following:

 1. Formulating the criteria for determining 

independence of a director and recommending 

to the Board a policy, relating to the 
remuneration of the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees;

 2. Formulating of criteria for evaluation 
of the performance of the independent 
directors and the Board;

 3. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

 4. Identifying persons who qualify to become 
directors or who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria 
laid down, recommending to the Board their 
appointment and removal, and carrying out 
evaluations of every director’s performance;

 5. Determining whether to extend or 
continue the term of appointment of the 



Adding Value, Multiplying Growth |  83

Financial Statem
ents

Corporate O
verview

Statutory Reports 

independent director, on the basis of 
the report of performance evaluation of 
independent directors;

 6. Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various 
human resource and compensation matters;

remuneration packages for executive directors 
including pension rights and any compensation 
payment, and determining remuneration 
packages of such directors;

 8. Recommending the Board, remuneration 
payable to the senior management personnel 

shall be market-related, usually consisting of a 

 9. Reviewing and approving compensation 
strategy from time to time in the context of the 
then current Indian market in accordance with 
applicable laws;

 10. Performing such functions as are required to 
be performed by the compensation committee 
under the Securities and Exchange Board 

Regulations, 2014 and other regulations;

 11. Suggesting to Board/ shareholder’s changes in 
the ESOP and SAR;

 12. Deciding the terms and conditions 
of ESOP and SAR;

 13. Performing such other activities as may be 
delegated by the Board of Directors and/or 

2013 or Listing Regulations or by any other 
regulatory authority.

 Nomination and Remuneration Policy:
 During the year under review, the Board of Directors 

amended the Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
to bring it in line with the amendments to Section 
178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the 
Company has been uploaded on the Company’s 
website and can be accessed at: www.ia.ooo.

 Details of Remuneration:
 •  Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors 

(including Independent Directors):
  The Non-Executive Directors of the Company 

are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees. 
During the Financial Year 2018-19, the Company 
paid sitting fee for attending meetings of the 
Board/Committee/Independent Director.

  The Company has also taken a Directors’ & 

 • Remuneration to Executive Directors:
  The Board in consultation with the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee decides 
the remuneration structure for Executive 
Directors etc. On the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the Remuneration payable is approved by 
the Board of Directors and by the members 
in the General Meeting in terms of provisions 
applicable from time to time.

(` In Million)

Total
Mr. Ajit Mehta Non-Executive Chairman 0.22 0.00 0.00 0.22
Mr. Vishal Mehta Managing Director 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Mr. Malav Mehta Non-Executive Director 0.28 0.00 0.00 0.28
Mr. Vishwas Patel Executive Director 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Mr. Keyoor Bakshi Independent Director 0.31 0.00 0.00 0.31
Mr. Roopkishan Dave Independent Director 0.28 0.00 0.00 0.28
Ms. Vijaylaxmi Sheth Independent Director 0.12 0.00 0.00 0.12
Mr. Piyushkumar Sinha Independent Director 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.11
Total 1.32 0.00 0.00 1.32

during the Financial Year 2018-19.

 The Company has no pecuniary relationship with Non- 
Executive Directors except sitting fees for attending 
meetings of the Board/Committees thereof.

 Performance Evaluation:
 Upon recommendation of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee the Board of Directors 
has laid down the process, format, attributes 
and criteria for performance evaluation of the 
Board of the Company, its Committees and the 
individual Board members, including Independent 

Directors. On the basis of performance evaluation 
of Independent Directors, it is determined whether 
to extend or continue their term of appointment, 
whenever their respective term expires.

 The performance evaluation process for the 

4.   CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
COMMITTEE:

 The role of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee (“CSR”) is governed by its Charter and its 
composition is in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made thereunder.
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 The Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 
along with the details of the meetings held and attended by the members of the Committee during the Financial 
Year 2018-19 is detailed below:

No.

1. Ms. Vijaylaxmi Sheth Independent Director Chairman 1 1
2. Mr. Vishal Mehta Managing Director Member 1 1
3. Mr. Malav Mehta Non-Executive Director Member 1 1

May 30, 2018

 The role of CSR Committee is as under:
 a. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken 

by the Company in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.

 b. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities as above, and

 c. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time.

 d. Such other activities as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time.

Companies Act, 2013 and the CSR Expenditure thereon. The CSR policy of the Company is available on the 
website of the Company www.ia.ooo.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:
 The composition of the Committee is in conformity with the Listing Regulations, with majority of members being 

Directors of the Company. During the year under review, no meeting was held for the said Committee.

 The Composition of the Risk Management Committee as at March 31, 2019 is as under:

No.
1 Mr. Vishal Mehta Managing Director Chairman
2 Mr. Ajit Mehta Non-Executive Director Member
3 Mr. Malav Mehta Non-Executive Director Member

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
As on March 31, 2019, Your Company does not have a material subsidiary Company in terms of Regulation 16 of 
the Listing Regulations. A synopsis of the minutes of the Board Meetings of the Subsidiary Companies are placed 
at the Board meeting of your Company on periodical basis. The Audit Committee reviews the Financial Statements 
including investments by the unlisted subsidiaries of your Company.

The Policy for determining “material” subsidiaries has been placed on the website of your Company i.e. www.ia.ooo

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
a. Details of last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are given below:

2015-16 15-09-2016 2:30 p.m. H. T. Parekh Convention Centre, Ahmedabad Management 
Association, ATIRA Campus, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, IIM – A Road,
Vastrapur, Ahmedabad – 380 015
Special Resolution:

2. Approval of balance options under Employee Stock Option 
Scheme 2013-14

2016-17 18-09-2017 3:00 p.m. H. T. Parekh Convention Centre, Ahmedabad Management 
Association, ATIRA Campus, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, IIM – A Road, 
Vastrapur, Ahmedabad – 380 015
No Special Resolution was Passed.

2017-18 29-09-2018 11: 00 a.m. 23rd Floor, Gift Two Building, Block No. 56, Road – 5C, Zone – 5, Gift 
City, Gandhinagar – 382 355
No Special Resolution was Passed.
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b.  Whether special resolutions were put through 
postal ballot last year, details of voting pattern:

 During the year under review, no resolution was 
passed through Postal Ballot.

c.  Whether any special resolution is proposed to 
be conducted through postal ballot:

 No Special Resolution is proposed to be passed 
through Postal Ballot as on the date of this Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
1.  Publication of quarterly results:

the Company are sent to the Stock Exchanges and 
published in leading English and vernacular language 

all editions and Financial Express – Gujarati edition. 
Simultaneously, they are also put on the Company’s 
website and can be accessed at www.ia.ooo.

2.   New Releases and Presentations to institutional 
investors / analysts:

presentations are made to institutional investors 

These press releases, presentations and schedule 
of analyst or institutional investors meet are 
also put on the Company’s website and can be 
accessed at www.ia.ooo as well as sent to the 
Stock Exchanges. No unpublished price sensitive 
information is discussed in meeting / presentation 

3.  Website:
 The Company’s website, www.ia.ooo contains a 

separate dedicated section ‘Investor Desk’ where 
shareholders’ information is available.

4.  Annual Report:
 The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited 

Financial Statements, Audited Consolidated 

Financial Statements, Board’s Report, Auditors’ 
Report and other important information is 
circulated to members and others entitled thereto. 
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A) Report forms part of the Annual Report. 
The Company’s Annual Report is also available in 
downloadable form on the Company’s website 
i.e. www.ia.ooo.

5.  Stock Exchange:
 Your Company makes timely disclosures of 

necessary information to BSE Limited and the 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited in terms 
of the Listing Regulations and other rules and 
regulations issued by the SEBI.

6.   NEAPS (NSE Electronic Application Processing 
System), BSE Corporate Compliance & the Listing 
Centre:

 NEAPS is a web-based application designed by 
NSE for corporates. BSE Listing is a web-based 
application designed by BSE for corporates. 

Governance Report, Corporate Announcements, 
statement of investor complaints, amongst others 

electronically on NEAPS/ BSE Listing centre.

7.  SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES):
 The investor complaints are processed in a 

centralised web-based complaints redress system. 
The salient features of this system are: centralised 
database of all complaints, online upload of Action 
Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and 
online viewing by investors of actions taken on the 
complaint and its current status.

8.  Exclusive email ID for investors:
 The  Company has designated the email id ir@ia.ooo 

exclusively for investor servicing.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
(i)  Company Registration Details:
 The Company is registered in the State of Gujarat, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the 

(ii)  Annual General Meeting:
 Date          :  July 30, 2019
 Day           :  Tuesday
 Time          :  10.30 a.m.
 Place          :  23rd Floor, GIFT Two Building,
              Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5,
             GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar – 382 355.

(iii)  Financial Calendar:
 Financial Year        :  April 1 to March 31
 Tentative Schedule for declaration of results
 during the Financial Year 2019-20
 First Quarter         :  Mid August, 2019
 Second Quarter and Half yearly    :  Mid November, 2019
 Third Quarter and Nine Months    :  Mid February, 2020
 Fourth Quarter and Annual     :  End May, 2020
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(iv)  Dividend Payment Date  : N.A.
 • Dividends declared in the past –

2017-18 Interim 0.10 February 14, 2018 March 22, 2025
Final 0.10 September 29, 2018 November 4, 2025

 • Unclaimed Dividend/ Shares
  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, if the dividend transferred to the 

Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the 
date of such transfer then such unclaimed or unpaid dividend shall be transferred by the Company along 
with interest accrued, if any to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (‘the IEPF’), a fund established 
under sub-section (1) of section 125 of the Act. The details of unclaimed/unpaid dividend are available on 

 During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education 
and Protection Fund.

 •  Mandatory Transfer of Shares to Demat Account of Investors Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (IEPFA) in case of unpaid/ unclaimed dividend on shares for a consecutive period of 
seven years

  In terms of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (as amended from time 
to time) shares on which dividend has not been paid or claimed by a shareholder for a period of seven 
consecutive years or more shall be credited to the Demat Account of Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority (IEPFA) within a period of thirty days of such shares becoming due to be so transferred. 

owner claims the shares. Shares which are transferred to the Demat Account of IEPFA can be claimed 
back by the shareholder from IEPFA by following the procedure prescribed under the aforesaid rules. 
Therefore, it is in the interest of shareholders to regularly claim the dividends declared by the Company.

were transferred to the IEPFA.

(v)  Dividend Distribution Policy:
 As per Regulation 43A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the top 500 listed companies shall formulate a dividend 

distribution policy. Accordingly, the policy was adopted to set out the parameters and circumstances that will be 
taken into account by the Board in determining the distribution of dividend to its shareholders and/or retaining 

and also available on the website of the Company at www.ia.ooo.

(vi)   Book closure Date   : Tuesday, July 23, 2019 to Tuesday, July 30, 2019 (both days inclusive)

(v) Listing on Stock Exchanges:

1. BSE Limited (BSE)

Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001

539807

INE483S01020
2. National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

INFIBEAM

 Your Company has paid the listing fees to BSE and NSE.

(vi)  Market Price Data:
 The monthly high and low prices and volumes of your Company’s shares at BSE and NSE for the year ended 

March 31, 2019 are as under:

` ` ` `

2018
April 174.30 148.95 1,97,61,406 174.50 149.00 14,32,29,539
May 174.00 152.60 1,96,81,371 173.80 152.75 9,34,50,740
June 171.45 146.05 2,54,24,928 171.40 146.60 17,69,87,288
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` ` ` `

July 187.15 148.80 2,24,12,369 188.00 149.10 13,94,32,529
August 239.00 175.40 1,78,70,536 239.20 175.50 12,13,46,793
September 242.80 53.80 3,28,69,576 242.70 53.50 28,55,30,327
October 80.55 27.65 6,78,86,444 80.25 27.50 55,04,63,518
November 59.65 31.70 7,33,05,766 59.70 31.55 66,06,77,701
December 52.40 37.25 5,11,40,887 52.45 37.20 39,08,92,481
2019
January 49.05 37.15 2,90,86,424 49.00 37.15 21,22,91,361
February 41.40 31.70 2,72,58,238 41.70 31.65 22,56,66,869
March 46.45 35.65 3,72,12,498 46.60 35.60 25,15,77,158

 (Source: BSE and NSE website)

(vii)  Performance of the Share price of the Company in comparison to the BSE SENSEX and NSE NIFTY:
 The chart below shows the comparison of the Company’s share price movement vis-à-vis the movement of the 
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(viii) In case the securities of the Company are suspended from trading, the reasons thereof
 The Securities of the Company are not suspended from trading on the stock exchanges.

(ix)  Registrars & Transfer Agent
 Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) for both Physical and Demat Segment of Equity Shares of the Company:

C-101, 247 Park
L.B.S. Marg, Vikroli (West),
Mumbai- 400 083
Tel: +91 22 4918 6270

rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in

5th Floor, 506 to 508,
Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC -1),
Beside Gala Business Centre,
Near St. Xavier’s College Corner,

Tel: +91 79 2646 5179/86/87
Fax: + 91 79 2646 5179
E-mail: ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in

(x)  Share Transfer System:
 To expedite the transfer of shares held in physical mode the powers to authorise transfers have been delegated 

days. The details of transfers / transmission approved by the delegates, if any are noted by the Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee at its next meeting. The Company obtains from a Company Secretary in Practice 

 In case of Shares in electronic form, the transfers are processed by National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) / Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) through the respective Depository Participants.

securities (except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall not be processed from April 1, 
2019 unless the securities are held in the dematerialised form with the depositories. Therefore, Shareholders 

(xi)  Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2019:

Upto – 500 69,102 80.50 97,21,016 1.45
501 – 1000 7,740 9.02 63,50,256 0.96
1001 - 2000 4,161 4.85 64,47,310 0.97
2001 – 3000 1,472 1.72 38,25,205 0.58
3001 - 4000 742 0.86 27,13,658 0.41
4001 - 5000 553 0.64 26,22,643 0.40
5001 - 10000 1,015 1.18 74,65,661 1.13
10001 and above 1,057 1.23 62,42,46,491 94.10
Total 85,842 100.00 66,33,92,240 100.00

(xii)  Category of Shareholders as on March 31, 2019:

Promoters & Promoter’s group 25,35,29,909 38.22
Financial Institution & Banks 59,07,240 0.89
Foreign Portfolio Investors 3,65,73,995 5.51
Mutual Funds 1,20,165 0.02
Bodies Corporate 3,42,91,783 5.17
NRI 1,36,01,241 2.05
Individual 28,28,77,213 42.64
HUF 2,38,93,418 3.60
Clearing Member 97,95,610 1.48
NBFCs registered with RBI 5,355 0.00

27,96,311 0.42
Total 66,33,92,240 100.00
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(xiii)  Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any 
Convertible Instruments, Conversion Date and 
likely impact on Equity:

 As on March 31, 2019, your Company has 
outstanding 21,45,002 Fully Convertible Warrants 
convertible into equal no. of equity shares allotted 
to TV18 Broadcast Limited on Preferential Basis on 
March 29, 2018.

 Particulars with regard to Employees’ Stock 
Options are put up on the Company’s website 
i.e. www.ia.ooo.

(xiv) Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity:
 Equity shares of the Company can be traded only in 

electronic mode by all the investors. The Company 
has entered into an agreement and established 
connectivity with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL).

 Approximately 99.99% of the Equity Shares 
have been dematerialised as on March 31, 2019. 
Under the Depository System, the International 

the Company’s shares is INE483S01020.

 The Company’s shares are regularly traded on the 
‘BSE Limited’ and the ‘National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited’.

 The Company has sent three reminders to those 
shareholders holding shares in physical form advising 

their holdings at the earliest as it will not be possible to 
transfer shares held in physical mode going forward.

 The said measure of SEBI is aimed at curbing fraud 
and manipulation risk in physical transfer of securities 
by unscrupulous entities. Transfer of securities in 
demat form will improve ease, convenience and 
safety of transactions for investors.

 SEBI vide Press Release No. 12/2019 dated 

once lodged prior to deadline of April 1, 2019 and 

re-lodged for transfer.

(xv)  Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk 
and hedging activities: Not Applicable

(xvi) Plant Locations: Not Applicable

(xvii) Address for Correspondence:
 For any queries relating to the shares of your 

Company, correspondence may please be 
addressed to Link Intime India Private Limited at:

  5th Floor, 506 to 508, 
 Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC -1),
 Beside Gala Business Centre,
 Near St. Xavier’s College Corner,

 Tel No.: +91 79 2646 5179/86/87
  Email: ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in,
 Website: www.linkintime.co.in

continue to be accepted at the following Registered 

 

 CIN: L64203GJ2010PLC061366
 28th Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56,
 Road – 5C, Zone - 5, GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar,
 Taluka & District - Gandhinagar – 382 355
 Gujarat, India
 Tel: +91 79 6777 2204 Fax: +91 79 6777 2205
 E-mail: ir@ia.ooo Website: www.ia.ooo

President & Company Secretary

(xviii) Credit Ratings:
 The Company has not issued any debt instruments 

ended March 31, 2019.

 During the year under review, your Company has 
obtained long term rating of [ICRA] A+ (Stable) 
(pronounced as ICRA A plus) from ICRA Limited, with 
a stable outlook for the purpose of bank facilities.

 The Credit ratings were revised to [ICRA] A on 
December 10, 2018, due to subdued scaling up of 

OTHER DISCLOSURES
(i) Related Party Transactions:
 There were no materially Related Party Transactions 

Company at large during the Financial Year 2018-19. 
All transaction entered into by your Company with 
related parties, during the Financial Year 2018 
– 19, were in ordinary course of business and on 
arm’s length basis. The details of the related party 
transactions are set out in the Notes to Financial 
Statements forming part of this Annual Report.

 Also, the Related Party Transactions undertaken 
by our Company were in compliance with the 
provisions set out in the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations.

 The policy on related party transactions has been 
placed on the Company’s website and can be 
accessed through the following link: www.ia.ooo.

(ii)
Company has followed the accounting policies and 
practices as prescribed in the Accounting Standards.

(iii) Details of non-compliance by the Company, 
penalties, strictures imposed on the Company 
by the Stock Exchange(s) or SEBI or any statutory 
authority on any matter related to capital markets, 
during the last three years: Not applicable.
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(iv)  Commodity price risk and Commodity hedging 
activities:

 Not Applicable

(v) Whistle Blower Policy:
 The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy 

and Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy, 
has established the necessary vigil mechanism 

has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 
The said policies are also posted on the website of 
the Company at www.ia.ooo.

(vi) The Company has also adopted Policy on 
Determination of Materiality for Disclosures, Policy 
on Archival of Documents and Policy for Preservation 
of Documents. The said policies have been displayed 
on the website of the Company at www.ia.ooo.

(vii)  Adoption of Mandatory and Non-Mandatory 
Requirements

 The Company has complied with all mandatory 
requirements of Regulation 34 of the Listing 
Regulations. The Company has adopted following 
non-mandatory requirements of Regulation 27 and 
Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations

 a. The Chairman of the Company is a 
Non-Executive Director.

 b. Internal Auditors make directly presentation to 
the Audit Committee on their Reports.

statements of the Company are with 

(viii)

Regulation 32 (7A) of the Listing Regulations:
 Nil

 Ashish C. Doshi, Partner of SPANJ & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, has issued a 

board of the company have been debarred or 

as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of 

(x)  Where the board had not accepted any 
recommendation of any committee of the board 
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant 

 Not Applicable

(xi) Remuneration to Statutory Auditors:
 As required under Regulation 34 read with Part C of 

the Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Total 
Fees paid by the Company and its Subsidiaries on 
a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and 

statutory auditor is a part are as under:

 (` in Million)

Audit Fees 5.4
Other Services 1.96
Out of Pocket Expenses 0.27
Total 7.63

(xii)  Disclosure relating to Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013:

harassment at its workplace and has adopted a 
policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of 
sexual harassment at the workplace in line

 with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for 
prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual 
harassment at workplace. The policy is also available 
on the website of the Company www.ia.ooo

(xiii) 
for dealing with complaints relating to sexual 
harassment at workplace. The details relating to 
the number of complaints received and disposed of 

0

Number of complaints disposed of during NA

Number of complaints pending as on end NA

(xiv) The Company has complied with corporate 

17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 
Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations, 2015.

(xv) Dividend:
 The Company provides the facility of direct credit 

of the dividend to the member’s bank account. 
Listing Regulations also mandate Companies to 
credit the dividend to the members electronically. 
Members are therefore urged to avail of this facility 
to ensure safe and speedy credit of their dividend 
into their Bank account.

(xvi)  Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider 
Trading:

 The Board has adopted a code for the Prevention 
of Insider Trading in the securities of the Company. 
The Code inter alia requires pre-clearance from 
Designated Persons for dealing in the securities of 

and prohibits the purchase or sale of securities 
of the Company by Designated Persons while 
in possession of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information in relation to the Company besides 
during the period when the trading window is closed.
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(xvii) Code of Conduct:
 The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct 

for the Members of Board of Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel. This code has been 
displayed on the Company’s website at www.ia.ooo.

(xviii) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:
 As required by the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (SEBI), quarterly audit of the Company’s 
share capital is being carried out by a Practicing 
Company Secretary to reconcile the total admitted 
capital with National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) (collectively Depositories) and held 
in physical form, with the total issued and listed 

submitted to BSE Limited and the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited on a quarterly basis.

 As required under Regulation 17 of the Listing 

Financial Year 2018 – 19 signed by Mr. Vishal Mehta, 
Managing Director and Mr. Hiren Padhya, Chief 

Directors of your Company at their meeting held 
on May 30, 2019.

(xx)  Annual Secretarial Compliance Report:
 The Company has undertaken an audit for 

the Financial Year 2018-19 for all applicable 
compliances as per Securities and Exchange Board 
of India Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines 
issued thereunder.

 The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report has been 
submitted to the stock exchanges within 60 days of 

(xxi) Equity Shares in the Suspense Account:
 In accordance with the requirement of Regulation 

34(3) and Part F of Schedule V to the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, there are no equity shares lying in the 
demat suspense account.

(xxii) Others:
 A. Non-resident shareholders:
  Non-resident shareholders are requested to 

immediately notify:

  a. Indian address for sending all 
communications, if not provided so far;

  b. Change in their residential status on return 
to India for permanent settlement; and

  c. Particulars of their Non Resident Rupee 
Account, whether repatriable or not, with 
a bank in India, if not furnished earlier.

 B. Updation of shareholders details:
  1. Shareholders holding shares in physical 

form are requested to notify the changes 
to the Company/ its RTA, promptly by a 
written request under the signatures of 

  2. Shareholders holding shares in electronic 
form are requested to send their 
instructions directly to their DPs.

 C.  Shareholders are requested to keep record of 
their specimen signature before lodgement of 
shares with the Company to obviate possibility 

 D. Nomination of Shares:
  Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 extends 

nomination facility to individuals holding shares 
in physical form in companies. Shareholders, 
in particular, those holding shares in single 
name, may avail of the above facility by 
furnishing the particulars of their nominations 
in the prescribed Form No. SH-13 annexed to 
this report or download the same from the 
Company’s website.

DECLARATION
As provided under Regulation 26 (3) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, all Board Members and Senior Management 

provisions of the code of conduct for the year ended on 
March 31, 2019.

Ajit Mehta
Place: Gandhinagar Chairman
Date: June 29, 2019 [DIN: 01234707]
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To,
The Board of Directors

Gandhinagar.

hereby certify that:

2019 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

 1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the Financial Year 
2018-19, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify 

D.  We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee that:

Place: Gandhinagar
Date: May 30, 2019

Vishal Mehta
Managing Director

Hiren Padhya
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Members of
INFIBEAM AVENUES LIMITED
(Formerly known as INFIBEAM INCORPORATION LIMITED)
{CIN: L64203GJ2010PLC061366}
Gandhinagar – 382 355

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by INFIBEAM AVENUES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as INFIBEAM INCORPORATION LIMITED), for the year ended 31st March, 2019, as stipulated 
in Regulations 17-27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing 
Regulations’), pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company with Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 

statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and representation 
made by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance 
as stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

Moreover, as per information provided by the Company and declarations provided by the Directors, in terms of 
schedule V, Part C, Clause (10)(i), we further state that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 

Place: Ahmedabad  Ashish C. Doshi, Partner
Date: 19/06/2019 SPANJ & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries
 ACS/FCS No. : F3544
 C P No : 2356
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Introduction

payment solutions, high speed compute and storage 
data center service and a complete Software as a 
Service (SaaS) technology framework to businesses 
and governments who want to do online commercial 

As part of IWS, the Company provides digital payments, 
infrastructure (data center as a service) and platforms, 
to businesses in India and in the Middle East across 
industry verticals.

services through its brand CCAvenue to an estimated 
over 70% of India’s e-Merchants. CCAvenue is a PCI 
DSS 3.2 compliant payment gateway platform and one 
of India’s largest direct debit engine, with nearly 250 
payment options connecting to more than 55+ Indian 
banks on a real-time basis to process payments through 
Net Banking and also processes all types of Credit Cards, 
Debit Cards and Digital Wallets including UPI payments. 

in India. In UAE, CCAvenue ranks second in terms of 
payment processed among all the non-bank players.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
(Pursuant to Regulation 34 (2) (f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and  

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”)

compute and storage services.

merchants to transact online, manage the back-end 
(orders, inventory, and logistics), marketing, and accepting 

platform for one of India’s largest marketplace “GeM” 
(Government of India e-Marketplace).

having high growth opportunities which will potentially 
allow the Company to expand its digital payments 
and platforms businesses both in India and in the 
Middle East region.

The disclosures in this report are aligned to the Principles 
of Business Responsibility as prescribed under the 
National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental 
and Economic Responsibilities of Business (NVG-SEE) 

of India. This report provides transparent and relevant 

against the nine principles of Business Responsibility.

Section - A
GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY:

Particulars
1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L64203GJ2010PLC061366
2. Name of the Company

3. Registered address 28th Floor, GIFT Two Building, 

355 Gujarat, India.
4. Website www.ia.ooo
5. Email id ir@ia.ooo
6. Financial year reported April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019
7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial 

activity code-wise) Section J: Information and Communication
Code : 62013
Section K: Financial and insurance activities
Code : 66190

8. Three key products/services of the Company (as 
in balance sheet)

Digital payment and check out web services  
E-commerce related web services

9. Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by the Company
(a) Number of international locations Zero (0)
(b) Number of National locations Two (02)
10. Markets served by the Company Local State National International
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Section – B
FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY:

Particulars
1. Paid up capital as on March 31, 2019 ` 663.39 Million
2. Total turnover for F.Y. 2018-19 ` 5,539 Million (Standalone)
3. ` 389 Million (Standalone)
4. Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as a percentage of  0.89%

5. List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been incurred Refer Annexure E to Board’s Report 
for CSR Activities

Section - C
OTHER DETAILS:

Particulars
1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ Companies? Yes, refer Annexure B to Board’s Report
2. Do the Subsidiary Company/ Companies participate in the BR Initiatives 

of the parent Company? If yes, then indicate the number of such 
subsidiary Company(s)

The Subsidiaries are separate entities 

3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the 
Company does business with, participate in the BR initiatives of the 
Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity/entities? 
[Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

No other entity / entities participates in the BR 
initiatives of the Company. 

Section - D
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY (“BR”) IN FORMATION:
1.  Details of Director(s) responsible for BR
 (a)  Details of the Director responsible for implementation of the BR policy (ies)

Particulars
1. DIN 03093563
2. Name of Director Mr. Vishal A. Mehta
3. Designation Managing Director

 (b)  Details of the BR head

Particulars
1. DIN 03093563
2. Name of Director Mr. Vishal A. Mehta
3. Designation Managing Director
4. Telephone Number +91 79 6777 2204
5. Email ID ir@ia.ooo

2.  Principle-wise (as per National Voluntary Guidelines) BR Policy (ies)

The following sections capture BR compliances at the Group level.

 P1. Business should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

 P2. Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout 
their life cycle

 P3. Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees.

 P4. Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those 

 P5. Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

 P6.

 P7.

 P8. Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

 P9. Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.
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(a) Details of Compliance (Reply in Y/N)

No. P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1. Do you have a 
policy (ies) for …

Y
This 
forms 
part of 
the 
Code of 
Conduct 
and 
Whistle 
blower 
Policy.

Y
The policy 
is part of 
the Ecological 
Sustainability 
Policy and 
Code of 
Conduct.

Y
Code of 
Conduct & 
Internal HR 
Policies for
Employees.

Y
The 
Company 
does not 
have a 

policy, 
however 
certain 
aspect of 
this principle 
forms 
part of the 
CSR
Policy.

Y
This 
forms 
part of 
the 
Code of 
Conduct.

Y
This forms 
part of the
Company’s 
Ecological 
Sustainability 
Policy.

N Y
The 
Company 
has a 
CSR 
Policy.

Y
The 
Company 
has a 
Consumer
Policy 
Code of 
Conduct.

2. Has the policy 
been formulated 
in consultation 
with the relevant 
stakeholders?

Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y

3. Does the policy 
conform to 
any national/ 
international 
standards? 
If yes, specify? 
(50 words)

Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y

The spirit and content of the Code of Conduct and all the applicable laws and standards are captured 
in the policies articulated by the Company. The policies are based on and are in compliance with the 
applicable regulatory requirements and International Standards. Please refer the detailed report for 
more information.

4. Has the policy 
been 
approved by the 
Board?
If yes, has it 
been signed by 
MD/ owner/ CEO/ 
appropriate 
Board 
Director?

Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y

As a process, all the policies have been considered and noted by the Board. The Board authorised the 

5. Does the 
Company 

committee of 
the Board/ 

to oversee the 
implementation 
of the policy?

Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y

6. Indicate the link 
for the policy to 
be viewed online

All Policies which are statutorily required to be placed on the Company’s website can be accessed 
through the following link: http://www.ia.ooo/code-of-conduct-and-policies .

7. Has the policy 
been formally 
communicated 
to all relevant 
internal and 
external 
stakeholders?

Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y

The policies have been formally communicated to internal and external stakeholders, wherever 
applicable and required.
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No. P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

8. Does the 
Company have 
in-house structure 
to implement the 
Policy / Policies

Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y

9. Does the 
Company have 
a grievance 
redressal 
mechanism 
related to the 
Policy / Policies 
to address 
stakeholders’ 
grievances related 
to the policy (ies)

Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y

10. Has the Company 
carried out 
independent 
audit/ evaluation 
of the working 
of these policies 
by an internal or 
external agency?

Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y

Company has not carried out independent audit of the policies, the Internal Audit Function periodically 
looks at the implementation of the policies.

(b) If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why:  
 (Tick up to 2 Options)

No. P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1. The Company has not understood the Principles
2. The Company is not at a stage where it 

position to formulate and implement 
the policies on

3. The Company does not have 

resources available for the task
4. It is planned to be done within next 6 months
5. It is planned to be done within the next 1 year
6. Any other reason (please specify)

Considering the business activities of the Company and the nature of its 
business, the Board has not felt the need to formulate certain policies. 
However, the Board reviews the requirements from time to time and will 
formulate relevant policies as and when the need arises.

3.  Governance related to BR
Particulars

a. Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, 
Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR 
performance of the Company (Within 3 months, 3-6 
months, Annually, More than 1 year).

The Board of Directors of the Company, either directly 
or through its Committees periodically assesses the BR 
performance of the Company.

b. Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability 
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How 
frequently it is published?

The Company publishes the information on BR which forms 
part of the Annual Report of the Company. The Annual 
Report is also uploaded on the website of the Company 
i.e. www.ia.ooo
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Section – E
PRINCIPLE -WISE PERFORMANCE:
Principle -1 
Businesses should conduct and govern themselves 
with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
1.  Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and 

corruption cover only the Company? Does it 
extend to the Group/ Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs /Others?

 Company’s Code of Conduct (“The Code”) is based 
on the principles of Ethics, Transparency and 
Accountability and it underlines the belief that 
ethical behaviour in all operations is the corner 
stone guiding our governance of economic, social 
and environmental responsibilities. The employees 
of the Company and its subsidiaries are expected to 
adhere to the Code and report its violation as and 
when observed. The Code as well as the Company’s 
Policy on Prevention of Fraud applies to any 
irregularity, involving employees as well as vendors, 
contractors, customers and/or any other entities 
having a business relationship with the Company.

Policy in place to provide the employees of the 
Company and its subsidiaries a mechanism to raise 
concern with respect to any unlawful or unethical 
activity or violation of law or the Code including the 
policies formulated thereunder.

 Compliance with the statutory requirements has 
always been one of the focus areas. There is a 

business teams know their statutory responsibilities 

The compliance function, while on one hand 
keeps the Board and the senior management 
updated about the status of compliance with 
statutory requirements, on the other hand works 
with business teams to build capabilities through 
trainings and assessments.

 The system works through processes that not 
only ensures compliance with the requirements 
prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015, as amended from time to time, by making 
timely disclosures to stock exchanges, declarations 
by designated persons, preapproval of trading 
plans etc. but also moves ahead with the help of 
the Company’s Code of Practices and Procedures 
for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information. The Code is applicable to those 
employees of the Company, its subsidiaries and 
joint ventures, who may be deemed to have access 
to unpublished price sensitive information.

2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been 

percentage was satisfactorily resolved by the 
management? If so, provide details thereof, in 
about 50 words or so.

for receiving and dealing with complaints from 

employees, vendors, etc. There are dedicated 
resources to respond to the complaints within a 
time bound manner.

 For details of investor complaints, please refer 
Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report.

Businesses should provide goods and services that 
are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout 
their life cycle
1.  List up to 3 of your products or services whose 

design has incorporated social or environmental 
concerns, risks and/or opportunities.

Infrastructure (data center as a service) and 
cloud-based enterprise Platforms (PIP) and other 
ancillary services including data analytics, digital 

environmentally friendly.

to the national growth and that its digital services 

Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) that form the 
backbone of the Indian Economy, to be able to use 
the power of internet to increase their sales and 

by providing them a powerful online solutions 
to be able to do business online. The technology 
solutions in the area of PIP can help the large retails, 
brands and SMEs to transact online with ease and 
convenience, and help them to expand their reach 
to target a larger customer base enabling them to 
make more sales, at a reasonable cost. They can 
also avail customised web services that can further 
enhance their earning potential.

2.  For each such product and services, provide 
the following details in respect of resource use 
(energy, water, raw material etc.) per unit of 
product (optional):

 a) Reduction during sourcing/production/ 
distribution achieved since the previous year 
throughout the value chain?

 b) Reduction during usage by consumers 
(energy, water) has been achieved since 
the previous year?

internet. Our business is fundamentally 
done online and thus the usage of paper is 
limited due to the nature of the business. 
The Customers are encouraged to adopt 
paper-free practices like use of internet, 
mobiles, digital reports, digital payments and 
other such environmentally friendly initiatives 
that also enhance the digital culture; a step 

dream to be a digital economy. We generate 
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reports for our customers online at the push 
of a button and encourage paper-less usage. 
We follow other sustainable practices to 
reduce our impact on the environment and 

(HVAC) run time monitoring, installation of 

equipment, restricted printer and copier usage.

3.  Does the Company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

 a. If yes, what percentage of your inputs was 
sourced sustainably? Also, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

  Yes, the Company has procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing including transportation.

endeavours to reduce the environmental impact 
of its operations. The Company has made 

through various digital initiatives, some of which 
have been outlined elsewhere in this document.

  Our supplier analysis also takes into account 
the sourcing strategy of the supplier and 
proximity of the supplier to the location 
where the order request has been raised so 
as to improve logistics and save time, cost 
& emissions from unwanted transportation 
through longer routes.

4.  Has the Company taken any steps to procure 
goods and services from local & small producers, 
including communities surrounding their place 
of work? If yes, what steps have been taken to 
improve their capacity and capability of local 
and small vendors?

 The Business of the Company is service oriented 
and not material resource intensive. The human 
resources and other services required for our 
operations are generally sourced from within the 
local area to the extent feasible. The products 

at encouraging entrepreneurship, innovation and 
capacity building among the society as well as to 
enable them to scale up their business operations.

 During supplier evaluation process, if all other 
factors are on par between potential suppliers, 
then the Company will give preference to the 
local supplier or small producer and thus procure 
goods locally. For consumable and operational 
services, the Company prefers to connect with local 
vendors to supply the necessary manpower and 
other requirements.

5.  Does the Company have a mechanism to 
recycle products and waste? If yes, what is the 
percentage of recycling of products and waste 
(separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide 

details thereof, in about 50 words or so.
 Yes, The Company has a mechanism to recycle 

waste but since we do not manufacture products we 
don’t deal with product recycling. Our operational 
practices are focused to continually reduce 
consumption of paper and progressive measures 

to facilitate the same.

 Our initiatives also strive to meet sustainability 

resource utilisation.

Principle - 3 
Businesses should promote the well-being of all 
employees

Particulars
1. Total Number of Employees 628
2. Total number of employees hired on 

contractual basis
0

3. Number of permanent 
women employees

138

4. Number of permanent employees 
with disabilities

Nil

5. Is there an employee association that No

6. Percentage of your permanent 
employees who are members of this 

-

7.   Please indicate the number of complaints 
relating to child labour, forced labour, 
involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the 

 The Company’s policy prohibits engaging of any 
child labour or involuntary labour. Thus, there are 
no complaints relating to child labour, forced labour 
and involuntary labour.

1.
labour/ involuntary labour

Nil Nil

2. Sexual Harassment Nil Nil
3. Discriminatory 

Employment
Nil Nil

8.   What percentage of your under mentioned 
employees were given safety & skill up-gradation 
training in the last year?

 Employee training and skills development is an 
integral aspect of the Company’s human resource 
strategy. The Company’s training programs extend 
to all permanent and contractual employees, which 
are rolled out as per the annual training calendar and 
individual employee training needs. All contractual 
employees are given mandatory safety training on 
induction as well as on the job skills related training 
through the Contractors and the Company.
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 The details of employees who underwent skill 
up-gradation training during the FY 2018-19 
are as follows:

Permanent Employees 100%
Permanent Women Employees 90 %
Contractual Employees 0.00%
Employees with Disabilities 0.00%

Principle - 4 
Businesses should respect the interests of, and be 
responsive towards all stakeholders, especially 
those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalized.
1.  Has the Company mapped its internal and 

external stakeholders?
 The Company engages with multiple stakeholders 

through formal and informal channels of 
communication. The key stakeholder groups are 

 a) Employees

 b) Customers, Clients and Partners

 c) Investors

 d) Vendors/ Service Providers

 e) Regulators

 f) Community

 g) Associates

 h) Media

 The Company constantly strives to keep the 
channels of communication open and transparent 

stakeholder’s satisfaction and value creation.

the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized 
stakeholders?

vulnerable and marginalised stakeholders.

3.  Are there any special initiatives taken by the 
Company to engage with the disadvantaged, 
vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders? If so, 
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

in inclusive growth and equitable development 
for socio-economic betterment of the community. 
We extend support to the disadvantaged and 

and active employee volunteering.

Principle - 5
Businesses should respect and promote human 
rights
1.  Does the policy of the Company on human rights 

cover only the Company or extend to the Group/
Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGO s/
others?

  The Company is committed to upholding the 
dignity of every individual engaged or associated 
with the Company.

 The Fair Practices Code as well as Employee Code 
of Conduct, lays down the acceptable employee 
behaviour on various aspects including human 
rights. All employees, with direct interface to 
customers, are trained to be polite and courteous 
to customers under all circumstances. This focus on 
human rights extends towards all its interactions 
with stakeholders with utmost importance placed 
on fairness and transparency.

2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been 

percent was satisfactorily resolved by the 
management?

 No complaints on Human Rights were received 
during the year.

Principle - 6

to restore the environment
1.  Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only 

the Company or extends to the Group/Joint 
Ventures/Suppliers/ Contractors/NGO s/others.

 The Policy covers only the Company. However, the 
Company shall support its value chain to adopt 
this principle.

2.  Does the Company have strategies/ initiatives 
to address global environmental issues such 
as climate change, global warming, etc.? Y/N. If 
yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

or initiatives to address such issues. The Company 
has an Environment, Health and Safety Policy (“EHS 
Policy”) which is communicated to all employees. 
The EHS Policy is available on the Company’s 
website and accessed through the following 
link www.ia.ooo.

initiatives and environment management practices 
help us reduce our environmental footprint and 
help us achieve environmentally sustainable 
business practices.

3.  Does the Company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks?

 The Company is aware of the potential environmental 
risks. We have also integrated environmental 
and social safeguards into the business process. 
The Company continuously seeks to improve its 
environmental performance by promoting use of 

and use of renewable energy.

4.  Does the Company have any project related to 
Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide 
details thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, 
if Yes, whether any environmental compliance 

 As detailed under Points 1-3 above, The Company, 
through its initiatives, is aware of the importance 
of safeguarding the environment. As on date, the 
Company did not carry out any project related to 
the Clean Development Mechanism.
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5.  Has the Company undertaken any other 
initiatives on – clean technology, energy 

please give hyperlink for web page etc.
 The Company strives to manage its energy demand 

alternate sources of energy. The Company has 

consumption and increasing the energy share of 
renewable energy as a proportion of total energy 
consumption. The Company’s energy conservation 
initiatives can be categorised under process 
optimisation and automation, optimisation of 
electrical equipment and lighting. At present, it does 
not have any URL.

6.  Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the 
Company within the permissible limits given by 

 The operations of the Company do not result in any 

7.  Number of show cause/ legal notices received 
from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not 
resolved to satisfaction) as on end of Financial 
Year.

 No notices were received by the Company as on 
March 31, 2019.

Principle - 7

and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible 
manner
1.  Is your Company a member of any trade and 

chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those 
major ones that your business deals with:

 The Company is not a member of any trade and 
chamber or association.

2.  Have you advocated/lobbied through 
above associations for the advancement or 
improvement of public good? Yes/No; if yes, 
specify the broad areas (Governance and 
Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive 
Development Policies, Energy security, Water, 
Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, 
Others)

 Not Applicable

Principle - 8 
Businesses should support inclusive growth and 
equitable development

initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy 
related to Principle 8? If yes details thereof.

in line with the Companies Act, 2013. The Company 
has taken various CSR initiatives for the support 
and development of society. The report on the CSR 
projects carried by the Company is annexed with 
the Board’s Report.

2.  Are the programmes/projects undertaken 
through in-house team/ own foundation/
external NGO/government structures/any other 
organization?

 The Company, through NGO’s, supports various CSR 
initiatives in a project/ program mode. Please refer 
CSR activities in the Directors Report section of 
the Annual Report.

3.  Have you done any impact assessment of your 
initiative?

 Yes

4.  What is your company’s direct contribution to 
community development projects- Amount in 
` and the details of the projects undertaken?

 An amount of ̀  3.45 Million was spent towards various 

 The details of the CSR initiatives undertaken by 
your Company are set out in the Corporate Social 
Responsibility section of this Annual Report.

5.  Have you taken steps to ensure that this 
community development initiative is 
successfully adopted by the community? Please 
explain in 50 words, or so.

 Yes, we do regular monitoring of our projects to 
ensure that they are adopted and sustainable 
within the communities.

Principle - 9
Businesses should engage with and provide value 
to their customers and consumers in a responsible 
manner
1.  What percentage of customer complaints/

consumer cases are pending as on the end of 

 There are no material consumer cases / customer 
complaints outstanding as at the end of the 
Financial Year and all the pending complaints have 
since been resolved within the prescribed timelines.

2.  Does the Company display product and service 
information on the product label, over and 
above what is mandated as per local laws?

 Not Applicable

against the Company regarding unfair trade 
practices, irresponsible advertising and/or anti-

and pending as on end of Financial Year? If so, 
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so

 No.

4.  Did your Company carry out any consumer 
survey / consumer satisfaction trends?

 No.
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1.  A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:

 The Company’s CSR policy intends to focus on certain long term projects which shall include initiatives, inter 

sustainability, women empowerment and rural development which will enable creation of a sustainable 
livelihood in society and better human capital culture.

 The CSR policy of the Company covers the proposed CSR activities in line with Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Schedule VII thereto. The CSR Policy of the Company may be accessed on the Company’s website 
at www.ia.ooo. 

2. The composition of CSR Committee:
 As on March 31, 2019, the CSR Committee comprises following members:

 Ms. Vijaylaxmi Sheth - Chairman

 Mr. Vishal Mehta  - Member

 Mr. Malav Mehta  - Member

 ` 172.37 Million

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): 
 ` 3.45 Million

` 3.45 Million 

 b)  Amount unspent, if any: Nil

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
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(` in Million)

No.

1 Schedule VIU 
(ii) Promoting 
Health Care

For 
health awareness

Location: 
Ahmedabad, Gujarat
The objective is to 
serve and enrich 
quality of life of 

from diseases 

development of 
technology and 
human expertise, in a 
caring and nurturing 
environment 
with greatest 
respect for human 
dignity and life. 

3.45 3.45
1.  Direct 

Expenditure 
on Projects or 

 Programs:
 ` 3.45 
 Million
2. Overheads: 
 ` Nil

3.45 Amount spent 
through joint 
implementing 
agency called 
“Aadhar 
Foundation”

Total 3.45 3.45 3.45

years or any part thereof. – Not Applicable

objectives and Policy of the Company.

    Vishal Mehta                   Vijaylaxmi Sheth
 Managing Director           Chairman, CSR Committee
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To,
The Members
INFIBEAM AVENUES LIMITED

Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY,
Gandhinagar – 382355 (Gujarat)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by INFIBEAM 
AVENUES LIMITED (Formerly known as INFIBEAM 
INCORPORATION LIMITED) (hereinafter called “the 
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon.

other records maintained by the Company and also the 

secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2019 has complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 
that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 

the Company as per Annexure - A for the Financial Year 
ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 
made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 
rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 as amended form time to time;

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018;

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of 

Regulations, 2014;

 (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008;

 (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client;

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009; and

 (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities Regulations, 2018;

 However, it has been found that there were no 
instances requiring compliance with the provisions 
of the laws indicated at point (e), (g) and (h) of 
para (v) mentioned hereinabove during the 
period under review.

 We have also examined compliance with the 
applicable clauses of the following:

 (i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

 (ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the 
Company with the Stock Exchange(s) and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of

The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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VI.  We further report that having regard to the 
compliance management system prevailing in 
the Company and on examination of the relevant 
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on 
test-check basis, the Company has compliance 

 During the period under review, the Company 
has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards, mentioned 
hereinabove and there is adequate compliance 
management system for the purpose of other sector 

and mechanisms formed by the Company for 

applicable to the Company.

 We further report that
 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 

constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period 
under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. During the year under review 
Mr. Vishal Mehta was re-appointed as Managing 
Director of the Company pursuant to the approval 
of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting 
held on September 29, 2018 for a further period 

2018. Mr. Vishwas Patel was appointed as Executive 
Director at Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on 29th September, 2018. Mr. Piyushkumar 

Independent Director at Annual General Meeting of 
the Company held on 29th September, 2018.

 Adequate notice were given to all the directors to 
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days 
in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 

on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.

 Majority decision were carried through while the 
dissenting members’ views were captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes, wherever required.

 We further report that there are adequate systems 
and processes in the Company commensurate with 

and ensure compliance with applicable sector 

 We further report that during the audit period of 
the Company there were following events / actions 

in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

 • Scheme of Arrangement in the form of 
Amalgamation of Avenues (India) Private 

Limited with the Company was approved 
by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, 
Ahmedabad Bench and pursuant to order dated 
07th May, 2018, 11,98,60,000 Equity Shares of 
` 1/- each were allotted to the Shareholders of 
Avenues (India) Private Limited.

 • During the year under review, Foreign Wholly 
Owned Subsidiary of the Company in Dubai had 
acquired 100% shares of Vavian International 
Limited, Dubai.

 • During the year under review, at Extra 
Ordinary General Meeting held on 28th June, 
2018, the Company had altered Main Object 
Clause of Memorandum of Association and 
also had changed the Name of the Company 
from “ ” to 
“ ”.

 • During the year under review, the Company 
had passed Ordinary Resolution for increase 
in Authorised Share Capital of the Company 
from existing ` 68,25,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty 
Eight Crores Twenty Five Lakhs only) divided 
into 68,00,00,000 (Sixty Eight Crores) Equity 
Shares of ` 1/- each and 2,50,000 (Two 
Lakhs Fifty Thousand) 0.01% Compulsory 
Convertible Preference Shares of ` 10/- each 
to ` 90,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety Crores only) 
divided into 89,75,00,000 (Eighty Nine Crores 
Seventy Five Lakhs) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each 
and 2,50,000 (Two Lakhs Fifty Thousand) 0.01% 
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 
` 10/- each at the Annual General Meeting held 
on 29thSeptember, 2018.

 • During the year under review, the Company 
has passed Special Resolution for dilution / 
divestment of 100% Equity Stake along with 

(“NSI”), a wholly owned and material subsidiary 
of the Company for a consideration as may 
be agreed upon by the Board to Suvidhaa 
Infoserve Private Limited or its designated 
nominees through Scheme of Arrangement, 
at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 
12th January, 2019.

 • During the year under review, the Company has 

(India) Limited (“IIL”), a Wholly Owned Subsidiary 
of the Company to Ingenious E-Commerce 
Private Limited w.e.f. 23rd January, 2019 at a 
Consideration of ` 60.00 Crores.

 • During the year under review, the Company 

 • During the year under review, the Company 
has invested ` 60.00 Crores in Equity shares of 
Ingenius E-Commerce Private Limited.
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 • During the year under review, the Company 
has invested ` 90.77 Crores in Equity stake of 

 • During the year under review, the Company 
has acquired shares held by INFIBEAM GLOBAL 
EMEA FZ-LLC, Dubai, United Arab Emirates in 
Vavian International Limited.

 • During the year under review, Unipropitia-FZCO 
has invested in 51% shares of INFIBEAM 
GLOBAL EMEA FZ-LLC, Dubai, United Arab 
Emirates, hence it is no longer Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary of the Company.

 • During the year under review, the Company 
received an anonymous complaint dated 
February 26, 2019 (received on February 28, 

results of the Company by S R B C & Co., 
LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Reg. No. – 
324982E/ E300003)(one of the Joint Statutory 

Auditors of the Company) (“the Auditors”)with 
third parties on several occasions before the 
results could be disclosed to stock exchanges 
as required under applicable laws. 
The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 
May 5, 2019, after following necessary process 
of giving opportunity of being heard, decided 

Statutory Auditors of the Company subject to 
approval of the Central Government and/or 
the other relevant regulatory authorities and 
the shareholders of the Company in terms 
of section 140(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Regional Director (NWR) in Form ADT 2 and 
has also received order allowing application 
of the company by Hon’ble Regional Director, 
North-West Region, Ahmedabad dated 
07th June, 2019.

Ashish C. Doshi, Partner
SPANJ & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Place: Ahmedabad ACS/FCS No. :  F3544
Date: 19/06/2019 C P No : 2356

Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure B and forms an integral 
part of this report.
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ANNEXURE - A

1.  Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company.

2.  Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees including Audit Committee, Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee,Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
held during the period under report.

3.  Minutes of General Body Meetings held during the period under report.

4.  Statutory Registers/Records under the Act and rules made there under.

5.  Agenda papers submitted to all the Directors / Members for the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings.

6.  Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 184 of the Act.

7.  Intimations/Disclosure/Declaration received from Directors under & The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

thereof during the period under report.

Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange and the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the period under report.

10. Communications/ Letters issued to and acknowledgements received from the Independent Directors for 
their appointment.

11. Various policies framed by the Company from time to time as required under the Act as well as Listing Agreement 
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with circulars issued by the 
SEBI from time to time as mentioned hereunder:

 - Code of Conduct of Directors and KMPs

 - Code of Conduct for Independent Directors

 - Nomination & Remuneration Policy

 - Policy relating to Terms and Conditions for Appointment of Independent Director

 - Materiality of Events Policy

 - Website Content Archival Policy

 - Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries

 - Policy on Preservation of Documents

 - Related Party Transaction Policy

 - Whistle Blower Policy

 - Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women

 - Code of Conduct of Employee

 - Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading

 - Corporate Social Responsible Policy (CSR Policy)

 - Remuneration Policy for Non- Executive Directors

 - Policy on Board Diversity

 - Dividend Distribution Policy

 - Risk Management Policy

 - Policy for Procedure of Inquiry in case of Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
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Annexure - B

To,
The Members
INFIBEAM AVENUES LIMITED
(Formerly known as INFIBEAM INCORPORATION LIMITED)

Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY,
Gandhinagar - 382355 (Gujarat)

Sir,

Sub: Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2019.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

Ashish C. Doshi, Partner
SPANJ & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Place: Ahmedabad ACS/FCS No. :  F3544
Date: 19/06/2019 C P No : 2356
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FORM NO. MGT - 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 

Administration) Rules, 2014

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
1. CIN L64203GJ2010PLC061366
2. Registration Date June 30, 2010
3. Name of the Company

(
4. Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by Shares

Indian Non- Government Company
5. 28th Floor, GIFT Two Building,

Block No. 56, Road – 5C, Zone - 5,
GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar,
Taluka & District - Gandhinagar – 382 355,
Gujarat, India
Tel: +91 79 6777 2204

E-mail: ir@ia.ooo
Website: www.ia.ooo

6. Whether listed company Yes
7. Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & 

Transfer Agent, if any.
Link Intime India Private Limited
5th Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC -1),
Beside Gala Business Centre,
Near St. Xavier’s College Corner,

Tel: +91 79 2646 5179/86/87
Fax: + 91 79 2646 5179
E-mail: ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
 (All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

No.

1. Digital payments and check out web services 66190 93%
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

1. Odigma Consultancy Solutions 
Private Limited
211, 3rd Floor, “KASTHURI”, Kasturi 
Nagar Service Road, Outer Ring Road, 
Bangalore – 560043

U72900KA2011PTC057298 Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary

100.00 2(87)

2.
909, 9th Floor, Shitiratna Complex, 

Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad -380 006

U63090GJ2013PTC074135 Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary

100.00 2(87)

3.

Mumbai – 400 054

U74900MH2013PTC239708 Wholly owned 
Subsidiary 

100.00 2(87)

4.
Private Limited
23rd Floor, Gift Two Building, Block No. 56, 
Road-5C, Zone-5, Gift City, Gandhinagar, 
Taluka & District - Gandhinagar – 382 355

U72200GJ2012PTC070882 Subsidiary 74.00 2(87)

5. DRC Systems India Private Limited

Road-5c, Zone-5, Gift City, Gandhinagar, 
Taluka & District - Gandhinagar – 382 355

U72900GJ2012PTC070106 Subsidiary 51.00 2(87)

6. Vavian International Limited
PO Box 11429, Dubai-UAE

NA* Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary

100.00 2(87)

7. Avenues World FZ-LLC**
PO Box 500416, Dubai-UAE

NA* Step down
Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary

100.00 2(87)

8.
27th Floor, GIFT Two Building, 
Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, 
GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar Taluka & 
District – 382355

U64203GJ2002PTC040741 Associate 93.59 2(6)

9.
Premises: 52, Floor: Ground, Building: 17, 
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

NA* Associate 49.00 2(6)

10. Avenues Payments India 
Private Limited

Mumbai – 400 054 

U72200MH1999PTC123313 Associate 22.69 2(6)

11. Instant Global Paytech Private Limited
6th Floor, Seasons Avenue, Linking Road, 
Khar, Mumbai - 400052

U74999MH2018PTC308260 Associate 48.00 2(6)

* Incorporated Outside India.

** It is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company of Vavian International Limited, hence, a step down Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary Company of your Company.
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):
i)  Category-wise Share Holding

Total Total

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 15,55,36,790 - 15,55,36,790 28.65 15,55,36,790 - 15,55,36,790 23.45 (5.20)
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. 9,21,51,440 - 9,21,51,440 16.98 9,79,93,119 - 9,79,93,119 14.77 (2.21)
e) Banks / FI
f) Any other
Sub-Total [A](1) 24,76,88,230 - 24,76,88,230 45.63 25,35,29,909 - 25,35,29,909 38.22 (7.41)
(2) Foreign
a) NRI-Individual - - - - - - - - -
b) Other-Individual - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
e) Any other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-Total [A] (2) - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding 
of Promoter (A) = 
(A) (1)+(A) (2)

24,76,88,230 - 24,76,88,230 45.63 25,35,29,909 - 25,35,29,909 38.22 (7.41)

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions - - - - -
a) Mutual Funds 1,55,03,527 - 1,55,03,527 2.86 1,20,165 - 1,20,165 0.02 (2.84)
b) Banks / FI 36,66,681 - 36,66,681 0.67 59,07,240 - 59,07,240 0.89 0.22
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
g) Foreign 
Portfolio Investor

5,04,57,873 - 5,04,57,873 9.30 3,65,73,995 - 3,65,73,995 5.51 (3.79)

h) Foreign 
Venture Capital Funds

,- - - - -

i) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1):- 6,96,28,081 - 6,96,28,081 12.83 4,26,01,400 - 4,26,01,400 6.42 (6.41)
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 4,14,18,135 - 4,14,18,135 7.63 3,42,91,783 - 3,42,91,783 5.17 (2.46)
ii) Overseas - - - - -
b) Individuals
i) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share 
capital upto ` 1 lakh

96,97,969 1,24,650 98,22,619 1.81 5,07,26,820 92,150 5,08,18,970 7.66 5.85

ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in 
excess of ` 1 lakh

13,03,24,675 12,63,800 13,15,88,475 24.24 23,15,15,023 5,43,220 23,20,58,243 34.98 10.74

NBFC 
Registered with RBI

0 0 0 0.00 5,355 0 5,355 0.00 0.00

c) Others (specify)
i) HUF 2,58,35,023 0 2,58,35,023 4.76 2,38,93,418 0 2,38,93,418 3.60 (1.16)
ii) NRI 99,72,270 0 99,72,270 1.84 1,36,01,241 0 1,36,01,241 2.05 0.21
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Total Total

iii) Clearing Members 44,69,457 0 44,69,457 0.82 97,95,610 0 97,95,610 1.48 0.66
iv) Trust 6,32,000 0 6,32,000 0.12 0 0 0 0.00 (0.12)
Sub-total (B)(2) 22,23,49,529 13,88,450 22,37,37,979 41.22 36,38,29,250 6,35,370 36,44,64,620 54.94 13.72
Total Public 
Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1)+ (B)(2)

29,19,77,610 13,88,450 29,33,66,060 54.05 40,64,30,650 6,35,370 40,70,66,020 61.36 7.31

C. Non 
Promoter - Non Public

17,29,100 - 17,29,100 0.32 27,96,311 - 27,96,311 0.42 0.10

1. Shares held 
by Custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs

- - - - -

Trust (under SEBI 
(Share based 

Regulations, 2014)

17,29,100 - 17,29,100 0.32 27,96,311 - 27,96,311 0.42 0.10

Grand Total (A+B+C) 54,13,94,940 13,88,450 54,27,83,390 100.00 66,27,56,870 6,35,370 66,33,92,240 100.00 0.00

ii)  Shareholding of Promoter (including Promoter Group)

No.

1. Mr. Ajit C. Mehta 3,01,14,780 5.55 - 3,01,14,780 4.54 - (1.01)
2. Ms. Jayshree A. Mehta 3,01,14,780 5.55 - 3,01,14,780 4.54 - (1.01)
3. Mr. Malav A. Mehta 1,70,24,200 3.14 2.20 1,70,24,200 2.57 2.12 (0.57)
4. Mr. Vishal A. Mehta 5,99,59,400 11.05 - 5,99,59,400 9.04 - (2.01)
5. Ms. Nirali Mehta* 1,50,59,200 2.77 - 1,50,59,200 2.27 - (0.50)
6. Ms. Anoli Mehta* 9,68,510 0.18 - 9,68,510 0.15 - (0.03)
7. Mr. Subhashchandra 

R. Amin*
20,58,790 0.38 - 20,58,790 0.31 - (0.07)

8. Ms. Shreya N. Parikh* 2,000 0.00 - 2,000 0.00 - 0.00
9. Ms. Pallavi Kumarpal* 23,340 0.00 - 23,340 0.00 - 0.00
10. Ms. Mokshadaben 

P. Sheth*
25,000 0.00 - 25,000 0.00 - 0.00

11. Ms. Bhadrika A. Shah* 10,340 0.00 - 10,340 0.00 - 0.00
12. Ms. Achalaben S. Amin* 1,76,450 0.03 - 1,76,450 0.03 - 0.00
13.

Private Limited*
80,07,440 1.48 - 80,07,440 1.21 - (0.27)

14.
Private Limited*

1,45,55,900 2.68 - 1,45,55,900 2.19 0.38 (0.49)

15.
Private Limited*

1,05,07,880 1.94 - 1,05,07,880 1.58 0.75 (0.36)

16.
Private Limited*

5,30,47,220 9.77 - 5,30,47,220 8.00 4.15 (1.77)

17.
Private Limited*

44,74,000 0.82 - 48,34,655 0.73 - (0.09)

18. O3 Developers Private 
Limited
(Formerly known as 

*

15,59,000 0.29 - 70,40,024 1.06 - 0.77
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No.

19.
Resources & Management 
Private Limited*

- - - - - - -

20. ING Satcom Limited* - - - - - - -
21. TIW Systems 

Private Limited*
- - - - - - -

22. Yoro Club LLP* - - - - - - -
23. Vima Enterprises LLP* - - - - - - -
24. Lubi Industries LLP* - - - - - - -
25. Ajit Mehta HUF* - - - - - - -
26. Vishal Mehta HUF * - - - - - - -
27. Malav Mehta HUF* - - - - - - -
28. V.M. Associates* - - - - - - -

TOTAL 24,76,88,230 45.63 2.20 25,35,29,909 38.22 7.4 (7.41)
* Forms part of the Promoter Group

Note: The details of holding have been clubbed based on PAN.

iii)  Change in Promoters’ (including Promoter Group) Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

No.

1. Mr. Ajit C. Mehta 3,01,14,780 5.55 No Change 3,01,14,780 4.54
2. Ms. Jayshree A. Mehta 3,01,14,780 5.55 No Change 3,01,14,780 4.54
3. Mr. Malav A. Mehta 1,70,24,200 3.14 No Change 1,70,24,200 2.57
4. Mr. Vishal A. Mehta 5,99,59,400 11.05 No Change 5,99,59,400 9.04
5. Ms. Nirali Mehta 1,50,59,200 2.77 No Change 1,50,59,200 2.27
6. Ms. Anoli Mehta 9,68,510 0.18 No Change 9,68,510 0.15
7. Mr. Subhashchandra R. Amin 20,58,790 0.38 No Change 20,58,790 0.31
8. Ms. Shreya N. Parikh 2,000 0.00 No Change 2,000 0.00
9. Ms. Pallavi Kumarpal 23,340 0.00 No Change 23,340 0.00
10. Ms. Mokshadaben P. Sheth 25,000 0.00 No Change 25,000 0.00
11. Ms. Bhadrika A. Shah 10,340 0.00 No Change 10,340 0.00
12. Ms. Achalaben S. Amin 1,76,450 0.03 No Change 1,76,450 0.03
13. 80,07,440 1.48 No Change 80,07,440 1.21
14.

Private Limited
1,45,55,900 2.68 No Change 1,45,55,900 2.19

15.
Private Limited

1,05,07,880 1.94 No Change 1,05,07,880 1.58

16.
Private Limited

5,30,47,220 9.77 No Change 5,30,47,220 8.00

17.
Private Limited

44,74,000 0.82 02-07-2018 1,42,300 Purchase 46,16,300 0.70
03-07-2018 83,180 Purchase 46,99,480 0.71
04-07-2018 1,00,175 Purchase 47,99,655 0.72
05-07-2018 35,000 Purchase 48,34,655 0.73

At the end of the year
(March 31, 2019)

48,34,655 0.73
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No.

18. O3 Developers Private Limited

*

15,59,000 0.29 05-06-2018  56,238 Purchase 16,15,238 0.24
06-06-2018  7,74,187 Purchase 23,89,425 0.36
07-06-2018  26,20,203 Purchase 50,09,628 0.76
02-07-2018  3,00,000 Purchase 53,09,628 0.80
03-07-2018  1,30,832 Purchase 54,40,460 0.82
05-07-2018  1,00,000 Purchase 55,40,460 0.84
06-07-2018  1,00,000 Purchase 56,40,460 0.85
26-07-2018  63,725 Purchase 57,04,185 0.86
21-09-2018 13,35,839 Purchase 70,40,024 1.06

At the end of the year
(March 31, 2019)

70,40,024 1.06

19.
Management Private Limited

0 0.00 No Change 0 0.00

20. ING Satcom Limited 0 0.00 No Change 0 0.00
21. TIW Systems Private Limited 0 0.00 No Change 0 0.00
22. Yoro Club LLP 0 0.00 No Change 0 0.00
23. Vima Enterprises LLP 0 0.00 No Change 0 0.00
24. Lubi Industries LLP 0 0.00 No Change 0 0.00
25. Ajit Mehta HUF 0 0.00 No Change 0 0.00
26. Vishal Mehta HUF 0 0.00 No Change 0 0.00
27. Malav Mehta HUF 0 0.00 No Change 0 0.00
28. V.M. Associates 0 0.00 No Change 0 0.00

 * % of Shares of the Company is based on the paid up Capital of the Company at the end of the Year.

Note: The details of holding have been clubbed based on PAN.

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs 
and ADRs)

No.

1. Variniben Vishwaskumar Patel 0 0.00
Allotment under Scheme 
of Amalgamation

30-05-2018 2,92,50,000 2,92,50,000 4.41

At the end of the year 2,92,50,000 4.41
2. Mayur Mukundlal Desai 1,90,00,000 3.50

At the end of the year 1,90,00,000 2.86
3. Sonal Mayurbhai Desai 1,50,00,000 2.76

Sale 18-05-2018 (5,000) 1,49,95,000 2.26
Sale 17-08-2018 (2,000) 1,49,93,000 2.26
Purchase 29-09-2018 2,000 1,49,95,000 2.26
Sale 21-12-2018 (10,000) 1,49,85,000 2.26
At the end of the year 1,49,85,000 2.26

4. Desai Abhishek Mayur 1,46,50,801 2.70
Sale 06-04-2018 (4,25,000) 1,42,25,801 2.14
At the end of the year 1,42,25,801 2.14
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No.

5. 0 0.00
Purchase 01-06-2018 20,41,380 20,41,380 0.31
Purchase 08-06-2018 19,66,185 40,07,565 0.60
Sale 24-08-2018 (22,18,432) 17,89,133 0.27
Sale 31-08-2018 (17,89,133) 0 0.00
Purchase 05-10-2018 87,41,079 87,41,079 1.32
Purchase 12-10-2018 19,00,290 1,06,41,369 1.60
Purchase 19-10-2018 53,626 1,06,94,995 1.61
Purchase 26-10-2018 15,00,000 1,21,94,995 1.84
At the end of the year 1,21,94,995 1.84

6. Mayur Mukundlal Desai 52,36,774 0.97
Sale 06-04-2018 (2,30,000) 50,06,774 0.75
Purchase 13-04-2018  2,10,000 52,16,774 0.79
Sale 20-04-2018  (1,70,000) 50,46,774 0.76
Sale 21-09-2018  (5,000) 50,41,774 0.76
Purchase 05-10-2018  28,00,697 78,42,471 1.18
Purchase 02-11-2018  12,10,000 90,52,471 1.36
Purchase 09-11-2018  13,80,000 1,04,32,471 1.57
Purchase 16-11-2018  7,43,000 1,11,75,471 1.68
Purchase 23-11-2018  3,00,000 1,14,75,471 1.73
Purchase 30-11-2018  2,18,350 1,16,93,821 1.76
Purchase 07-12-2018  62,000 1,17,55,821 1.77
Purchase 21-12-2018  20,000 1,17,75,821 1.77
Purchase 08-02-2019  75,000 1,18,50,821 1.79
Sale 22-02-2019  (75,000) 1,17,75,821 1.78
At the end of the year 1,17,75,821 1.78

7. Vadathavoor V. S. 2,05,79,700 3.79
At the end of the year 1,08,97,745 1.64

8. Vivek Vishwas Patel 0 0.00
Allotment under Scheme 
of Amalgamation

30-05-2018 97,50,000 97,50,000 1.47

At the end of the year 97,50,000 1.47
9. Kalyanaraman Srinivasan 88,12,200 1.62

Purchase 05-10-2018 8,33,000 96,45,200 1.45
At the end of the year 96,45,200 1.45

10. Ajay Chandra B 87,38,700 1.61
Sale 06-04-2018 (64,500) 86,74,200 1.31
At the end of the year 86,74,200 1.31

11. Shaival Mayurbhai Desai 1,40,00,000 2.58
Sale 06-04-2018 (6,85,000) 1,33,15,000 2.01
Sale 13-04-2018 (2,45,000) 1,30,70,000 1.97
Sale 20-04-2018 (91,002) 1,29,78,998 1.96
Sale 27-04-2018 (60,000) 1,29,18,998 1.95
Sale 25-05-2018 (70,000) 1,28,48,998 1.94
Sale 01-06-2018 (1,05,000) 1,27,43,998 1.92
Sale 05-10-2018 (30,00,000) 97,43,998 1.47
Purchase 09-11-2018 4,300 97,48,298 1.47
Sale 16-11-2018 (8,55,000) 88,93,298 1.34
Sale 23-11-2018 (15,00,000) 73,93,298 1.11
At the end of the year 73,93,298 1.11

12. Polus Global Fund 67,96,440 1.25
Purchase 06-04-2018 2,00,000 69,96,440 1.05
Sale 13-07-2018 (2,00,046) 67,96,394 1.02
Purchase 27-07-2018 46 67,96,440 1.02
At the end of the year 67,96,440 1.02
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No.

13. Ilesh Pursothamdas Shah 1,64,97,800 3.04
Purchase 22-06-2018 18,59,312 1,83,57,112 2.77
Sale 29-09-2018 (31,26,830) 1,52,30,282 2.30
Sale 05-10-2018 (59,83,670) 92,46,612 1.39
Sale 12-10-2018 (14,00,000) 78,46,612 1.18
Sale 26-10-2018 (42,45,000) 36,01,612 0.54
At the end of the year 36,01,612 0.54

14. Nomura Singapore Limited 1,64,97,030 3.04
Sale 06-04-2018 (25,00,000) 1,39,97,030 2.11
Sale 18-05-2018 25,00,000 1,64,97,030 2.49
Sale 10-08-2018 (10,00,000) 1,54,97,030 2.34
Sale 07-09-2018 (5,00,000) 1,49,97,030 2.26
Sale 14-09-2018 (5,00,000) 1,44,97,030 2.19
Purchase 21-09-2018 (3,00,000) 1,41,97,030 2.14
Purchase 12-10-2018 (96,25,118) 45,71,912 0.69
Purchase 26-10-2018 (1,92,030) 43,79,882 0.66
Purchase 02-11-2018 (20,00,000) 23,79,882 0.36
Sale 09-11-2018 (23,79,882) 0 0.00
Purchase 15-03-2019 26,25,000 26,25,000 0.40
At the end of the year 26,25,000 0.40

* % of Shares of the Company is based on the paid up Capital of the Company at the end of the Year.

Note: 1. The details of holding has been clubbed based on PAN.

v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

No.

Directors
1 Mr. Ajit Mehta 3,01,14,780 5.55 01-04-2018 NIL Movement during the year 3,01,14,780 4.54

3,01,14,780 4.54 31-03-2019 3,01,14,780 4.54
2 Mr. Vishal Mehta@ 5,99,59,400 11.05 01-04-2018 NIL Movement during the year 5,99,59,400 9.04

5,99,59,400 9.04 31-03-2019 5,99,59,400 9.04
3 Mr. Malav Mehta 1,70,24,200 3.14 01-04-2018 NIL Movement during the year 1,70,24,200 2.57

1,70,24,200 2.57 31-03-2019 1,70,24,200 2.57
4 Mr. Vishwas Patel 0 0.00 01-04-2018 0 0.00

30-05-2018 7,65,95,662 Allotment 
under 

Scheme of 
Amalgamation

7,65,95,662 11.55

7,65,95,662 11.55 31-03-2019 7,65,95,662 11.55
5 Mr. Keyoor Bakshi 0 0.00 01-04-2018 NIL Movement during the year 0 0.00

0 0.00 31-03-2019 0 0.00
6 Mr. Roopkishan Dave 0 0.00 01-04-2018 0 0.00

23-10-2018 1,000 Purchase 1,000 0.00
1,000 0.00 31-03-2019 1,000 0.00

7 Ms. Vijaylaxmi Sheth 0 0.00 01-04-2018 NIL Movement during the year 0 0.00
0 0.00 31-03-2019 0 0.00
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8 Mr. Piyushkumar Sinha 0 0.00 01-04-2018 NIL Movement during the year 0 0.00
0 0.00 31-03-2019 0 0.00

Key Managerial Personnel
1 Mr. Vishal Mehta@ 5,99,59,400 11.05 01-04-2018 NIL Movement during the year 5,99,59,400 9.04

5,99,59,400 9.04 31-03-2019 5,99,59,400 9.04
2 47,000 0.01 01-04-2018

06-07-2018 47,000 ESOP Allotment 94,000 0.01
94,000 0.01 31-03-2019 94,000 0.01

3 Mr. Shyamal Trivedi 10,340 0.00 01-04-2018
06-07-2018 15,000 ESOP Allotment 25,340 0.00

25,340 0.00 31-03-2019 25,340 0.00

* % of Shares of the Company is based on the paid up Capital of the Company at the end of the Year.

@ Mr. Vishal Mehta, Managing Director has been included in the list of Directors as well as KMP.

Note: The details of holding have been clubbed based on PAN.

V. INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment:

(` In Million)

Indebtedness at the beginning of 

i) Principal Amount 450.00 - - 450.00
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.12 - - 0.12
Total (i+ii+iii) 450.12 - - 450.12
Change in Indebtedness during 

* Addition - - - -
* Reduction 90.00 - - 90.00
Net Change 90.00 - - 90.00
Indebtedness at the end of 

i) Principal Amount 360.00 - - 360.00
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.11 - - 0.11
Total (i+ii+iii) 360.11 - - 360.11
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

(` In Million)

No.

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

0.00 0.00 0.00

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0 0 0

Income- tax Act, 1961
0 0 0

2 Stock Option 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0
4 Commission

- others, specify…

0 0 0

5 Others, please specify 0 0 0
Total (A) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Ceiling as per the Act

the Companies Act, 2013

B.  Remuneration to other Directors
1. Particulars of Remuneration to Independent Directors

(` In Million)

No.

1 Fees for attending board and 
committee meetings

0.31 0.28 0.12 0.11 0.82

2 Commission 0 0 0 0 0
3 Others, please specify

(Salary, bonus and contribution to PF)
0 0 0 0 0

Total (1) 0.31 0.28 0.12 0.11 0.82

2. Particulars of Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors
(` In Million)

No.

1 Fee for attending board and committee meetings 0.22 0.28 0.50
2 Commission 0 0 0
3 Others, please specify 0 0 0

Total (2) 0.22 0.28 0.50
Total (B)=(1+2) 1.32
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Companies Act, 2013
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C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
(` In Million)

No. CFO
Total

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

2.86 4.60 7.46

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -
- - -

2 Stock Option 2.26 7.07 9.33
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission - - -

- - -
 others, specify… - - -

5 Others, please specify - - -
Total 5.12 11.67 16.79

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
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Details under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

No. Particulars

I Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median 
remuneration of the employees of the Company for 

Number of times
Chairman Nil
Managing Director Nil
All other Directors Nil

II Percentage increase in remuneration of each of the 
Category

% increase in remuneration 
in the Financial Year

Directors Nil

Mr. Vishal Mehta, 
Managing Director

Nil

Mr. Hiren Padhya, Chief 11%

Mr. Shyamal Trivedi, 
Vice President & 
Company Secretary

11%

III Percentage increase in the median remuneration of 15%

IV Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company 628
V Average  percentile  increase  already  made  in  the  salaries  

of  employees  other  than  the managerial personnel in the 

thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration

The average increase in salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last Financial Year was 16% and 
11% for managerial personnel

VI
Remuneration Policy of the Company Remuneration Policy of the Company.

NOTES:

1. Shares allotted under ESOP Scheme of the Company have not been included in the above.

2. The Non-Executive Directors are paid only sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and its 
Committees. The ratio of remuneration and percentage increase in remuneration of these Directors is therefore 
not considered for the above.
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Report on the Audit of the Standalone IND AS 

Opinion

of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

Independent Auditor’s Report

Sr 
No Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

1.

`

`

Trademark and Customer relationship of `

The Company is required to perform impairment 
model used for the impairment testing, the appropriateness 
of the assumptions, and the methodology used to prepare its 

•  gaining an understanding and assessing the reasonableness 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
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Sr 
No Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

For the purpose of performing impairment assessments, 

2

obligations, the appropriateness of the basis used to 
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Sr 
No Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

3

` `

`

`

4
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that there is a material misstatement of this other 

for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 

professional judgment and maintain professional 

• Identify and assess the risks of material 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

on whether the Company has adequate internal 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
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matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

Other Matter

 

the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this 

in 

amounts, required to be transferred, to 

For 
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Annexure A referred to in Para 1 of the 
Independent Auditors Report

assets during the year and we are informed 

Company listed in the register maintained 

The Company has not granted any guarantees and 

on legal opinion obtained by the Company, the 

are generally regularly deposited during the 

material statutory dues were in arrears as at 

`
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not been deposited with the appropriate 

Name of Statute Income Tax Act, 1961
Nature of Dues
Amount involved
Period to which amount 
pertains
Forum where dispute is 
pending

Commissioner of 

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 

monitoring bank, monies raised by the Company 

`
`

for the purpose of reporting the true and fair 

the management, we report that no fraud by the 
Company or no fraud on the Company by the 

by the management, the managerial remuneration 

For 
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the Standards  on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

Annexure B referred in para 2 of the 
Independent Auditors Report

statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
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Opinion

For 
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Balance Sheet

 `

Particulars Notes  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 Goodwill

11

12

12
  Trade payables

12

small enterprises
12

12

For 

Ajit Mehta 

Gandhinagar Gandhinagar Gandhinagar

Hiren Padhya

Gandhinagar Gandhinagar
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`

Particulars Notes  Year ended
March 31, 2019

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018

` `

For 

Ajit Mehta 

Gandhinagar Gandhinagar Gandhinagar

Hiren Padhya

Gandhinagar Gandhinagar
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Statement of Cash Flows

`

 Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

A

 31.31 
B
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`

 Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 
C

Interest paid

`

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

 Cheques on hand
 Cash on hand

For 

Ajit Mehta 

Gandhinagar Gandhinagar Gandhinagar

Hiren Padhya

Gandhinagar Gandhinagar
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

 The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

requires determination of the most appropriate 

This estimate also requires determination of 

underlying Equity Share on the entitled shares 

  The assumptions and models used for 

judgement is required to determine the 

  The Company has `
`

`

  The Company presents assets and liabilities in 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

  • It is held primarily for the purpose  

the settlement of the liability for at least 

obligation and they are measured at their 

assets or liabilities related to employee 

annually, or more frequently when there is an 

to the unit and then to the other assets of the 

 
operation when determining the gain or 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

amounts are adjusted through goodwill 
during the measurement period, or additional 

  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 

on settlement or translation of monetary items 

to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

asset or liability

measured using the assumptions that market 

the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 

estimates and assumptions

of the plant and equipment and borrowing 

  An item of property, plant and equipment 

The amortisation period and the amortisation 

modify the amortisation period or method, 
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of an intangible asset are measured as the 

  • Internally generated Computer 

and rewards of ownership are not transferred 

period of the lease unless the payments are 

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 

sale and the same is highly probable of being 

held for sale shall be measured at the lower 
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  Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and 

  Impairment is determined for goodwill by 

period of time to get ready for its intended use 
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for the year ended March 31, 2019

     For purposes of subsequent 

    •  Equity instruments measured 

    •  Equity instruments measured at 

    A debt instrument is measured at 

assets are subsequently measured at 

    A debt instrument is measured at fair 
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measured initially as well as at 

 

debt instrument is reported as 

to designate a debt instrument, 

or eliminates a measurement or 

The Company has not designated any 

instruments, the Company may make 

   • The Company has transferred its 

asset or has assumed an obligation 

without material delay to a third party 

transferred substantially all the risks 



Standalone

Statutory Reports 
Financial Statem

ents
Corporate O

verview

Adding Value, Multiplying Growth |

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Company has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has 

    When the Company has transferred 

from an asset or has entered into 

has retained the risks and rewards 

transferred nor retained substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of the 

the rights and obligations that the 

transferred asset is measured at the 

measured at an amount equal to 

measured at an amount equal to the 

date to the amount that is required 

as an impairment gain or loss in 

or loss, loans and borrowings, 

liabilities depends on their 

liabilities designated upon initial 

    Gains or losses on liabilities held 

are not subsequently transferred to 
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The Company has not designated 

are subsequently measured at 

when the obligation under the liability 

is an intention to settle on a net basis, to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
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in subsidiaries and interests in joint 
arrangements, when the timing of the 

that it is probable that the temporary 

year when the asset is realised or the liability is 

forward and utilised when the Company will 
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plans is determined based on the 

   • The date of the plan amendment or 

when the grant is made using an appropriate 

the number of equity instruments that will 

as at the beginning and end of that period and 

from time to time by the Company under the 
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underlying Equity Share on the entitled shares 

equity shareholders for the period by the 

shareholders for the period by the weighted 

number of equity shares that would be issued 

equity shares are determined independently 

  The Company prepares its segment 

distributions to equity holders of the Company 
when the distribution is authorised and the 

to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is 

possible but not probable obligation, or a 
present obligation that may, but probably 
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and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 

prior period presented applying Ind 

  •   An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted 

lease payments related to that lease 

  The standard permits two possible 



Standalone

Statutory Reports 
Financial Statem

ents
Corporate O

verview

Adding Value, Multiplying Growth |

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

using hindsight, and

  •    To use updated assumptions to 

interest for the remainder of the period 

is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 

termination rights in order to allow 

borrowing remains outstanding after the 
related asset is ready for its intended use or 

funds that an entity borrows generally when 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

Particulars Goodwill Computer 
Software IT Platform Trademark Customer 

Relationship

Intangible 
assets under 
development

Total                     

Additions

Additions

`

Particulars As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

Goodwill
Intangible assets
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`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018
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`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Current



|

Infibeam Avenues Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Non Current

Current

` `

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 124.14 

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Cheques on hand
Cash on hand
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

` `

Particulars Cost FVOCI  Amortised Cost 

Particulars Cost FVOCI  Amortised Cost 



|

Infibeam Avenues Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Current

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at Mar 31, 2018

No. of shares ` No. of shares `

Shares of `
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Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at Mar 31, 2018

No. of shares ` No. of shares `

At the beginning of the period

`

 

`

Name of the Shareholders
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

No. of shares % of 
shareholding No. of shares % of 

shareholding
Ajit C Mehta
Vishal A Mehta

  

`

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

` `

`

`

`

`
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`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`
premium of ` `

`

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

` `

`
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`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Current

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Current

Particulars FVOCI Amortised Cost

Trade payable

Particulars FVOCI Amortised Cost

Trade payable
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`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Current

 33.22 

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Short Term Capital Gain on sale of mutual funds

` `
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`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

 432.43 

Salaries,wages and bonus

 12.43 

`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

    Audit fees

`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

`

`

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018
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Nature of exposure Currency
 Year ended March 31, 2019  Year ended March 31, 2018 

 Foreign 
currency `

 Foreign 
currency `

`

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

`

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

`

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 



Standalone

Statutory Reports 
Financial Statem

ents
Corporate O

verview

Adding Value, Multiplying Growth |

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

Particulars
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

and doubtful debts

`

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

` `

` `
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`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

ESIC
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Particulars  Year ended March 31, 2019  Year ended March 31, 2018 

Attrition rate

Mortality rate 
mortality rates mortality rates

Gratuity
`

Particulars Sensitivity level Year ended March 31, 2019  Year ended  March 31, 2018
Gratuity

`

Particulars  Year ended March 31, 2019  Year ended March 31, 2018
Gratuity
Within one year
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Sr.No Relationship Name of company / person
1

2

Vishal Ajit Mehta

Ajit Champaklal Mehta
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Particulars Period ending

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP) and 

relatives of 
KMP

Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

Associate 
Company

Subsidiary 
Companies Total
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars Period ending

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP) and 

relatives of 
KMP

Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

Associate 
Company

Subsidiary 
Companies Total
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Particulars Period ending

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP) and 

relatives of 
KMP

Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

Associate 
Company

Subsidiary 
Companies Total

 3.33 

 41.34 

Vishal Ajit Mehta
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars Period ending

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP) and 

relatives of 
KMP

Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

Associate 
Company

Subsidiary 
Companies Total

managerial personnel

 1.32  1.32 
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Particulars Period ending

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP) and 

relatives of 
KMP

Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

Associate 
Company

Subsidiary 
Companies Total
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars Period ending

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP) and 

relatives of 
KMP

Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

Associate 
Company

Subsidiary 
Companies Total

`
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Particulars  2018-19  2017-18

`

 1  1 
`

`

Scheme ESOP Scheme 2013-14 ESOP Scheme 2014-15

Vesting requirements Vesting period as 

the letters issuing the 

Vesting period as 

the letters issuing the 

Vesting period as 

the letters issuing the 

Vesting period as 

the letters issuing the 

Method of settlement
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Particulars
 2018-19  2017-18 

ESOP Scheme 13-14 ESOP Scheme 14-15 ESOP Scheme 13-14 ESOP Scheme 14-15

Granted during the year 

`

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18
Employee option plan

 12.43 

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

 1 year 

`

Particulars Approval Date No. of SARs SAR Price 
Indian Rupees

Grant I

Particulars SAR Scheme 2017 
As at March 31, 2019

Granted during the year
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`

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18
Corpus Fund 

`

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18

`

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18

`
`

`
`

`
`

eliminated  amounting to ` `
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

`
`

`

Particulars Period ending India UAE Others Total

Carrying amount of segment non 

 

`
`

`

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18
Within one year
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a. The Company is required to spend ` `

`

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

In cash Yet to be paid 
in cash Total In cash Yet to be paid 

in cash Total

`

Particulars

Carrying amount Fair value

Amortised 
Cost

Fair value through

Total
Quoted 
price in 

active 
markets

observable 
inputs

unobservable 
inputs

Total
Other 

comprehensive 
income loss

`

Particulars

Carrying amount Fair value

Amortised 
Cost

Fair value through

Total
Quoted 
price in 

active 
markets

observable 
inputs

unobservable 
inputs

Total
Other 

comprehensive 
income loss
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18

Sales
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`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

`

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Upto 0-180 days More than 180 days Upto 0-180 days More than 180 days
Gross

`

Particulars  more than 1 year 

Interest bearing borrowings

Trade payables
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

Particulars  more than 1 year 

Interest bearing borrowings

Trade payables

Change in USD rate

Change in AED rate

Change in SAR rate

Change in GBP rate
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`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

Gearing ratio

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

of ̀
`

`

Particulars `

Trademark
Software
Customer relationship
Goodwill

Particulars `

Intangible assets
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Particulars `

Trademark
Software
Customer relationship

Particulars `

`

`

`

`
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

` `
`

amounted to ` ` `
`

`

Objects of the issue as per the prospectus Net Proceeds 
from IPO

Amount 
utilised up to 

March 31, 2019

Unutilised 
amount as on 

March 31, 2019

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

`

`

`
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41. 

`

`

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

`

`

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

For 

Ajit Mehta 

Gandhinagar Gandhinagar Gandhinagar

Hiren Padhya

Gandhinagar Gandhinagar

`

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

43.

44. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Consolidated IND AS Financial 
Statements
Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matters

Sr 
No Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

Goodwill Impairment Principal Audit Procedures

`

`

`
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Corporate O

verview

A |

Consolidated

Sr 
No Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

2 Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation 
and disclosure of revenue and other related balances 
in view of adoption of IND-AS 115 “Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers”.

Principal Audit Procedures
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Sr 
No Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

Recoverability of Loans and Capital advances by 
Parent Company.

Principal Audit Procedures

`

`

`

`

Information Other than the Consolidated IND AS 
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verview

A |

Consolidated
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Other Matter

`
of `

`
of `

`

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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Consolidated

Ramesh Pipalawa
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Annexure “A” To The Independent Auditor’s 
Report

Financial Controls

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting
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Consolidated

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Opinion
Ramesh Pipalawa
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2019 

 `

Particulars Notes  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 I. Non-current assets 

 7 
 7 

 9  
 8  

 23,470.97  23,819.08 
 II. Current assets  

 10  -   
  Financial assets 

 7  -   
 7 
 7 
 7 
 7 
 7 
 8  

 5,071.01  5,869.05 
 7  -   

 31,743.58  29,688.13 

  Equity  
 11 
 12 

 27,376.44  26,258.68 

 27,369.72  26,262.23 

 I.  Non-current liabilities 
  Financial liabilities 

 510.59  491.86 
II. Current liabilities 
 Financial liabilities 

 -   

 9 
 3,863.27  2,934.04 

 31,743.58  29,688.13 

For 

Ramesh Pipalawa Vishal Mehta Ajit Mehta  

Hiren Padhya
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Consolidated

for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

Particulars Notes  Year ended
March 31, 2019

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Income

 17 
 11,701.96  8,706.52 

Expenses 

 18 
 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 

 10,715.37  7,547.66 

 22  -   
 1,458.40  1,158.86 

 1,534.71  1,151.97 

 -   

 271.47  270.53 
 1,263.24  881.44 

  or loss in subsequent periods: 

  or loss in subsequent periods:  -    -   
 1.42  1.66 

 1,264.66  883.10 

 1,263.24  881.44 

 1,264.66  883.10 
` `

For 

Ramesh Pipalawa Vishal Mehta Ajit Mehta  

Hiren Padhya

supriya.a
Highlight

supriya.a
Highlight
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Statement of changes in Equity
for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended March 31, 2019

`

 Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

 - 
 - 

1,974.97  1,761.37 

3,315.42  1,116.62 

3,081.11  973.20 

 - 
 - 
-

 - 
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

For 

Ramesh Pipalawa Vishal Mehta Ajit Mehta  

Hiren Padhya

`

 Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

 - 

318.34

 - 

Cash and cash equivalents at March 31 1,317.17  1,583.06 

Notes:

`

 Particulars  As
March 31, 2019 

 As
March 31, 2018 

2. Cash and cash equivalents comprises of 

 - 

 - 
Cash and cash equivalents  1,317.17  1,583.06 

*- -
 1,317.17  1,583.06 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

Corporate Information

statements

2.2 Basis of consolidation

 Consolidation procedure:
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Name of the company Country of 
incorporation

% of shareholding

As at 
March 31,  2019

As at 
March 31,  2018

Subsidiaries:

-
-
-

Associate:

-
-
-
-
-

April 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

 Business combinations prior to 1 April 2015

 Common control business combinations

3. Critical accounting estimates

3.1 Estimate and assumption

3.3 Share-based payments
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.5  Intangible asset including intangible asset under 
development

3.6 Property, plant and equipment

3.7 Revenue recognition 

3.8 Investments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

4.2 Business combinations and goodwill

4.3 Foreign currencies
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.3 Fair value measurement

  Or

4.4 Property, plant and equipment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

 Depreciation

`

4.5 Intangible Assets

 Amortisation
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

 Intangible assets under development

4.6 Leases
 Group as a lessee

 Group as a lessor

4.7 Non-current assets held for sale

4.9 Borrowing cost
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

4.10 Revenue Recognition
 Sale of products

 Rendering of services

 Interest income

 Rental income

 Export incentives
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.11  Financial instruments – initial recognition and 
subsequent measurement

   •  Debt instruments at amortised cost:

   •  Debt instruments at fair value 
through other comprehensive 

   •  Debt instruments at fair value 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

   • Equity instruments:

   • Investment in associates:
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

liabilities

   •  Financial liabilities at fair value 

   • Loans and Borrowings

4.12 Inventories
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

4.13 Cash and cash equivalent

 Current income tax

 Deferred tax
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

4.17 Share-based payments

 Equity-settled transactions

4.18 Earnings per share

4.19  Segment reporting

 Segment policies:
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.20 Dividend distribution
 The 

4.21 Provisions

 Contingencies

 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

ective

 Ind AS 116 – Leases
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

to income tax consequences of dividend and 

  Amendment to Ind AS 19, plan amendment, 
curtailment or settlement:

  Ind AS 109 – Prepayment Features with 
Negative Compensation

 Ind AS 23 – Borrowing Costs

  Ind AS 28 – Long-term Interests in Associates 
and Joint Ventures

  Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations and Ind AS 
111 – Joint Arrangements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

5.
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7. Financial assets
7 - Investments

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Investment stated at cost 

 -   
 -   

 -    -   
 -   

 -    -   
 -   

 -    -   
 -   

 -    -   
 -   

 350.35  217.91 
Investment stated at Fair Value through OCI  

 -   
 615.79  15.79 

 30.00 
 996.14  263.70 

 -   
 -    2.10 

realisable value

 -   

 3,201.60  -   
 4,197.74  265.80 

 996.14  263.70 

 -    -   
 -   
 -   
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Consolidated

7 - Loans
`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 Current 
 Unsecured considered good 

 5.55  6.10 

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Non-current 
Unsecured, considered good 

Unsecured, considered doubtful 
 -   
 -   

 93.53  234.52 
Current 
Unsecured, considered good 

 -   

Unsecured, considered doubtful 

 766.54  686.60 
 860.07  921.12 

` `

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 286.04  1,144.66 

 244.45  1,106.96 
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7 - Cash and cash equivalent
`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 -   

 -   
 1,317.17  1,583.06 

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 10.75  246.56 

` `

7 - Financial assets by category

Particulars Cost FVOCI  Amortised Cost 
 March 31, 2019 
 Investment 

 -   

 3,581.95  615.79  -    2,437.99 

Particulars Cost FVOCI  Amortised Cost 
 March 31, 2018 

 -  -   
 -  -   

 - -  -   
 - -  - 
 - -  - 
 - -  - 
 - -  - 

 254.80  15.79  2.10  3,863.80 
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Consolidated

8. Other assets

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 Non-current 
 Unsecured, considered good 

 893.51  1,452.90 
 Current 
 Unsecured, considered good 

 -   

 Unsecured, considered doubtful 

 2,726.55  2,121.60 
 3,620.06  3,574.50 

9. Income taxes
`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 137.73  122.17 

 47.76  48.36 

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 -   
 -    116.07 

` `
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11. Equity share capital

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at Mar 31, 2018

No. of shares ` No. of shares `

Authorised share capital* 
`

`

Issued and subscribed share capital 
`

Subscribed and fully paid up 
`

 663,392,240  663.39  542,783,390  542.78 

11.1.  Reconciliation of shares outstanding  at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at Mar 31, 2018

No. of shares ` No. of shares `

`

`

11.4. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the Company 

Name of the Shareholders
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

No. of shares % of 
shareholding No. of shares % of 

shareholding

 -    -   

  Note:
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11.5. Shares reserved for issue under options

11.6. Distribution made and proposed
`

Particulars March 31,  2019 March 31,  2018
Cash dividends on Equity Shares declared and paid:

` `  -   
 -   

 66.11  -   
`

`

 -   

 -   
Net interim dividend paid  -    54.11 
Proposed dividends on Equity Shares:

` `  -   
 

12. Other Equity
`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 Capital reserve 

 -   
 -    0.29 

 General reserve 

 105.22  94.12 
 Securities premium 

 -   

 25,054.40  7,426.82 

 -   

 -    17,715.31 
 Foreign currency monetary item translation reserve 

 -   
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`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 239.21  204.96 
 Money received against share warrants  100.00  100.00 

 -   

 -*  -   
 -    -* 

 -*  -* 
 Share application money pending allotment 

 -   

 -    15.00 

 -   
 1,713.31  507.75 

 Less: Appropriation 

 1,633.34  442.28 
 26,713.05  25,715.90 

Securities Premium

General reserve 
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Consolidated

Money received against share warrants

`
` ` `

`

13. Financial liabilities
13 - Borrowings

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 Long-term Borrowings 
  Secured 

  Unsecured 

 265.33  353.10 

 Short-term Borrowings 
  Secured 

 -   
  Unsecured 

 -   
 -   

 137.68  317.05 
 403.01  670.15 

` `

`

LC arrangement

Loan Covenant

Loan from related party
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`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 Current 
 -   

 183.96  251.82 
 183.96  251.82 

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 Current 

 -   

 -   

 349.57  179.46 
 349.57  179.46 

13 - Financial liabilities by category
Particulars FVOCI Amortised Cost
March 31, 2019

 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  936.54 

Particulars FVOCI Amortised Cost
March 31, 2018

 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  1,101.43 
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14. Provisions
`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

 5.45  9.32 
 51.94  51.19 

15. Other current liabilities
`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Current 
Unsecured, considered good 

 -   

 -   
   Others 

 3,138.85  2,128.03 
 3,138.85  2,128.03 

16. Revenue from operations
`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Operating income 

 34.87  26.01 
 11,590.69  8,393.18 

17. Other income
`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Interest income on: 

  - others 
 -   

 -   

 111.27  313.34 
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`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

 735.96  558.88 

 Salaries,wages and bonus cost for the year  646.66  493.82 

 -   
 ESOP cost for the year  68.92  44.41 

20. Finance costs
`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

  - others 
 -   

 64.50  57.26 

21. Depreciation and Amortization expense
`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

 822.08  664.34 
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22. Other expenses
`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

  Other 

 -   

 3,138.38  1,602.94 

Exceptional items
`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
 -   
 -   
 -   

23. Payment to auditors
`

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
As auditor 

 7.43  6.88 
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24. Income tax

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

Current tax 

 -   
Deferred tax 

 271.47  270.53 

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

Adjustments

 -   

Income tax expenses:  271.47  270.53 

`

Particulars
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred income tax assets

 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

 148.71  352.49 
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`

Particulars
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred income tax liabilities

 -   

 118.26 

`

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

 -   

 -   
 -   

Closing balance as at March 31 

25. Contingent liabilities
`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Contingent liabilities not provided for
 -   
 -   

`
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26. Capital commitment and other commitments

`

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Capital commitments
 2,019.17  2,399.07 

27. Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged
A.  Foreign Exchange Derivatives: 

B.  Exposure Not Hedged

Nature of exposure Currency
 Year ended March 31, 2019  Year ended March 31, 2018 

 Foreign 
currency (` in million)

 Foreign 
currency (` in million)

EURO  -    -   
 -    -   

 136.38  33.76 

SAR
EURO  -    -    -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

SAR  -    -   
 530.95  915.76 

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

ESIC
 13.45  14.18 
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Particulars  Year ended March 31, 2019  Year ended March 31, 2018 

Gratuity
`

Particulars Sensitivity level Year ended March 31, 2019  Year ended  March 31, 2018
Gratuity

`

Particulars  Year ended March 31, 2019  Year ended March 31, 2018
Gratuity

 68.87  60.90
 68.87  60.90 
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29. Related Party disclosures.

Name of Related Parties and Nature of  Relationship :
Description of relationship Name of the parties
Parties with whom transactions 
have been entered into
Company where Key Managerial 

Relatives of KMP

Associate Company
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Related party transactions

Particulars Period ending
 KMP and 

relative of 
KMP 

 Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

 Associate 
Company  Total 

Issue of equity shares on exercising of ESOP
 -  - 

 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 

 -  -  -  - 
  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 

Investment in equity shares
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Investment in preference shares 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 

Rent deposit received
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Rent Expense
 -  - 
 -  - 

 - 

 -  - 
Rent Income

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

ESOP cost recovered
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
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Particulars Period ending
 KMP and 

relative of 
KMP 

 Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

 Associate 
Company  Total 

Director sitting fees to non-executive and 
independent directors

 -  - 

 -  - 

 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 

 -  - 
 -  - 

 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Reimbursement of expenses from 

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 

Purrchase of Fixed Assets
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 

 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
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Particulars Period ending
 KMP and 

relative of 
KMP 

 Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

 Associate 
Company  Total 

 -  -  -  - 
 *-  -  -  *- 

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Loan given
 -  - 
 -  - 

Repayment of Loan given
 -  - 

-  - 
Advance to supplier given

-  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Dividend paid
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 

 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 

 *-  -  -  *- 
 *-  -  -  *- 
 *-  -  -  *- 

 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
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Consolidated

Particulars Period ending
 KMP and 

relative of 
KMP 

 Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

 Associate 
Company  Total 

 -  - 

 -  - 
Interest on Loan

 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 

Balance outstanding

 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Unbilled Revenue
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Creditor for Capital Goods
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Loans and advances payable
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 

Loans and advances given
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
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Particulars Period ending
 KMP and 

relative of 
KMP 

 Company 
where Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

can exercise 
control / 

 Associate 
Company  Total 

 -  - 
 -  - 

Payable for settlement of payment 
gateway transactions

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Rent Payable
 -  - 

 -  -  -  - 
Other payables

 -  - 

 -  - 
Security deposit

 -  - 
 -  - 

 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 

 -  - 
 -  - 
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Consolidated

30. Earning per share

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18

`

Weighted average number of equity shares 

`

`

Weighted average number of equity shares 

31. Dues to micro and small suppliers

`

Particulars As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

-

- -

- -

- -
- -
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32. Share based payments

`

`

Scheme ESOP Scheme 2013-14 ESOP Scheme 2014-15

`

Particulars
 2018-19  2017-18 

ESOP Scheme 13-14 ESOP Scheme 14-15 ESOP Scheme 13-14 ESOP Scheme 14-15
Options 

 -   

 -   

Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

`

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18

 68.92  44.41 
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Consolidated

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

`

0 0 0

`

SARs granted are as under:

Particulars Approval Date No. of SARs SAR Price 
Indian Rupees

Movement in options:

Particulars SAR Scheme 2017 
As at March 31, 2019

SAR Scheme 2017
 -   

 -   

2,276,311

33. Segment reporting

supriya.a
Highlight
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Primary Segment:
`

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue

External revenue

 11,590.69  8,393.18 
Segment result

 1,534.71  1,151.97 

 1,263.24  881.44 

Other Information:
`

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Segment assets

 -   

 31,743.54  29,688.13 
Segment liabilities

 -   

 4,373.81  3,425.90 
Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Non cash expenses other than depreciation

supriya.a
Highlight

supriya.a
Highlight
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C. Geographical information:

`

Particulars Period ending India UAE Others Total

 -   

 -   

34. Operating Lease

` `

Quantitative disclosures for fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities:
`

As at March 31,  2019

Particulars

Carrying amount Fair value

Amortised 
Cost

Fair value through

Total
Quoted 
price in 

active 
markets

observable 
inputs

unobservable 
inputs

Total
Other 

comprehensive 
income loss

Financial assets
 -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 93.53  15.79  -    109.32  -    109.32  -    109.32 
Financial liabilities

 265.33  -    -    265.33  -    265.33  -    265.33 

supriya.a
Highlight

supriya.a
Highlight

supriya.a
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As at March 31, 2018
`

Particulars

Carrying amount Fair value

Amortised 
Cost

Fair value through

Total
Quoted 
price in 

active 
markets

observable 
inputs

unobservable 
inputs

Total
Other 

comprehensive 
income loss

Financial assets
 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -   

 234.52  15.79  2.10  252.41  2.10  250.31  -    252.41 
Financial liabilities

 353.10  -    -    353.10  -    353.10  -    353.10 

Fair value hierarchy

Reconciliation of Level 1 fair values

`

Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Opening Balance on April 1,  -   

 -   

Closing Balance on March 31,  -    2.10 
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  Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

 244.45  1,106.96 

  Impairment

`

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Upto 0-180 days More than 180 days Upto 0-180 days More than 180 days

 -   
Net 
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`

Particulars On demand  more than 1 year 

 -   
 -   

 -    621.43  263.70 

 -   
 -   

 -    715.63  351.60 

 Foreign currency sensitivity

`

Particulars Change in USD 
rate before tax

Change in AED 
rate before tax 

supriya.a
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Consolidated

`

Change in Euro 
rate before tax 

 -   
 -   

Change in SAR 
rate before tax 

Change in GBP 
rate before tax 

 -   
 -   

36. Capital management

`

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Net debt

 27,376.44  26,258.68 
 26,400.12  25,065.01 

 -    -   
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of ̀
`

`

Particulars `

Goodwill  16,124.18 
 18,645.18 

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed
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Consolidated

Particulars `

Assets 

Liabilities

 1,339.36 

Goodwill**
 19,984.54 

Particulars `

`
 19,984.54 

`

`

`
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`

Particulars `

 5.04 

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

Particulars `

Assets :

 -   

Liabilities:

 20.04 

 30.00 

38. Nodal balance

Receivable for settlement of transactions:

Payable for settlement of transactions:
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Consolidated

`

Particulars As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

 -    -   

`

Particulars As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Expenses  -    -   

`

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

 -   

Cash and cash equivalents March 31,  0.02  0.83 

`
`

` `

`
`

` `
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40. 

` `
`

` ` `
`

`

Objects of the issue as per the prospectus Net Proceeds 
from IPO

Amount 
utilised up to 

March 31, 2019 
in the books 

of holding 
company

Unutilised 
amount as on 

March 31, 2019 
in the books 

of holding 
company

 -   
 -   
 -   

 4,161.70  3,910.20  251.50 

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

 -   

 251.50  902.50 
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Consolidated

a. ` `

b.
`

 Year ended 

 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

In cash Yet to be 
paid in cash Total In cash Yet to be 

paid in cash Total

 -  -  -  -  -  - 
 -  - 

45.
`

`

`

46.

`

47. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contract with customers”:
a. Disaggregation of revenue

`

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 11,590.69 

supriya.a
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  E-Commerce Related Web Services

  Ecommerce - sale of products

`

`

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Balance at the end of the year  184.67 

`

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Balance at the end of the year  227.17 
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Consolidated

48. 

49. 

For 

Ramesh Pipalawa Vishal Mehta Ajit Mehta  

Hiren Padhya
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PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies  
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Resolution No. Resolutions
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1
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` 1 
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9th Annual General Meeting
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To,
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